BUSINESS PARKS REIT

April 30, 2024
To,
The National Stock Exchange of India Ltd. BSE Limited
Exchange Plaza, Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers,
Plot No. C/1, G- Block, Dalal Street,
Bandra Kurla Complex, Mumbai- 400001

Bandra (East), Mumbai- 400051.

Scrip Symbol “MINDSPACE” (Units) Scrip Code “543217” (Units) and
Scrip Code “973069”, “973070”, “973754”,
“974075”, “974668”, “974882”, “975068”,” and
“975537” (Debentures) and Scrip Code:
“726151” and “726938” (Commercial Paper)

Subject: Outcome of the meeting of the board of directors of K Raheja Corp Investment Managers
Private Limited, Manager to Mindspace Business Parks REIT held on April 30, 2024.

Dear Sirs,

We wish to inform you that the Board of Directors (“Board”) of K Raheja Corp Investment Managers
Private Limited (“Manager”), Manager to Mindspace Business Parks REIT (“Mindspace REIT”) at its
meeting held on April 30, 2024, has inter-alia:

i. considered and approved the Audited Condensed Standalone Financial Statements and
Audited Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements for the financial year ended March 31,
2024, and Unaudited Condensed Standalone Financial Statements and Unaudited Condensed
Consolidated Financial Statements for the quarter and half year ended March 31, 2024, of
Mindspace REIT and taken on record the Auditor’s Report thereon, with an unmodified
opinion by the Statutory Auditors of the Mindspace REIT.

ii. considered and approved the Audited Standalone Financial Statements and Audited
Consolidated Financial Statements of Mindspace REIT (which shall form part of the Annual
Report) along with the report on performance of Mindspace REIT for the financial year ended
March 31, 2024, and taken on record the Auditor’s Report thereon, with an unmodified
opinion by the Statutory Auditors of the Mindspace REIT.

K Raheja Corp Investment Managers Private Limited
(acting as the Manager to Mindspace Business Parks REIT)
Corporate Identification Number (CIN): U68200MH2023PTC406104
Regd. Office: Raheja Tower, C-30, Block ‘G’, Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (E), Mumbai — 400 051
Phone: +91 — 22- 2656 4000 | www.mindspacereit.com



vi.

BUSINESS PARKS REIT

declared distribution of Rs. 4.77 per unit aggregating to Rs. 2829 million, which comprises
dividend of Rs. 4.31 per unit aggregating to Rs. 2556 million and interest of Rs. 0.46 per unit
aggregating to Rs. 273 million.

approved borrowing from time to time, any sums of money such that, the aggregate
consolidated borrowing and deferred payments of Mindspace REIT Group, net of cash and
cash equivalent, do not exceed 49% of the value of the Mindspace REIT Group assets, subject
to approval of Unitholders, at the ensuing Annual Meeting.

approved the appointment of Aabid & Co, Company Secretaries, as the Secretarial Auditor of
Mindspace REIT for the financial year 2024-25.

took note of consummation of acquisition of unit admeasuring leasable area of ~42,000 sq.ft.
in Commerzone Yerwada Park located at Samrat Ashok Path, Off Airport Road, Pune by
Mindspace Business Parks Private Ltd, one of the Asset SPVs of Mindspace REIT, at a
consideration of Rs. 410 million on April 26, 2024. The Board had approved this acquisition at
its board meeting held on January 29, 2024.

Enclosed please find herewith:

A.

Audited Condensed Standalone Financial Statements and Audited Condensed Consolidated
Financial Statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2024, and Unaudited Condensed
Standalone Financial Statements and Unaudited Condensed Consolidated Financial
Statements for the quarter and half year ended March 31, 2024 and the Auditors Report
thereon, pursuant to Regulations 51, 52 and 54 read with Para A of Part B of Schedule Il of
the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“Listing
Regulations”) and other regulations, if applicable; as Annexure 1.

The details of related party transactions are set out at Note No. 29 of the Audited Condensed
Standalone Financial Statements and at Note No. 46 of the Audited Condensed Consolidated
Financial Statements of Mindspace REIT, as Annexure 2.

The Computation of Net Asset Value is set out on Page no. 9 of the Audited Condensed
Standalone Financial Statements and at page no. 16 of the Audited Condensed Consolidated
Financial Statements, as Annexure 3.

K Raheja Corp Investment Managers Private Limited
(acting as the Manager to Mindspace Business Parks REIT)
Corporate Identification Number (CIN): U68200MH2023PTC406104

Regd. Office: Raheja Tower, C-30, Block ‘G’, Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (E), Mumbai — 400 051

Phone: +91 — 22- 2656 4000 | www.mindspacereit.com



BUSINESS PARKS REIT

You are requested to note that the financial statements of the Manager for the year ended March
31, 2024, have not been disclosed, since there is no material erosion in the Manager’s net worth as
on March 31, 2024, compared to March 31, 2023, as assessed by Axis Trustee Services Limited,
Trustee to Mindspace REIT.

In accordance with Regulation 52 of the Listing Regulations, Mindspace REIT would be publishing the
Audited Consolidated Financial Results for the quarter and year ended March 31, 2024, in the
prescribed newspapers.

We also wish to inform you that the record date for the distribution to unitholders for the quarter
ended March 31, 2024, will be May 9, 2024, and the payment of distribution will be made on or
before May 15, 2024.

The above information shall also be made available on Mindspace REIT’s website at
https://www.mindspacereit.com/investor-relations/stock-exchange-filings.

Please take the same on your record.
Thanking you,

Yours sincerely,

For K Raheja Corp Investment Managers Private Limited
(Formerly known as K Raheja Corp Investment Managers LLP)
(acting as Manager to Mindspace Business Parks REIT)

Digitally signed by

BHARAT  HaraT

KANAKLAL favat:

SANGHAVI bt zsoe

Bharat Sanghavi

Company Secretary and Compliance Officer

Membership No.: A13157

Encl: as above

K Raheja Corp Investment Managers Private Limited
(acting as the Manager to Mindspace Business Parks REIT)
Corporate Identification Number (CIN): U68200MH2023PTC406104
Regd. Office: Raheja Tower, C-30, Block ‘G’, Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (E), Mumbai — 400 051
Phone: +91 — 22- 2656 4000 | www.mindspacereit.com



Annexure- 1,2 and 3

H Chartered Accountants
Delo‘tte Lotus Corporate Park
= 1st Fioor, Wing A-G
Haskins & SellsLLP CTS No.185A Jay Coaeh
Off Western Express Highway
Goregaon (East)

Mumbai-400 063
Maharashtra, India

Tel: +91 22 6245 1000
Fax: +91 22 6245 1001

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON AUDIT OF ANNUAL CONDENSED STANDALONE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND REVIEW OF QUARTERLY AND HALF YEARLY CONDENSED STANDALONE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

To

The Board of Directors,

K. Raheja Corp Investment Managers Private Limited (formerly known as K. Raheja Corp Investment
Managers LLP(the “"Investment Manager”)

(Acting in capacity as the Investment Manager of Mindspace Business Parks REIT)

Opinion and Conclusion
We have :

(a) audited the Condensed Standalone Financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 which comprises
of the following:

e the Condensed Standalone Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2024;

e the Condensed Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income) for
the year ended 31 March 2024;

o the Condensed Standalone Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March 2024;

the Condensed Standalone Statement of Changes in Unitholders’ Equity for the year ended 31 March

2024;

the Statement of Net Assets at fair value as at 31 March 2024;

the Statement of Total Return at fair value for the year ended 31 March 2024;

the Statement of Net Distributable Cash Flow for the year ended 31 March 2024; and

summary of the material accounting policies and select explanatory notes

(b) reviewed the Condensed Standalone Financial Statements, which were subject to limited review by us, which
comprise of the following for the quarter and half year ended 31 March 2024 (refer ‘Other Matters’ section
below):

o the Condensed Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income) for
the quarter and half year ended 31 March 2024;

the Condensed Standalone Statement of Cash Flows for the quarter and half year ended 31 March 2024;
the Statement of Total Return at fair value for the half year ended 31 March 2024;

the Statement of Net Distributable Cash Flow for the quarter and half year ended 31 March 2024; and
summary of the material accounting policies and select explanatory notes.

both included in the accompanying "Condensed Standalone Financial Statements” of Mindspace Business Parks
REIT (“the REIT"”/ “the Trust”), (“the Condensed Standalone Financial Statements”), being submitted by the REIT
pursuant to the requirements of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Real Estate Investment Trusts) Regulations,
2014 as amended from time to time including any guidelines and circulars issued thereunder read with SEBI Circular
SEBI/HO/DDHS-PoD-2/P/CIR/2023/116 dated July 6, 2023(the “REIT regulations”) and Regulation 52 of the SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended.

(a) Opinion on Condensed Standalone Financial Statements

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Condensed
Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024:

i. is presented in accordance with the requirements the REIT regulations and Regulation 52 and Regulation 54
i f the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended (“the Listing
sk ns%e lations”); and

Regd. Offic J.'Jr,]n International Center, Tower 3, 32nd floor, Senapati Bapat Marg, Elphinstone Road (West), Mumbai-400 013, Maharashtra, India.
WS & Sells LLP is registered with Limited Liability having LLP identification No: AAB-8737
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ii. gives a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards 34 “Interim Financial
Reporting” (“Ind AS 34”) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India to the extent not
inconsistent with the REIT Regulations, of the state of affairs of the REIT as at 31 March 2024 its profit
including other comprehensive income, its cash flows, its changes in Unitholder’s equity, its net assets at
fair value, total returns at fair value and net distributable cash flows and other financial information of the
REIT for the year then ended.

(b) Conclusion on Unaudited Condensed Standalone Financial Statements for the quarter and half year
ended March 31, 2024

With respect to the Condensed Standalone Financial Statements for the quarter and half year ended March 31,
2024, based on our review conducted and procedures performed as stated in paragraph (b) of Auditor’s
Responsibilities section below, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that the Condensed
Standalone Financial Statements for the quarter and half year ended March 31, 2024, prepared in accordance
with the REIT Regulations, the Ind AS 34 and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, to the
extent not inconsistent with the REIT Regulations, and has not disclosed the information required to be disclosed
in terms of the REIT Regulations and Listing Regulations, including the manner in which it is to be disclosed, or
that it contains any material misstatement.

Basis for Opinion on the Audited Condensed Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March
31, 2024

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (“"SAs”) issued by Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (the “ICAI"). Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in paragraph (a)
of Auditor’s Responsibilities section below. We are independent of the REIT in accordance with the Code of Ethics
issued by the ICAI together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Condensed Standalone
Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by
us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to Note 2 which describes the Basis of preparation of condensed standalone financial statements
and Note 13(a)(i) which describes the presentation of “Unit Capital” as “Equity” instead of compound financial
instrument to comply with the REIT Regulations. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Management’s Responsibilities for the Condensed Standalone Financial Statements

The Condensed Standalone Financial Statements is the responsibility of the Investment Manager (the
“Management”) and has been approved by them for the issuance. This responsibility includes the preparation and
presentation of the Condensed Standalone Financial Statements for the quarter and year ended March 31, 2024 that
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs as at 31 March 2024, its profit including other comprehensive income
and cash flows for the quarter, half year and year ended 31 March 2024, its changes in Unitholder’s equity for the
year ended 31 March 2024, its net assets at fair value as at 31 March 2024, its total return at fair value for the half
year and year ended 31 March 2024, its net distributable cash flows for the quarter, half year and year ended 31
March 2024 and other financial information of the REIT in conformity with the REIT Regulations, Ind AS 34 and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India, to the extent not inconsistent with REIT Regulations and in
compliance with the REIT Regulations and Listing Regulations. This responsibility aiso includes maintenance of
adequate accounting records for safeguarding the assets of the REIT and for preventing and detecting frauds and
other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates
that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Condensed Standalone Financial Statements that give a true and
fair view and is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Condensed Standalone Financial Statements, the Investment Manager’s is responsible for assessing
the REIT’s ability, to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Management either intends to liquidate the REIT or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.
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Auditor's Responsibilities

(a)

Audit of the Condensed Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Condensed Standalone Financial
Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high

leve!l of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of this Condensed Standalone Financial Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Annual Condensed Standalone Financial
Statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

« Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Company's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the Investment Manager.

e Evaluate the appropriateness and reasonableness of disclosures made by the Investment Manager in terms
of the requirements specified under the REIT Regulations and Listing Regulations.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the Investment Manager use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the REIT to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the Condensed Standalone Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the REIT to cease to continue
as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Annual Condensed Standalone Financial
Statements, including the disclosures, and whether the Annual Condensed Standalone Financial Statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the Annual Condensed Standalone Financial
Statements of the REIT to express an opinion on the Annual Condensed Standalone Financial Statements.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Annual Condensed Standalone Financial Statements that,
individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable
user of the Annual Condensed Standalone Financial Statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative
materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of
our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the Annual Condensed Standalone
Financial Statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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(b) Review of the Condensed Standalone Financial Statements for the quarter and half year ended
March 31, 2024

We conducted our review of the Condensed Standalone Financial Statements for the quarter and half year
ended March 31, 2024 in accordance with the Standard on Review Engagements ("SRE”) 2410 'Review of
Interim Financial Information Performed by the Independent Auditor of the Entity’, issued by the ICAI. A
review of interim financial information consists of making inquiries, primarily of the Investment Manager’s
personnel responsible for financial and accounting matters, and applying analytical and other review
procedures. A review is substantially less in scope than an audit conducted in accordance with SAs Act and
consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters
that might be identified in an audit. Accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion.

Other Matter

o As stated in Note 34(a) of the Condensed Standalone Financial Statements, the financial information for the
quarter and half year ended 31 March 2024 are the balancing figures between the audited figures in respect of
the full financial year and the published year to date figures up to the third quarter and second quarter of the
current financial year which were subject to limited review by us. Our report on the Condensed Standalone
Financial Statements is not modified in respect of this matter.

e As stated in Note 34(b) of the Condensed Standalone Financial Statements, the financial information for the
Quarter and Half Year ended March 31, 2023 are the balancing figures between the annual audited figures in
respect of the full financial year and the published year to date figures up to the third quarter and first half of
the previous financial year which were subject to limited review by us. Our report on the Statement is not
modified in respect of this matter.

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 117366W/W-100018)

e

Nilesh Shah

Partner

Place: Mumbai (Membership No. 49660)
Date: April 30, 2024 UDIN: 24049660BKFRQW2408




Mindspace Business Park REIT
RN:INSREIT/19-20/003

Condensed Standalone Balance Sheet

(all amounts are in Rs. million unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Note Asat As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
{Audited) {Audited)
ASSETS

Non-current assets
Financial assets

- Investments 4 1,54,103 1,53,103
- Loans 5 32,937 29,879
- Other financial assets 6 3 564
Other non-current assets 7 9 2
Total non-current assets 1,87,052 1,83,548
Current assets
Financial assets
- Investment
- Loans 8 10,881 1,980
- Cash and cash equivalents 9 3,038 2,984
- Others financial assets 10 930 4
Other current assets 11 10 8
Total current assets 14,859 4,976
Total assets . 2,01,911 1,88,524
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
Corpus 12 0 0
Unit capital 13 1,62,839 1,62,839
Other equity 14 3,429 3,202
Total equity 1,66,268 1,66,041
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
- Borrowings 15 23,805 19,892
- Other financial liabilities 16 25 540
Total non-current liabilities 23,830 20,432
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
- Borrowings 17 10,931 1,996
Trade payables 18
- total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises: and 2 1
- total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro 13 16
and small enterprise
- Other financial liabilities 19 860 29
Other current liabilities 20 7 7
Current tax liabilities (net) 21 0 2
Total current liabilities 11,813 2,051
Total liabilities 35,643 22,483
Total equity and liabilities 2,01,911 1,88,524
Material accounting policies 3
See the accompanying notes to the Condensed standalone financial 4-37
statements
As per our report of even date attached.
For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants K Raheja Corp Investment Managers Private Limited
{Formerly known as K Raheja Corp Investment Managers LLP)
Firm’s registration number: 117366W/W-100018 (actinfy as the Manager to Mindspace Business Parks REIT) : W
| frarde
/ e
Nilesh Shah . |Neel C Raheja esh Nair Preeti N. Chheda
Partner Dire¥tor Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer
Membership number: 49660 DIN: 00029010
Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai
Date : 30 April 2024 Date : 30 April 2024 Date : 30 April 2024 Date : 30 April 2024
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Mindspace Business Park REIT
RN:IN{REIT{IQ-ZD{G{B

Condensed Standalone Statement of changes in Unitholder's Equity
{all amounts are in Rs. Millions unless otherwise stated)

Corpus

Particulars Amount
Balance as on 1 April 2022 0
Add : Changes during the year -
Balance as on 31 March 2023 0
Balance as on 1 April 2023 0
Add : Changes during the year -
Closing balance as at 31 March 2024 0
Unit Capital

Particulars Amount
Balance as on 1 April 2022 1,62,839
Add : Changes during the year -
Balance as on 31 March 2023 1,62,839
Balance as on 1 April 2023 1,62,839
Add : Changes during the year -
Closing balance as at 31 March 2024 1,62,839
Other equity

Particulars Retained Earnings
Balance as on 1 April 2022 2,919
Profit for the year ended 31 March 2023 11,491
Less: Distribution to Unit holders for the quarter ended 31 March 2022* {2,734)
Less: Distribution to Unit holders for the quarter ended 30 June 2022* (2,811)
Less: Distribution to Unit holders for the quarter ended 30 September 2022* (2,817)
Less: Distribution to Unit holders for the quarter ended 31 December 2022* (2,846)
Balance at 31 March 2023 3,202
Balance as on 1 April 2023 3,202
Profit for the year ended 31 March 2024 11,612
Less: Distribution to Unit holders for the quarter ended 31 March 2023* (2,852)
Less: Distribution to Unit holders for the quarter ended 30 June 2023* (2,846)
Less: Distribution to Unitholders for the quarter ended 30 September 2023* (2,841)
Less: Distribution to Unitholders for the quarter ended 31 December 2023* {2,846)
Balance at 31 March 2024 3,429

*The distributions made by Mindspace REIT to its Unit holders are based on the Net Distributable Cash flows (NDCF) of Mindspace REIT under the

REIT Regulations.
See the accompanying notes to the Condensed 4-37
standalone financial statements

As per our report of even date attached.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants K Raheja Corp Investment Managers Private Limited

{Formerly known as K Raheja Corp Investment Managers LLP)
Firm’s registration number; 117366W/W-100018 (acting as the Manager to Mindspace Business Parks REIT)

N

Nilesh Shah i eel C. eja Ram Nair( Preeti N. Chheda
Partner \ or Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer
Membership number: 49660 DIN: 00029010
Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai
Date : 30 April 2024 Date : 30 April 2024 Date : 30 April 2024 Date : 30 April 2024

A



MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT
RN:IN/REIT/19-20/003

Staternent of Net Assets at fair value

(all amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated)

Disclosure pursuant to SEBI circular No. CIR/IMD/DF/146/2016

A) Statement of Net Assets at fair value
S.No Particulars Unit of As at 31 March 2024 {Audited) As at 31 March 2023 (Audited)
measurement Book Value Fair Value Book Value Fair Value
A Assets Rs in million 201,911 256,820 188,524 238,629
B Liabilities Rsin million 35,643 35,643 22,483 22,483
C Net Assets (A-B) Rs in million 166,268 221,177 166,041 216,146
D No. of units Numbers 593,018,182 593,018,182 593,018,182 593,018,182
E NAV (C/D) Rs 280 373 280 364
Notes
1)  Measurement of fair values:
The fair values of Investments in SPV are computed basis the fair value of Investment property, Property, plant and equipment, Investment property under construction and Capital work-in-
progress which are solely based on an independent valuation performed by an external property valuer ("independent valuer"), having appropriately recognised professional qualification
and recent experience in the location and category of the properties being valued.
Other assets include cash and cash equivalents and other working capital balances which are not factored in the discounted cashflow method used in determining the fair value of
investment property, investment property under development, property, plant and equipment, capital work-in-progress and intangibles.
Valuation Technique
The fair value measurement for all of the Investment property, Property, plant and equipment, Investment property under construction and Capital work-in-progress {excluding Pocharam)
has been categorized as a Level 3 fair value based on the inputs to the valuation technigue used. The valuer has followed a Discounted Cash Flow method, except for valuation of land for
future development where the valuer has adopted Market Approach or Government Benchmark Price / Guideline Value as may be applicable. The Discounted Cash Flow valuation model
considers the present value of net cash flows to be generated from the respective properties, taking into account the expected rental growth rate, vacancy period, occupancy rate, and lease
incentive costs. The expected net cash flows are discounted using the risk adjusted discount rates. Among other factors, the discount rate estimation considers the quality of a building and
its location (prime vs secondary), tenant credit quality, lease terms and investor return expectations from such properties.
The existing buildings in Pocharam are unoccupied. Considering the absence of leasing demand in the near term, and therefore no expected income stream and also since the asset is held
for sale, the Valuer has opted for the Cost Approach. Under ttis method, the land component is assessed using the Comparable Sales/Quoted Instances Method under the Market Approach
while building and plant & machinery components have been valued using the Depreciated Replacement Cost Method.
23 Break up of Net asset value as at 31 March 2024
Particulars Asat31March2024  Asat 31 Maich 2023
(Audited) (Audited)
Fair Value of Investments in SPVs 209,012 203,208
Add: Other assets* 47,808 35,421
Less: Liabilities (35,643) (22,483)
Net Assets 221,177 216,146
*QOther assets includes cash and cash equivalents, loans to spvs and other working capital balances which are not factored in the discounted cashflow method used in determining the fair
value of investment property, investment property under development, property, plant and equipment, capital work-in-progress and intangibles.
3)  The Trust holds investment in SPVs which in turn hold the properties. Hence, the breakup of property wise fair values has been disclosed in the Condensed Consolidated financial
statements.
B} Statement of Total Returns at fair value
S.No Particulars For the half year ended For the half year ended| For the half year ended | For the year For the year
' ended ended
31 March 2024 30 September 2023 31 March 2023 31 March 2024 | 31 March 2023
{Unaudited*) {Unaudited) {Unaudited*) {Audited) {Audited)
Total comprehensive income 5,813 5,799 5,860 11,612 11,491
B Add : Changes in fair value not recognised in the other
comprehensive income and other adjustments
6,207 {(1,401) 2,907 4,806 6,346
C=(A+B) Total Return 12,020 4,398 8,767 16,418 17,837

Note: Total Return for the purpose of Standalone financial statements has been considered based on the total return of Mindspace REIT on a consolidated basis adjusted for consolidation
adjustments.

*refer note 34
As per our report of even date attached.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

K Raheja Corp Investment Managers Private Limited
(Formerly known as K Raheja Corp Investment Managers LLP)
(a¢ting as the Manager to Mindspace Business Parks REIT)

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm’s registration number: 117366W/W-100018

/N g;m/

{

Ra é/a\ oA

Nilesh Shah heja Preeti N. Chheda
Partner rettor Chief Executive Officer  Chief Financial Officer
Membership number: 49660 : 00029010

Place: Mumbai
Date : 30 April 2024

Place: Mumbai
Date : 30 April 2024

Place: Mumbai
Date : 30 April 2024

Place: Mumbai
Date : 30 April 2024
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MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT

RN:IN/REIT/19-20/003

Notes to the Condensed Standalone Financial Statements
(all amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated)

1 Mindspace REIT Information

Mindspace Business Parks REIT (‘Mindspace REIT' or 'Trust') was set up on 18 November 2019 at Mumbai, Maharashtra, India as a contributory,
determinate and irrevocable trust under the provisions of the Indian Trusts Act, 1882, pursuant to a trust deed dated 18 November 2019.
Mindspace REIT was registered with Securities and Exchange Board of India ('SEB!') on 10 December 2019, at Mumbai as a Real Estate Investment
Trust (‘REIT') pursuant to the SEBI (Real Estate Investment Trusts) Regulations, 2014 as amended from time to time including guidelines and
circulars issued thereunder {'REIT Regulations') having registration number IN/REIT/19-20/0003. The Trust's principal place of business address is

at Raheja Tower, Level 8, Block ‘G’, C-30, Bandra Kurla Complex, Mumbai - 400 051.

Anbee Constructions LLP (ACL) and Cape Trading LLP (‘CTL’) are the sponsors of Mindspace REIT. The Trustee to Mindspace REIT is Axis Trustee

Services Limited (the ‘Trustee’) and the Manager for Mindspace REIT is K Raheja Corp Investment Managers Private Limited (the ‘Manager’).

The objectives and principal activity of Mindspace REIT is to carry on the activity of a real estate investment trust, as permissible under the REIT
Regulations, to raise funds through the REIT, to make investments in accordance with the REIT Regulations and the investment strategy and to
carry on the activities as may be required for operating the REIT, including incidental and ancillary matters thereto.

The units of the Trust were listed on the BSE Limited (BSE) and National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE) on 7 August 2020.
The brief activities and shareholding pattern of the Special Purpose Vehicles ('SPVs') are provided below:

Name of the SPV

Activities

Equity Shareholding (in
percentage)
as at 31 March 2024

Equity Shareholding (in
percentage)
as at 31 March 2023

Mindspace Business Parks
Private Limited (MBPPL)

The SPV is engaged in real estate development
projects such as Special Economic Zone (SEZ),
Information Technology Parks and other commercial
assets. The SPV has its projects in Airoli (Navi
Mumbai), Pune and Pocharam (Hyderabad). The SPV
is a deemed distribution licensee pursuant to which it
can distribute power to the SEZ tenants within the
Park. It commenced distribution of electricity in its
project at Airoli, Navi Mumbai from 9 April 2015 .

Mindspace REIT : 100%

Mindspace REIT : 100%

Gigaplex Estate Private
Limited (Gigaplex)

The SPV is engaged in real estate development
projects such as Special Economic Zone (SEZ),
Information Technology Parks and other commercial
assets. The SPV has its projects in Airoli (Navi
Mumbai). The SPV is a deemed distribution licensee
pursuant to which it can distribute power to the SEZ
tenants within the Park. It commenced distribution
of electricity in its project at Airoli, Navi Mumbai
from 19 April 2016.

Mindspace REIT : 100%

Mindspace REIT : 100%




MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT
RN:IN/REIT/19-20/003

Notes to the Condensed Standalone Financial Statements

(all amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated)

Equity Shareholding (in Equity Shareholding (in
Name of the SPV Activities percentage) percentage)
as at 31 March 2024 as at 31 March 2023
Sundew Properties Limited The SPV is engaged in development and|Mindspace REIT:89% Mindspace REIT : 89%

(Sundew)

leasing/licensing of Information Technology (IT) park,
SEZ to different customers in Hyderabad.

Telangana State Industrial
Infrastructure Corporation
Limited (11%)

Telangana State Industrial
Infrastructure Corporation
Limited (11%)

Intime Properties Limited
(Intime)

The SPV is engaged in development and
leasing/licensing of IT park to different customers in

Hyderabad.

Mindspace REIT : 89%
Telangana State Industrial
Infrastructure Corporation
Limited (11%)

Mindspace REIT : 89%
Telangana State Industrial
infrastructure Corporation
Limited (11%)

K. Raheja IT Park (Hyderabad)
Limited (KRIT)

The SPV is engaged in development and
leasing/licensing of IT park to different customers in

Hyderabad.

Mindspace REIT : 89%
Telangana State Industrial
Infrastructure Corporation
Limited (11%)

Mindspace REIT : 89%
Telangana State Industrial
Infrastructure Corporation
Limited (11%)

KRC Infrastructure And
Projects Private Limited (KRC
infra)

The SPV is engaged in real estate development
projects such as Special Economic Zone (SEZ) and
Information Technology Parks. The SPV has its
project in Kharadi Pune.The SPV is a deemed
distribution licensee pursuant to which it can
distribute power to the SEZ tenants within the Park.
It commenced distribution of electricity in its project
at Kharadi, Pune from 1 June 2019.

The SPV is also engaged in Facility Management
services.

Mindspace REIT : 100%

Mindspace REIT : 100%

Horizonview Properties
Private Limited (Horizonview)

The SPV is engaged in development and
leasing/licensing of IT park to different customers in
Chennai.

Mindspace REIT : 100%

Mindspace REIT : 100%

Avacado Properties and
Trading Private Limited
(Avacado)

The SPV has developed an Industrial park for the
purpose of letting out to different customers in
Paradigm building at Malad-Mumbai and is being
maintained and operated by the SPV. The SPV also
has a commercial project in Bandra Kurla Complex,
Mumbai.

Mindspace REIT : 100%

Mindspace REIT : 100%




MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT

RN:IN/REIT/19-20/003

Notes to the Condensed Standalone Financial Statements
(all amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated)

2

a)

b)

c)

Basis of Preparation

The Condensed Standalone Financial Statements of Mindspace Business Parks REIT comprises the Condensed Standalone Balance Sheet as at 31
March 2024, the Condensed Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss, including other comprehensive income, the Condensed Standalone
Statement of Cash Flow for the quarter, half year and year ended 31 March, 2024, the Condensed Standalone Statement of Changes in Unitholders
Equity for the year ended 31 March, 2024, the Statement of Net Distributable Cashflows of Mindspace Business Parks REIT for the quarter, half
year and year ended 31 March 2024, the Statement of Net Assets at Fair Value as at 31 March 2024, the Statement of Total Returns at Fair Value
for the half year and year ended 31 March 2024 and a summary of the material accounting policies and select explanatory information and other
additional financial disclosures.

The condensed standalone interim financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of Securities and Exchange
Board of India (Real Estate Investment Trusts) Regulations, 2014 as amended from time to time including guidelines and circulars issued
thereunder read with SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/DDHS-PoD-2/P/CIR/2023/116 dated 6 July 2023 (“the REIT regulations"); Regulation 52 and
Regulation 54 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Regquirements) Regulations 2015, as amended from time to time ("Listing
Regulations"); Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 34 “Interim Financial Reporting”, as prescribed in Rule 2(1)(a) of the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 {as amended) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, to the extent not inconsistent with
the REIT regulations. (refer rote 13 on presentation of “Unit Capital” as “Equity” instead of compound instruments under Ind AS 32 - Financial
Instruments: Presentation).

Accordingly, these condensed standalone financial statements do not include all the information required for a complete set of financial
statements. These condensed standalone financial statements should be read in conjunction with the standalone financial statements of the Trust
for the year ended 31 March 2024.

Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting standard is initially adopted or a revision to an existing
accounting standard requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use.

These Condensed Standalone Financial Statements were authorised for issue in accordance with the resolution passed by the Board of Directors of
the Manager on April 30, 2024.
Statement of compliance to Ind-AS
These Condensed Standalone financial statements for the quarter and year ended 31 March 2024 have been prepared in accordance with Indian
Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 34 “Interim Financial Reporting”,as prescribed in Rule 2(1)(a) of the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015 (as amended) to the extent not inconsistent with the REIT regulations as more fully described above and Note 14 to the condensed
standalone financial statements.
Material accounting policies
Functional and Presentation Currency
The Condensed Standalone Financial Statements are presented in Indian Rupees, which is also Mindspace REIT functional currency in which
Mindspace REIT operates. All financial information presented in Indian Rupees has been rounded off to the nearest million except otherwise
stated.

Basis of measurement
These Condensed Standalone Financial Statements are prepared on the historical cost basis, except for certain financial assets and liabilities
(refer accounting policy regarding financial instrument) measured at fair values.

Use of judgments and estimates
The preparation of the Condensed Standalone Financial Statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles in India (Ind
AS) requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.

Actual results could differ from those estimates.
Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on a periodic basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in

which the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected.
Information about critical judgements in applying accounting policies that have the most material effect on the amounts recognised in the

Condensed Standalone Financial Statements is included in the following notes:
(i) Presentation of “Unit Capital” as “Equity” in accordance with the SEBI REIT Regulations instead of compound instrument (Note no 13)

(i) Bnpairment and Fair valuation of Investments in SPVs and impairment of loans to SPVs.
(iiii) recognition and measurement of provisions for contingencies and disclosure of contingent liabilities (Note 30 (a))
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d)

e)

Current versus non-current classification

Mindspace REIT presents assets and liabilities in the Balance Sheet based on current/ non-current classification:

An asset is treated as current when it is:

- Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle;

- Held primarily for the purpose of trading;

- Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting date; or

- Cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting
date.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:

- It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle;

- It is held primarily for the purpose of trading;

- It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting date; or

- There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.
Mindspace REIT classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.
The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents. Mindspace
REIT has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

Measurement of fair values

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique.
In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability and how
market participants would take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.

Mindspace REIT accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values, for both financial and non-financial assets and
liabilities. Mindspace REIT has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair values.

Mindspace REIT regularly reviews significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments. If third party information is used to measure fair
values then the finance team assesses the evidence obtained from the third parties to support the conclusion that such valuations meet the
requirements of Ind AS, including the level in the fair value hierarchy in which such valuations should be classified.

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, Mindspace REIT uses observable market data as far as possible. Fair values are
categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows:

e Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that entity can access on measurement date.

o Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or
indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

« Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value
measurement is categorised in its entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire
measurement.
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3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

35

Impairment of assets

Mindspace REIT assesses at each reporting date, whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired. If any such indication exists, the
trust estimates the recoverable amount of the asset. The recoverable amount of the assets {or where applicable that of the cash generating unit to
which the asset belongs) is estimated as the higher of its net selling price and its value in use. Value in use is the present value of estimated future
cash flows (discounted using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset) expected to arise from the continuing use of the assets and from its disposal at the end of its useful life. In determining fair value less
costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. For the purpose of impairment testing, assets that cannot be tested
individually are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of
the cash inflows of other assets or CGU. An impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying amount of an asset or the cash-generating unit to
which it belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment loss is recognised in the Condensed Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate
of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in the Condensed Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss.

Asset Acquisition

If the acquisition of an asset or a group of assets does not constitute a business, Mindspace REIT identifies and recognises the individual
identifiable assets acquired (including those assets that meet the definition of, and recognition criteria for, intangible assets in Ind AS 38, Intangible
Assets) and liabilities assumed. The cost of the group is allocated to the individual identifiable assets and liabilities on the basis of their relative fair
values at the date of purchase and no goodwill is recognised.

Foreign currency transactions

Transactions denominated in foreign currency are recorded at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of transactions. Exchange differences
arising on foreign exchange transactions settled during the period/ year are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss of the period/ year.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency, which are outstanding as at the end of the period and not covered by forward
contracts, are translated at the end of the period at the closing exchange rate and the resultant exchange differences are recognised in the
Condensed Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss. Non-monetary foreign currency items are carried at cost.

Compound financial instruments

The component parts of compound financial instruments issued by Mindspace REIT are classified separately as financial liabilities and equity in
accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument. A conversion
option that will be settled by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed number of the Trust's own equity
instruments is an equity instrument.

At the date of issue, the fair value of the liability component is estimated using the prevailing market interest rate for similar non-convertible
instruments. This amount is recorded as a liability on an amortised cost basis using the effective interest method until extinguished upon
conversion or at the instrument’s maturity date.

The conversion option classified as equity is determined by deducting the amount of the liability component from the fair value of the compound
instrument as a whole. This is recognised and included in equity, net of income tax effects, and is not subsequently remeasured.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible instruments are allocated to the liability and equity components in proportion to the
allocation of the gross proceeds. Transaction costs relating to the equity component are recognised directly in equity. Transaction costs relating to
the liability component are included in the carrying amount of the liability component and are amortised over the lives of the convertible
instrument using the effective interest method.

Embedded derivatives

Derivatives embedded in a host contract that is an asset within the scope of Ind AS 109 are not separated. Financial assets with embedded
derivatives are considered in their entirety when determining whether their cash flows are solely payment of principal and interest.

Embedded derivatives closely related to the host contracts are not separated. Derivatives embedded in all other host contract are separated only if
the economic characteristics and risks of the embedded derivative are not closely related to the economic characteristics and risks of the host and
are measured at fair value through profit or loss.
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3.6

3.7

Tax expense

Income tax expense comprises current tax and deferred tax charge or credit. It is recognised in the Condensed Standalone Statement of Profit and
Loss except to the extent that it relates to an item recognised directly in equity or in other comprehensive income in which case, the current and
deferred tax are also recognised in equity and other comprehensive income respectively.

a) Current tax
Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income for the period and any adjustment to the tax payable or
receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of current tax reflects the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid after
considering the uncertainty, if any, related to income taxes. It is measured using tax rates (and tax laws) enacted or substantively enacted by
end of reporting period.
Current tax assets and liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts, and it is intended to
realise the asset and settle the liability on a net basis or simultaneously.

b} Deferred tax
Deferred tax asset/ liability is recognized on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the Condensed
Standalone Financial Statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax assets and liabilities
are measured that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, using the tax rates and tax laws that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which Mindspace
REIT expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognized for all
deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilized. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognized if the temporary difference arises from the
initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and liabilities, and they relate to
income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax
liabilities and assets on a net basis or their tax assets and liabilities will be realized simultaneously.

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

Provisions are recognised when Mindspace REIT has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event, it is probable that the
Trust will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. The amount recognised as a
provision is the best estimate of the consideration net of recoveries if any, required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting
period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future
cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The
unwinding of the discount is recognised as finance cost.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may, but will probably not, require an outflow of
resources. When there is a possible obligation of a present obligation in respect of which the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no
provision or disclosure is made.

Provisions for onerous contracts, i.e. contracts where the expected unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations under the contract exceed the
economic benefits expected to be received under it, are recognised when it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits
will be required to settle a present obligation as a result of an obligating event, based on a reliable estimate of such obligation. If the effect of the
time value of money is material, provisions are discounted.

A contingent asset is disclosed when there would be a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of Mindspace REIT.

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.
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3.8

3.9

a)

b)

Investment in SPVs

The Company has elected to recognize its investments in SPVs at cost in accordance with the option available in Ind AS 27, ‘Separate Financial
Statements’. The details of such investments are given in Note 4.

Assets representing investments in SPVs are reviewed for impairment,whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that carrying amount
may not be recoverable. Such circumstances include, though are not limited to, significant or sustained decline in revenues or earnings and
material adverse changes in the economic environment.

Financial instruments

1

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets and/or financial liabilities are recognised when Mindspace REIT becomes party to a contract embodying the related financial
instruments. All financial assets, financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss) are added to or deducted from as the case may be, the fair value of such assets or liabilities, on initial recognition. Transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately
in the Condensed Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss.

Financial assets:

Classification of financial assets:

(i) Mindspace REIT classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:
- those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive income, or through the Statement of Profit
and Loss), and
- those measured at amortised cost.

(i)  The classification is done depending upon"Mindspace REIT business mode! for managing the financial assets and the contractual terms

of the cash flows.
(i) For investments in debt instruments, this will depend on the business model in which the investment is held.

(iv)

Mindspace REIT reclassifies debt investments when and only when its business model for managing those assets changes.

Subsequent Measurement

(i) Investment in Debt instruments:
Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on Mindspace REIT business model for managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. There are three measurement categories into which the Trust classifies its debt instruments:

Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost if these financial assets are held within a business whose objective is to
hold these assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

Financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if these financial assets are held within
a business whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows that give rise on specified dates to solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding and by selling financial assets.

Financial assets at fair value through the Statement of Profit and Loss (FVTPL)

Financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value through the Statement of Profit and Loss unless it is measured at amortised
cost or fair value through other comprehensive income on initial recognition. The transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are immediately recognised in the Statement of Profit
and Loss.
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<)

d)

Impairment of financial assets:
The Mindspace REIT applies the expected credit loss model for recognising impairment loss on financial assets measured at amortised cost,
lease receivables, trade receivables, other contractual rights to receive cash or other financial asset. For trade receivables, the Mindspace
Group measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses. Further, for the purpose of measuring lifetime
expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables, the Mindspace Group has used a practical expedient as permitted under Ind AS 109. This
expected credit loss allowance is computed based on a provision matrix which takes into account historical credit loss experience and
adjusted for forward-looking information.
Derecognition of financial assets:
A financial asset is primarily derecognised when:
(i) the right to receive cash flows from the asset has expired, or
(ii) Mindspace REIT has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset; and

Mindspace REIT has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or

Mindspace REIT has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of

the asset.
On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety (other than investments in equity instruments at FVOCI), the differences between

the carrying amounts measured at the date of derecognition and the consideration received is recognised in Statement of Profit and
Loss. Any interest in transferred financial assets that is created or retained by Mindspace REIT is recogniseéd as a separate asset or
liability.

3.10 Financial liabiiities and equity instruments

{a)

Classification as debt or equity
Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by Mindspace REIT are classified according to the substance of the contractuat

arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.
Financial Liabilities

Recognition, measurement and classification
Financial liabilities are classified as either held at a) fair value through the Statement of Profit and Loss, or b) at amortised cost. Management

determines the classification of its financial liabilities at the time of initial recognition or, where applicable, at the time of reclassification.

Mindspace REIT financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings and derivative financial instruments. Subsequent
measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification as fair value through the Statement of Profit and Loss or at amortised cost.
All changes in fair value of financial liabilities classified as FVTPL are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Amortised cost category
is applicable to loans and borrowings, trade and other payables. After initial recognition the financial liabilities are measured at amortised
cost using the Effective Interest Rate method.

Derecognition

A financial fiability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. Gains and losses are
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the liabilities are derecognised.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and presented on net basis in the Balance Sheet when there is a currently enforceable legal
right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention either to settle on a net basis or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities

simultaneously.

3.11 Financial guarantee contracts

3.12

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because
a specified debtor fails to make payments when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Financial guarantee-contract are measured initially at the fair value and in accordance with Ind AS 109 unless on a case to case basis Mindspace
REIT elects to account for financial.guarantee as Insurance Contracts as specified under Ind AS 104.

Revenue Recognition
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. This inter alia involves discounting of the consideration due to

the present valuz if payment extends beyond normal credit terms.

Revenue is recognised when recovery of the consideration is probable and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably.
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3.13

3.14

3.15

3.16

3.17

3.18

Recognition of dividend income, interest income

Dividend income is recognised in profit or loss on the date on which Mindspace REIT's right to receive payment is established.
Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method. The ‘effective interest rate’ is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future

cash receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset.

In calculating interest income, the effective interest rate is applied to the gross carrying amount of the asset (when the asset is not credit-
impaired). However, for financial assets that have become credit-impaired subsequent to initial recognition, interest income is calculated by
applying the effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset. If the asset is no longer credit-impaired, then the calculation of
interest income reverts to the gross basis.

Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs are interest and other costs (including exchange differences relating to foreign currency borrowings to the extent that they are

regarded as an adjustment to interest costs) incurred in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing costs directly attributable to
acquisition or construction of an asset which necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use are capitalised as part

of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

Interest expense is recognised using the effective interest method. The ‘effective interest rate’ is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash payments through tiie expected life of the financial instrument to the amortised cost of the financial liability. In calculating interest expense,
the effective interest rate is applied to the amortised cost of the liability.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprises of cash at bank and on hand, demand deposits, other short term, highly liguid investments with original
maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value.

Cash distribution to unit holders

Mindspace REIT recognises a liability to make cash distributions to Unitholders when the distribution is authorised and a legal obligation has been
created. As per the REIT Regulations, a distribution is authorised when it is approved by the Board of Directors of the Manager. A corresponding

amount is recognised directly in equity.

Condensed Standalone Statement of Cash flows
Cash flow is reported using the indirect method, whereby net profit before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature and
any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of

Mindspace REIT are segregated.
For the purpose of the Statement of Cash Flow, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined above, net of

outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the Mindspace REIT's cash management.

Subsequent events

The Condensed Standalone Financial Statements are adjusted to reflect events that occur after the reporting date but before the Financial
Statements are issued. The Financial Statements have their own date of authorisation. Therefore, when preparing the Financial Statements,
management considers events up to the date of authorisation of these financial statements.

Earnings per unit

The basic earnings per unit is computed by dividing the net profit/ {loss) attributable to the unit holders of the REIT by the weighted average
number of units outstanding during the reporting period. The number of units used in computing diluted earnings/ {loss) per unit comprises the
weighted average units considered for deriving basic earnings/ (loss) per unit and also the weighted average number of units which could have
been issued on the conversion of all dilutive potential units.

Dilutive potential units are deemed converted as of the beginning of the reporting date, unless they have been issued at a later date. In computing
diluted earnings per unit, only potential equity units that are dilutive and which either reduces earnings per share or increase loss per units are
included.
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3.19

3.20

3.21

3.22

Earnings before finance costs and tax
Mindspace REIT has elected to present earnings before finance cost and tax as a separate line item on the face of the Condensed Standalone

Statement of Profit and Loss. Mindspace REIT measures earnings before finance cost and tax on the basis of profit/ (loss) from continuing

operations. In its measurement, Mindspace REIT does not include finance costs and tax expense.

Errors and estimates

Mindspace REIT revises its accounting policies if the change is required due to a change in Ind AS or if the change will provide more relevant and
reliable information to the users of the Financial Statement. Changes in accounting policies are applied retrospectively.

A change in an accounting estimate that results in changes in the carrying amounts of recognised assets or liabilities or to profit or loss is applied

prospectively in the period(s) of change.
Discovery of errors results in revisions retrospectively by restating the comparative amounts of assets, liabilities and equity of the earliest prior
period in which the error is discovered. The opening balances of the earliest period presented are also restated.

Distributions
The Net Distributable Cash Flows of Mindspace REIT are based on the cash flows generated from Mindspace REIT’s assets and investments.

In terms of the Distribution Policy and the REIT Regulations, not less than 90% of the NDCF of each of the Asset SPVs is required to be distributed
to Mindspace REIT, in proportion of thair shareholding in the Asset SPV, subject to applicable provisions of the Companies Act. Presently, NDCF to
be received by Mindspace REIT from the Asset SPVs may be in the form of dividends, interest income, principal loan repayment, proceeds of any
capital reduction or buyback from the Asset SPVs, sale proceeds out of disposal of investments if any or assets directly held by Mindspace REIT or

as specifically permitted under the Trust Deed or in such other form as may be permissible under the applicable law.
The Manager is required to and shall declare and distribute at least 90% of the NDCF of Mindspace REIT as distributions (“REIT Distributions”) to
the Unitholders. Such REIT Distributions shall be declared and made for every quarter of a Financial Year.

Amended standards

(a) The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Amendment Rules 2023 dated March 31, 2023 to
amend the following Ind AS which are effective from Aprit 01, 2023:
Ind AS 1 — Presentation of Financial Statements
The amendments require companies to disclose their material accounting policies rather than their significant accounting policies. Accounting
policy information, together with other information, is material when it can reasonably be expected to influence decisions of primary users of

i

general purpose financial statements. This amendment does not have any significant impact in the financial statements.

Ind AS 12 — Income Taxes

The amendments clarify how companies account for deferred tax on transactions such as leases and decommissioning obligations. The
amendments narrowed the scope of the recognition exemption in paragraphs 15 and 24 of Ind AS 12 (recognition exemption) so that it no
longer applies to transactions that, on initial recognition, give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences. This amendment

does not have any significant impact in the financial statements.

Ind AS 8 — Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors

The amendments will help entities to distinguish between accounting policies and accounting estimates. The definition of a change in
accounting estimates has been replaced with a definition of accounting estimates. Under the new definition, accounting estimates are
“monetary amounts in financial statements that are subject to measurement uncertainty”. Entities develop accounting estimates if
accounting policies require items in financial statements to be measured in a way that involves measurement uncertainty. This amendment
does not have any significant impact in the financial statements.

There were certain amendments to standards and interpretations which are applicable for the first time for the year ended 31 March 2024,
but either the same are not relevant or do not have an impact on the condensed standalone financial statements.
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4

Non-current investments

As at As at
Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Unquoted Investments in SPVs (at cost)
(refer note below)
- 39,75,000 (31 March 2023: 39,75,000) equity shares of Avacado Properties and Trading Private 9,482 9,482
Limited of Rs.10 each, fully paid up
-9,99,90,735 (31 March 2023: 11,765) equity shares of Horizonview Properties Private Limited of 1,000 0
Rs.10 each, fully paid up*
- 5,88,235 (31 March 2023: 5,88,235) equity shares of KRC Infrastructure And Projects Private 6,868 6,868
Limited of Rs.10 each, fully paid up
-1,96,01,403 (31 March 2023: 1,96,01,403) equity shares of Gigaplex Estate Private Limited of 13,121 13,121
Rs.1 each, fully paid up
- 2,50,71,875 {31 March 2023: 2,50,71,875) equity shares of Sundew Properties Limited of Rs.10 33,722 33,722
each, fully paid up
- 12,03,033 (31 March 2023: 12,03,033) equity shares of Intime Properties Limited of Rs.10 each, 15,478 15,478
fully paid up '
-1,78,00,000 (31 March 2023: 1,78,00,000) equity shares of K. Raheja IT Park (Hyderabad) Limited 25,618 25,618
of Rs.10 each, fully paid up
- 81,513 (31 March 2023: 81,513) equity shares of Mindspace Business Parks Private Limited of 48,814 48,814
Rs.10 each, fully paid up
Total 154,103 153,103

Note: At the time of initial public offer, the Trust has issued units as consideration to acquire these investments wherein the tradable REIT Unit

has been issued at Rs 275 each.

*During the current year, Mindspace REIT has further invested Rs. 999.79 Mn towards right issue of 9,99,78,970 equity shares of Horizonview

Properties Private Limited.
Refer Note 1 for details of % shareholding in the SPVs held by Mindspace REIT.
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5

Loans (Non current)

Particulars As at As at

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Unsecured, considered good
Loan to SPVs- (Refer note 29) 32,937 29,879
Total 32,937 29,879

Note : Mindspace REIT has given loan amounting Rs. 45,869 million and repayment done by SPVs amounting Rs.33,910 million during the
year ended 31 March 2024 to Gigaplex, Avacado , Horizonview, Sundew, KRC Infra, MBPPL and KRIT and the outstanding balance as at
end of 31 March 2024 is Rs. 43,818 million (including Loans to SPVs of current nature amounting to Rs. 10,881 million) (31 March 2023

Rs. 31,859 million, including Loans to SPVs of current nature amounting to Rs. 1,980 million)  refer note 8).

Security: Unsecured

Interest : 8.55% -8.60% per annum for the year ended 31 March 2024 (31 March 2023 - 7.22% - 8.40% per annum} in accordance with
interest rate policy adopted by Mindspace REIT.

Terms of repayment:

a) Bullet repayment of Rs. 9,054 million on date falling 15 years from the first disbursement date or such other date as may be mutually
agreed between the Lender and the Borrower in writing. (31 March 2023 - 9,969 million)

b) Bullet repayment of Rs. 4,470 million is due on 17 May 2024 and accordingly the same has been classified as current as on 31 March
2024. (31 March 2023 - 4,470 million) (refer note 8)

¢) Bullet repayment of Rs. 1,980 million was made on 16 December 2023 during the year ended 31 March 2024. The same was classified
as current as on 31 March 2023. (31 March 2023 - Rs. 1,980 miillion) (refer note 8)

d) Bullet repayment of Rs. 4,965 million is due on 31 December 2024 and accordingly the same has been classified as current as on 31
March 2024. (31 March 2023 - Rs. 4,965 million) (refer note 8)

e) Bullet repayment of Rs. 4,975 million is due on 27 July 2027, (31 March 2023 - Rs. 4,975 million)

f) Bullet repayment of Rs. 5,500 million is due on 13 April 2026. (31 March 2023 - Rs. 5,500 million)

g) Bullet repayment of Rs. 5,000 million is due on 30 June 2026. (31 March 2023 - Rs. Nil)

h) Bullet repayment of Rs. 5,004 million is due on 10 December 2026. (31 March 2023 - Rs. Nil}

i) Bullet repayment of Rs. 1,446 million is due on 06 June 2024 and accordingly the same has been classified as current as on 31 March
2024. (31 March 2023 - Rs. Nil) {refer note 8)

j) Bullet repayment of Rs. 3,404 million is due on 20 March 2027. (31 March 2023 - Rs. Nil}

Note: There are no Loans or Advances to Promoters, KMPs or related parties repayable on demand or having no terms or period of
repayment.

Other financial assets (Non-current)

Particulars As at As at

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Unsecured, considered good
Interest receivable on loan to SPVs - 530
Other receivables from related parties - (Refer note 29) - 31
Deposits 3
Total 3 564
Other non-current assets
Particulars As at As at

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Prepaid expenses 9
Total 9 2
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Loans {Current)

Particulars

As at
31 March 2024

As at
31 March 2023

Unsecured, considered good
Loan to SPVs- (Refer Note 5 and 29)

10,881

1,980

Total

10,881

1,980

Cash and cash equivalents

Particulars

As at
31 March 2024

As at
31 March 2023

Balances with banks
- in current accounts* (Refer note 29)

3,038

2,984

Total

3,038

2,984

*|ncludes balance with banks of Rs. 0 million (31 March 2023 Rs. 0 million ) for unpaid distributions.

Other financial assets (Current)

Particulars

As at
31 March 2024

As at
31 March 2023

Unsecured, considered good

Interest receivable on loan to SPVs- (Refer note 29) 926 -
Other receivables from related parties- (Refer note 29) 4 4
Other receivables from others 0 -
Total 930 4
Other current assets
Particulars As at As at

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Unsecured, considered good
Advance for supply of goods and rendering of services 2 1
Prepaid expenses 7 6
Balances with government authorities 1 1
Total 10 8

.
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12 Corpus
Particulars Amount
As at 1 April 2022 0
As at 31 March 2023 0
As at 1 April 2023 0
Closing balance as at 31 March 2024 0
13 Unit Capital
Particulars No. Amount
As at 1 April 2022 593,018,182 162,839
As at 31 March 2023 593,018,182 162,839
As at 1 April 2023 593,018,182 162,839
Closing Balance as at 31 March 2024 593,018,182 162,839

(a) Terms/rights attached to units and other disclosures
The Trust has only one class of Units. Each Unit represents an undivided beneficial interest in the Trust. Each holder of Units is entitled to one vote per unit. The Unitholders
have the right to receive at least 90% of the Net Distributable Cash Flows of the Trust on quarterly basis in accordance with REIT Regulations/ in terms of the Distribution
Palicy. The Board of directors of Investment Manager approves distributions. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of Units held by the Unitholders. The
Trust declares and pays distributions in Indian Rupees.

Under the provisions of the REIT Regulations, Mindspace Business Parks REIT is required to distribute to Linitholders not less than 90% of the net distributable cash flows of
Mindspace Business Parks REIT on half yearly basis for each financial year. Accordingly, a portion of the Unit Capital contains a contractual obligation of the Mindspace
Business Parks REIT to pay to its Unitholders cash distributions. Hence, the Unit Capital is a compound financial instrument which contains equity and liability components
in accordance with Ind AS 32 - Financial Instruments: Presentation. However, in accordance with SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/DDHS-PoD-2/P/CIR/2023/116 dated 6 July 2023
issued under the REIT Regulations, the Unitholders’ funds have been presented as “Equity” in order to comply with the requirements of Section H of Chapter 3 to the SEBI
master circular dated 6 July 2023 dealing with the minimum presentation and disclosure requirements for key financial statements. Consistent with Unit Capital being
classified as equity, the distributions to Unitholders is also presented in Statement of Changes in Unitholders' Equity when the distributions are approved by the Board of
Directors of Investment Manager.

(b} Unit holders holding more than 5 percent Units in Mindspace REIT

Name of the unit holder As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023
No of Units % holding No of Units % holding
Platinum Illumination A 2018 Trust 54,375,000 9.17% 54,375,000 9.17%
Anbee Constructions LLP 35,404,890 5.97% 35,404,890 5.97%
Cape Trading LLP 35,438,895 5.98% 35,404,890 5.97%
Chandru Lachmandas Raheja* 32,634,433 5.50% 32,634,433 5.50%
Capstan Trading LLP 41,095,719 6.93% 41,095,719 6.93%
Casa Maria Properties LLP 46,820,719 7.90% 46,820,719 7.90%
Palm Shelter Estate Development LLP 41,095,719 6.93% 41,095,719 6.93%
Raghukool Estate Developement LLP 42,004,546 7.08% 41,937,069 7.07%
K Raheja Corp Private Limited 36,596,296 6.17% 36,596,296 6.17%

* Excludes holding in for and on behalf of beneficiaries of lvory Property Trust.

(¢} The Trust has not allotted any fully paid-up units by way of bonus units nor has it bought back any class of units from the date of registration till the balance sheet date.
Further, the Trust had issued an aggregate of 36,363,600 Units for cash at Rs. 275 per unit and 556,654,582 Units at a price of Rs. 275 per unit for consideration other than
cash during the period of five years immediately preceding the balance sheet date.
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Note 1

Other Equity
Particulars As at As at

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Reserves and Surplus
Retained earnings* 3,429 3,202
Total 3,429 3,202

*Refer Condensed Standalone Statement of Changes in Unit holder’s Equity for detailed movement in other equity balances.

Retained earnings
The cumulative gain or loss arising from the operations which is retained and is recognized and accumulated under the heading of retained earnings.

At the end of the period/year, the profit after tax is transferred from the staternent of profit and loss to the retained earnings account.

Borrowings (Non-current}

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

10 year G-Sec linked secured, listed, senior, taxable, non-cumulative, rated, principal protected — market linkad, redeemable, - 3,741
non-convertible debentures (“vlarket Linked Debentures / MLD Series 2”) (net of issue expenses, at amortised cost) (31 March

2023 : 3,741 million) {refer Note 1)

Secured, listed, senior, taxable, non-cumulative, rated, redeemable non-convertible debentures (NCD Series 2) {net of issue - 750
expenses, at amortised cost) :31 March 2023 : 750 million) (refer Note 3)

Sacured, listed, senior, taxable, non-cumulative, rated, redeemable non-convertible debentures (NCD Series 3) (nzt of issue - 4,971
2xpenses, at amortised cost) (31 March 2023 : 4,971 million) (refer Note 4)

Secured, listed, senior, taxable, non-cumulative, rated, redeemable non-convertible debentures (NCD Series 4) (net of issue 4,976 4,969
expenses, at amortised cost) (31 March 2023 : 4,969 million) (refer Note 5)

Secured, listed, rated, non-cumulative, taxable, transferable, redeemable non-convertible debentures (“Mindspace REIT 5,473 5,461
Green Bond 1”) (net of issue expenses, at amortised cost) (31 March 2023 : 5,461 million) {refer Note 6)

Secured, listed, rated, non-cumulative, taxable, transferable, redeemable non -convertible debentures (NCD Series 6) {net of 4,978 -
issue expenses, at amortised cost) (31 March 2023 : NIL) (refer Note 7)

Secured, listed, rated, non-cumulative, taxable, transferable, redeemable non-convertible debentures (NCD Series 7) (net of 4,986 -
issue expenses, at amortised cost) (31 March 2023 : NIL) (refer Note 8)

Secured, listed, rated, non-cumulative, taxable, transferable, redeemable non-convertible debentures (NCD Series 8) (net of 3,392 -
issue expenses, at amortised cost) (31 March 2023 : NIL) (refer Note 9)

Total 23,805 19,892

In March 2021, Mindspace REIT issued 3,750 10 year G-Sec linked secured, listed, senior, taxable, non-cumulative, rated, principal protected — market linked, redeemable,
non-convertible debentures (“Market Linked Debentures / MLD Series 2”) having face value of Rs. 10,00,000 (Rupees ten lakhs only) each, amounting to Rs. 3,750,000,000
(Indian Rupees three thousand seven hundred fifty millions only). The tenure of the said MLD Series 2 is 38 months from 18 March 2021, being date of allotment of the MLD
Series 2 and coupon, if any shall be payable on the Scheduled Redemption Date i.e. on maturity on 17 May 2024. The coupon payoff structure is linked to condition where
the payoff will be fixed on the final fixing date i.e. 16 April 2024. If identified 10 year G-Sec's last traded price as on final fixing date is greater than 25% of its last traded
price as on initial fixing date i.e. 18 March 2021, the coupon rate will be 6.65% p.a. If identified 10 year G-Sec’s last traded price as on final fixing date is less than or equal to
25% of its last traded price as on initial fixing date, the coupon rate will be zero percent. As per the valuers report in respect of valuation of these MLD Series 2, the
probability of occurrence of such an event {last traded price of identified 10 year G-Sec on final fixing date being less than or equal to 25% of its last traded price on initial
fixing date) is remote and hence the value of the option considered as zero.

This MLD Series 2 was listed on BSE Limited on 22 March 2021.

Security terms

MLD Series 2 are secured by each of the following security in favour of the Debenture Trustee (holding for the benefit of the Debenture Holders):

a) First and exclusive charge being created by way of equitable mortgage on the aggregate leasable area of approximately 13,71,442 Sq. Ft. or thereabouts in buildings no.
12A and Units of Building 12B of Madhapur, Hyderabad (approx. 12,69,140 sq. ft. in building no.12A and approx. 1,02,302 sq. ft in building no. 12B) together with the
proportionate undivided right, title and interest in the notionally demarcated land admeasuring approximately 29,842 sq. mtrs on 'which the said two building no.12A and
12B, out of all those pieces and parcels of larger land that are situated, lying and being in Madhapur Village, Serilingampally Mandal, Ranga Reddy District, Hyderabad
(“Mortgaged Properties”), for MiD Series 2.
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Note 2

Note 3

b} First ranking exclusive charge created by way of a hypothecation over the Hypothecated Properties of MLD Series 2.

¢) A charge on the escrow account has been created, in which receivables of the Mortgaged Properties of Sundew shall be received, save and except any common area
maintenance charges payable to Sundew with respect to the maintenance of the mortgaged properties.

d) Corporate guarantee executed by Sundew.

Redemption terms:
a) MLD Series 2 are redeemable by way of bullet payment at the end of 38 months from the date of allotment, i.e. 17 May 2024 and accordingly the same has been

classified as current maturities of long term borrowings as on 31 March 2024 (Refer Note 17)

b) The Coupon shall be increased by 25 bps for every notch downgrade'in the rating by the Credit Rating Agency. In case rating is upgraded after any rating downgrade, the
Coupon shall be decreased by 25 bps for each upgrade. The Investors shall have the right to accelerate the MLD Series 2 if the rating is downgraded to A+.

¢) Upon occurrence of a mandatory redemption event, the Debenture Trustee may, by issuing not less than 30 {thirty) business days notice to the Issuer require the Issuer
to redeem in full, all the Debentures then outstanding by paying an amount equal to the total mandatory redemption amount in respect of each Debenture.

In December 2020, Mindspace Business Parks REIT issued 2,000 secured, listed, senior, taxable, non-cumulative, rated, redeemable, non-convertible debentures (“NCD
Series 1) having face value of Rs. 10,00,000 (Rupees ten lakhs only) each, amounting to Rs. 2,000,000,000 (Indian Rupees two thousand millions only) with a coupon rate of
6.45% p.a. payable quarterly beginning from the end of first full quarter from the date of allotment i.e. 31 March 2021, with last coupon payment on the scheduled
redemption date i.e. 16 December 2023. The tenure of the said NCD Series 1 is 36 months from 17 December 2020, being date of allotment.

This NCD Series 1 was listed on BSE Limited on 21 December 2020.

Security terms

NCD Series 1 are secured by each of the following security in favour of the Debenture Trustee (holding for the benefit of the NCD Holders):

a) First and exclusive charge registered by way of simple mortgage (including receivables arising therefrom) on the aggregate leasable area of approximately 414,599 Sq. Ft.
or thereabouts in buildings no. 1 and 5 of Commerzone Yerawada (approx. 43,200 sg. ft. in building no. 1 and approx. 371,399 in building no. 5) together with the
proportionate undivided right, title and interest in the notionally demarcated land admeasuring approximately 18,264 sq. mtrs on which the said two building no. 1 and 5,
out of all those pieces and parcels of larger land that are situated, lying and being in Village Yerawada, Taluka Haveli, District Pune (“Mortgaged Properties”) of NCD Series
1.

b) A charge on the escrow account in which receivables of the Mortgaged Properties shall be received save and except any common area maintenance charges payable to
MBBPL with respect to the maintenance of the mortgaged properties.

¢) Corporate guarantee was executed by MBPPL.

Redemption terms:

a) NCD Series 1 were redeemable by way of bullet repayment at the end of 36 months from the date of allotment, i.e. 16 December 2023 and accordingly the same has
been redeemed.

b) Interest is payable on the last day of each financial quarter in a year (starting from 31 March, 2021) until the scheduled redemption date.

¢) The Coupon shall be increased by 25 bps for every notch downgrade in the rating by the Credit Rating Agency. In case rating is upgraded after any rating downgrade, the
Coupon shall be decreased by 25 bps for each upgrade.

d) Upon occurrence of a mandatory redemption event, the Debenture Trustee may, by issuing not less than 30 (thirty) business days’ notice to the Issuer require the Issuer
to redeem in full, all the debentures then outstanding by paying an amount equal to the total mandatory redemption amount in respect of each debenture.

In March 2021, Mindspace Business Parks REIT issued 750 secured, listed, senior, taxable, non-cumulative, rated, redeemable, non-convertible debentures (“NCD Series 2”)
having face value of Rs. 10,00,000 (Rupees ten lakhs only) each, amounting to Rs. 75,00,00,000 (Rupees seventy five crores only) with a coupon rate of 6.6861% p.a. payable
quarterly beginning from the end of first full quarter from the date of allotment i.e. 30 June 2021, with last coupon payment on the scheduled redemption date i.e. 17 May
2024. The tenure of the said NCD Series 2 is 38 months from 18 March 2021, being date of allotment.

This NCD Series 2 was listed on BSE Limited on 22 March 2021.

Security terms

NCD Series 2 are secured by each of the following security in favour of the Debenture Trustee (holding for the benefit of the NCD Holders):

a) First and exclusive charge being registered by way of simple mortgage (including receivables arising therefrom) on the aggregate leasable area of approximately 151,460
Sq. Ft. or thereabouts in building no. 4 of Commerzone Yerawada together with the proportionate undivided right, title and interest in the noticnally demarcated land
admeasuring approximately 9,561 sq. mtrs on which the said building, out of all those pieces and parcels of larger land that are situated, lying and being in Village
Yerawada, Taluka Haveli, District Pune (“Mortgaged Properties”) of NCD Series 2.
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Note 4

Note 5

b) A charge on the escrow account has been created, in which receivables of the Mortgaged Properties shall be received, save and except any common area maintenance
charges payable to MBPPL with respect to the maintenance of the mortgaged properties.
¢) Corporate guarantee executed by MBPPL.

Redemption terms:

a) NCD Series 2 are redeemable by way of bullet repayment at the end of 38 months from the date of allotment, i.e. 17 May 2024 and accordingly the same has been
classified as current maturities of long term borrowings as on 31 March 2024 (Refer Note 17}

b) Interest is payable on the last day of each financial quarter in a year {starting from 30 June, 2021) until the scheduled redemption date.

¢) The Coupon shall be increased by 25 bps for every notch downgrade in the rating by the Credit Rating Agency. in case rating is upgraded after any rating downgrade, the
Coupon shall be decreased by 25 bps for each upgrade.

d) Upon occurrence of a mandatory redemption event, the Debenture Trustee may, by issuing not less than 30 (thirty) business days’ notice to the Issuer require the Issuer
to redeem in full, all the debentures then outstanding by paying an amount equal to the total mandatory redemption amount in respect of each debenture.

In February 2022, Mindspace Business Parks REIT issued 5,000 senior, listed, rated, secured, non-cumulative, texable, transferable, redeemable, non-convertible
debentures (“NCD Series 3”) having face value of Rs. 10,00,000 (Rupees ten lakhs only) each, amounting to Rs. 5,000,000,000 (Indian Rupees five thousand millions only)
with a coupon rate of 6.35% p.a. Coupon on the outstanding Nominal value of each debenture shall be applicable and computed from day to day ,be prorated on an actual/
actual basis for the actual number of days in the Coupon Period and be payable in arrears on the relevant Coupon Payment date to the Debenture Holder whose name is
appearing on the Register of Beneficial Owners as on the Record Date. The Issuer hereby aknowledges and agrees that there shall be no moratorium period for the
payment of Coupon.The first Coupon payment Date is 31 March 2022, with last coupon payment on the scheduled redemption date i.e. 31 December 2024. The tenure of
the said NCD Series 3 is 35 months from 1 February 2022, being date of allotment.

This NCD Series 3 was listed on BSE Limited on February 34, 2022.

Security terms

NCD Series 3 are secured by each of the following security in favour of the Debenture Trustee {(holding for the benefit of the NCD Holders):

a) First and exclusive charge being registered by way of simple mortgage on the carpet area of approximately 5,52,974 Sq. Ft. { save and except entire 2nd floor
admeasuring 11,883 Sq. Ft. carpet area in building no. 2) (the building no. 2 ) situated on the Mortgage land along with proportionate covered and open parking spaces, in
Building 2 together with all the beneficial rights, title and interest of the Assets SPV in appurtenant to Building 2 and all erections. The Building 2 is situated on a portion of
the Mortgage Land admeasuring 8.04 Hectares, which portion is notified as a Special Economic Zone & first and exclusive charge being registered by way of simple
mortgage on the identified units with aggregating to carpet area of approximately 4,61,527 Sq. Ft. {identified units of building no. 3 ) situated on the Mortgage land along
with proportionate covered and open parking spaces, in Building 3 together with all the beneficial rights, title and interest of the Assets SPV in appurtenant to Building 3
and all erections {“Mortgaged Properties”) of NCD Series 3 as further detailed in transaction documents.

b) A charge on the escrow account has been created, in which receivables of the Mortgaged Properties shall be received, save and except any common area maintenance
charges payable to Gigaplex with respect to the maintenance of the mortgaged properties.
¢) Corporate guarantee executed by Gigaplex.

Redemption terms:

a) NCD Series 3 are redeemable by way of bullet repayment at the end of 35 months from the date of allotment, i.e. 31 December, 2024 and accordingly the same has been
classified as current maturities of long term borrowings as on 31 March 2024 (Refer Note 17)

b) Interest is payable on the last day of each financial quarter in a year {starting from 31 March, 2022) until the scheduled redemption date.

¢) The Coupon shall be increased by 25 bps for every notch downgrade in the rating by the Credit Rating Agency. In case rating is upgraded after any rating downgrade, the
Coupon shall be decreased by 25 bps for each upgrade.

d) Upon occurrence of a mandatory redemption event, the Debenture Trustee may, by issuing not less than 30 (thirty) business days’ notice to the Issuer require the Issuer
to redeem in full, all the debentures then outstanding by paying an amount equal to the total mandatory redemption amount in respect of each debenture.

In July 2022, Mindspace Business Park REIT issued 5,000 senior, listed, rated, secured, non-cumulative, taxable, transferrable, redeemable, non-convertible debentures of
face value of INR 1,000,000 (Indian Rupees One Million) per Debenture for aggregate principal amount of upto INR 5,000,000,000/- {Indian Rupees Five Thousand Million
Only) with a coupon rate of 7.95% p.a. Coupon on the outstanding Nominal value of each debenture shall be applicable and computed from day to day, be prorated on an
actual/ actual basis for the actual number of days in the Coupon Period and be payable in arrears on the relevant Coupon Payment date to the Debenture Holder whose
name is appearing on the Register of Beneficial Owners as on the Record Date. The first Coupon payment Date is 30 Sept 2022, with last coupon payment on the scheduled
redemption date i.e. 27 July 2027. The tenure of the said NCD Series 4 is 60 months.

This NCD Series 4 was listed on BSE Limited on July 29, 2022
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Note 6

Security terms

NCD Series 4 are secured by each of the following security in favour of the Debenture Trustee (holding for the benefit of the NCD Holders):

a) First ranking sole and exclusive security interest by way of an equitable mortgage on carpet area of approximately 779,466 sq ft in building 12 D (identified units in
building) along with the common areas, usage and access rights appurtenant to the units mortgaged in Building 12D as mentioned in the trust deet, situated on a notionally
demarcated land admeasuring approximately 17414.77 square metres (equivalent to 4.30 acres), forming part of a portion of land admeasuring 14.02 hectares equivalent
to 34.64 acres or thereabout declared as ‘Special Economic Zone’ land from and out of the larger piece of land bearing Survey no. 64(part), lying, being and situated at
Madhapur Village, Serilingampally Mandal, Ranga Reddy District, Hyderabad.

b) A charge on the escrow account has been created, in which receivables of the Mortgaged Properties shall be received, save and except any common area maintenance
charges payable to Sundew with respect to the maintenance of the mortgaged properties.
¢) Corporate guarantee executed by Sundew.

Redemption terms:
a) NCD Series 4 are redeemable by way of bullet repayment at the end of 60 months from the date of allotment, i.e. 27 July, 2027.
b) Interest is payable on the last day of each financial quarter in a year (starting from 30 September, 2022) until the scheduled redemption date.

¢) The Coupon shall be increased by 25 bps for every notch downgrade in the rating by the Credit Rating Agency. In case rating is upgraded after any rating downgrade, the
Coupon shall be decreased by 25 bps for each upgrade.

d) Upon accurrence of a mandatory redemption event, the Debenture Trustee may, by issuing not less than 30 (thirty) business days’ notice to the Issuer require the issuer
to redeem in full, all the debentures then outstanding by paying an amount equal to the total mandatory redemption amount in respect of each debenture.

On 15 March 2023, Mindspace Business Parks REIT issued 55000 Green Debt Securities in the form of listed, rated, secured, non-cumulative, taxable, transferable,
redeemable non-convertible debentures (“Mindspace REIT Green Bond 1”) having nominal value of Rs. 1,00,000 (Rupees One lakh only) each, amounting to Rs.
5,500,000,000 (Rupees Five thousand five hundred millions only) with a coupon rate of 8.02% p.a. payable quarterly beginning from the end of first quarter from the date of
allotment i.e. 15 March 2023, with last coupon payment on the scheduled redemption date i.e. 13 April 2026. The tenure of the said Mindspace REIT Green Bond 11is 3 year
and 30 days from 15 March 2023, being date of allotment. The date of payment of first coupon is 31 March 2023.

Mindspace REIT Green Bond 1 was listed on BSE Limited on March 16, 2023.

Security terms
Mindspace REIT Green Bond 1 are secured by each of the following security in favour of the Debenture Trustee (holding for the benefit of the NCD Holders) as more

particularly described in the transaction documents, summarized as follows:

a) First and exclusive charge registered by way of equitable mortgage (including receivables arising therefrom) on the aggregate leasable area of approximately 1.067
million square feet or thereabouts in buildings no. 5B and 9 of Madhapur Hyderabad (approx. 245,977 sg. ft. in building no. 5B and approx. 821,717 building no. 9) together
with the proportionate undivided right, title and interest in (i) the notionally demarcated land admeasuring approximately 7,169.90 square metres (equivalent to 1.7717
acres) on which Building 5B is situated, and (ii) the notionally demarcated land admeasuring approximately 16,871.82 square metres (equivalent to 4.17 acres) on which -
Building 9 is situated.

b) A charge on the escrow account in which receivables of the Mortgaged Properties shall be payable to Intime Properties Limited.
¢) Corporate guarantee executed by Intime Properties Limited.

Redemption terms:
a) Mindspace REIT Green Bond 1 are redeemable by way of bullet repayment at the end of 3 years and 30 days from the date of allotment {date of allotment being 15

March 2023 and date of redemption being 13 April 2026).

b) Interest is payable on the last day of each financial quarter in a year (starting from 31 March, 2023) until the scheduled redemption date and on the scheduled

redemption date.
¢) The Coupon shall be increased by 25 bps for every notch downgrade in the rating by the Credit Rating Agency. In case rating is upgraded after any rating downgrade, the

Coupon shall be decreased by 25 bps for each upgrade.
d) Upon occurrence of a mandatory redemption event, the Debenture Trustee may, by issuing not less than 30 (thirty) business days’ notice to the Issuer require the Issuer
to redeem in full, all the debentures then outstanding by paying an amount equal to the total mandatory redemption amount in respect of each debenture.
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Note 8

In June 2023, Mindspace Business Park REIT issued 50,000 listed, rated, secured, non-cumulative, taxable, transferrable, redeemable, non-convertible debentures of face
value of INR 1,00,000 (Indian Rupees One Lakh only) per Debenture for aggregate principal amount of upto INR 5,000,000,000/- (Rupees Five Thousand Million Only) with a
coupon rate of 7.75% p.a. payable quarterly. Coupon on the outstanding Nominal value of each debenture shall be applicable and computed from day to day, be prorated
on an actual/ actual basis for the actual number of days in the Coupon Period and be payable in arrears on the relevant Coupon Payment date to the Debenture Holder
whose name is appearing on the Register of Beneficial Owners as on the Record Date. The first Coupon payment Date is 30 June 2023, with last coupon payment on the
scheduled redemption date i.e. 30 June 2026. The tenure of the said NCD Series 6 is 3 year and 29 days.

This NCD Series 6 was listed on BSE Limited on June 06, 2023.

Security terms

NCD Series 6 are secured by each of the following security in favour of the Debenture Trustee (holding for the benefit of the NCD Holders):

a) first ranking sole and exclusive security interest, by way of a registered simple mortgage on identified units in buildings 6, 7 and 8 of Commerzone Yerwada adding to a
cumulative carpet area of approximately 0.7msf across these 3 buildings at Commerzone Yerwada, Pune along with the common areas, usage and access rights
appurtenant to the units mortgaged in Buildings 6, 7 and 8 as mentioned in the trust deed, situated on a notionally demarcated land admeasuring approximately 26,162
square metres , forming part of a portion of land larger land admeasuring 1,03,919 square metres (after deducting 21 square metres for road from total extent of 1,03,940
square metres) at Village Yerwada, Taluka Haveli, District Pune and within the limits of Pune Municipal Corporation

b) A charge on the escrow account has been created, in which receivables of the Mortgaged Properties shall be received, save and except any common area maintenance
charges payable to Sundew with respect to the maintenance of the mortgaged properties.

¢} Corporate guarantee executed by Mindspace Business Parks Private Limited.

Redemption terms:

a) NCD Series 6 are redeemable by way of bullet repayment at the end of 3 year and 29 days from the date of allotment i.e. 30 June 2026

b) Interest is payable on the last day of each financial quarter in a year {starting from 30 June 2023) until the scheduled redemption date.

¢) The Coupon shali be increased by 25 bps for every notch downgrade in the rating by the Credit Rating Agency. In case rating is upgraded after any rating downgrade, the
Coupon shall be decreased by 25 bps for each upgrade.

d) Upon occurrence of a mandatory redemption event, the Debenture Trustee may, by issuing not less than 30 {thirty) business days’ notice to the Issuer require the Issuer
to redeem in full, all the debentures then outstanding by paying an amount equal to the total mandatory redemption amount in respect of each debenture.

In September 2023, Mindspace Business Park REIT issued 50,000 listed, rated, secured, non-cumulative, taxable, transferrable, redeemable, non-convertible debentures of
face value of INR 1,00,000 (Indian Rupees One Lakh only) per Debenture for aggregate principal amount of upto INR 5,000,000,000/- {Rupees Five Thousand Million Only)}
with a coupon rate of 8.03% p.a. payable quarterly. Coupon on the outstanding Nominal value of each debenture shall be applicable and computed from day to day, be
prorated on an actual/ actual basis for the actual number of days in the Coupon Period and be payable in arrears on the relevant Coupon Payment date to the Debenture
Holder whose name is appearing on the Register of Beneficial Owners as on the Record Date. The first Coupon Payment Date is 30 September 2023, with last coupon
payment on the scheduled redemption date i.e. 10 December 2026. The tenure of the said NCD Series 7 is 3 years and 3 months.

This NCD Series 7 was listed on BSE Limited on September 13, 2023.

Security terms

NCD Series 7 are secured by each of the following security in favour of the Debenture Trustee {(holding for the benefit of the NCD Holders):

a) first ranking sole and exclusive security interest, by way of an equitable mortgage on identified units in buildings 2A, 2B and 10 of Mindspace Madhapur adding to a
cumulative carpet area of approximately 0.73 msf across these 3 buildings in buildings 2A, 2B and 10 as mentioned in the trust deed, situated on a notionally demarcated
land admeasuring approximately 36,258 square metres, being and situated at Mindspace Madhapur, Madhapur Village, Serilingampally Mandal, Ranga Reddy District,
Hyderabad.

b) first ranking sole and exclusive security interest by way of a hypothecation over Collection Account and Escrow Account and all amounts standing to the credit of or
accrued or accruing on, receivables, movable assets pertaining to Mortgaged Immovable Properties as further specified in transaction documents.

c) Corporate guarantee executed by KRIT.

Redemption terms:
a) NCD Series 7 are redeemable by way of bullet repayment at the end of 3 year and 3 months from the date of allotment i.e. 10 December 2026.

b) Interest is payable on the last day of each financial quarter in a year (starting from 30 September 2023) until the scheduled redemption date with last payment falling on
the scheduled redemption date.

¢) The Coupon shall be increased by 25 bps for every notch downgrade in the rating by the Credit Rating Agency. In case rating is upgraded after any rating downgrade, the
~oupon shall be decreased by 25 bps for each upgrade.
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Note 9

16

17

d) Upon occurrence of a mandatory redemption event, the Debenture Trustee may, by issuing not less than 30 (thirty) business days’ notice to the Issuer require the Issuer
to redeem in full, all the debentures then outstanding by paying an amount equal to the total mandatory redemption amount in respect of each debenture.

In March 2024, Mindspace Business Park REIT issued 34,000 listed, rated, secured, non-cumulative, taxable, transferrable, redeemable, non-convertible debentures of face
value of INR 1,00,000 (Indian Rupees One Lakh only) per Debenture for aggregate principal amount of upto INR 3,400,000,000/- (Rupees Three Thousand Four Hundred
Million Only) with a coupon rate of 7.93% p.a. payable quarterly. Coupon on the outstanding Nominal value of each debenture shall be applicable and computed from day
to day, be prorated on an actual/ actual basis for the actual number of days in the Coupon Period and be payable in arrears on the relevant Coupon Payment date to the
Debenture Holder whose name is appearing on the Register of Beneficial Owners as on the Record Date. The first Coupon Payment Date is 31 March 2024, with last coupon
payment on the scheduled redemption date i.e. 20 March 2027. The tenure of the said NCD Series 8 is 3 years.

This NCD Series 8 was listed on BSE Limited on March 22, 2024,

Security terms

NCD Series 8 are secured by each of the following security in favour of the Debenture Trustee (holding for the benefit of the NCD Holders):

a) first ranking sole and exclusive security interest, by way of an equitable mortgage on identified units in buildings 1, 4, 5 and Amenity building of Commerzone Yerwada
adding to a cumulative leasable area of approximately 0.55 msf and carpet area of c.0.43 msf across these 4 buildings in buildings as mentioned in the trust deed, situated
on a notionally demarcated land admeasuring approximately 27,826 square metres, being and situated at Village Yerawada, Taluka Haveli, District Pune and within the
limits of Pune Municipal Corporation, and bounded as follows:.

b) first rankir g sole and exclusive security interest by way of a simple mortgage over Collection Account and Escrow Account and all amounts standing to the credit of or
accrued or acciuing on, receivables, movable assets pertaining to Mortgaged Immovable Properties as further specified in transaction documents.

¢) Corporate guarantee executed by MBPPL.

Redemption terms:

a) NCD Series 8 are redeemable by way of bullet repayment at the end of 3 year from the date of allotment i.e. 20 March 2027.

b)) Interest is payable on the last day of each financial quarter in a year (starting from 31 March 2024) until the scheduled redemption date with last payment falling on the
scheduled redemption date.

¢) The Coupon shall be increased by 25 bps for every notch downgrade in the rating by the Credit Rating Agency. In case rating is upgraded after any rating downgrade, the
Coupon shall be decreased by 25 bps for each upgrade.

d) Upon occurrence of a mandatory redemption event, the Debenture Trustee may, by issuing not less than 30 (thirty) business days’ notice to the Issuer require the Issuer
to redeem in full, all the debentures then outstanding by paying an amount equal to the total mandatory redemption amount in respect of each debenture.

Refer note 37 for Ratio disclosure.

Other financial liabilities (Non-current)

Particulars As at As at

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Interest accrued but not due on debentures - 522
Other payables to related party (refer Note 29) 25 18
Total 25 540

Borrowings (Current)

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Secured
Current maturities of long-term debt
10 year G-Sec linked secured, listed, senior, taxable, non-cumulative, rated, principal protected — market linked, redeemable, 3,749 -

non-convertible debentures (“Market Linked Debentures / MLD Series 2”) (net of issue expenses, at amortised cost) (31 March
2023 : 3,741 million) (refer note 15 (1))

Secured, listed, senior, taxable, non-cumulative, rated, redeemable non-convertible debentures (NCD Series 1} (net of issue - 1,996
expenses, at amortised cost) (31 March 2023 : 1,996 million) (refer note 15 (2))

Secured, listed, senior, taxable, non-cumulative, rated, redeemable non-convertible debentures (NCD Series 2) (net of issue 750 -
expenses, at amortised cost) (31 March 2023 : 750 million) (refer note 15 (3))

Secured, listed, senior, taxable, non-cumulative, rated, redeemable non-convertible debentures (NCD Series 3) (net of issue 4,986 -

expenses, at amortised cost) (31 March 2023 : 4,971 million) (refer Note 4)
Commercial Paper (Series -2) {31 March 2023 : Nil) {refer Note 2 below)

Total




Mindspace Business Park REIT

RN:IN/REIT/19-20/003

Notes to the Condensed Standalone Financial Statements
(all amounts are in Rs. millions unless otherwise stated)

Note 1 On 20 December 2022, Mindspace Business Parks REIT issued 2,000 Commercial Papers with a face value of Rs. 5,00,000 (Rupees five lakhs only) each, at a discount of 7.2%
per annum to the face value. The discounted amount raised by the REIT through MREIT CP/1 was Rs. 982,556,000 (Rupees nine hundred eighty three millions only) and the
value payable on maturity is Rs. 2000,000,000 (Rupees one thousand millions only). Discount on Commercial papers is amortized over the tenor of the underlying

Note 2

18

19

20

21

instrument. The commercial papers were listed on BSE and matured and repaid on 20 March 2023.

On 19 December 2023, Mindspace Business Parks REIT issued 3,000 Commercial Papers with a face value of Rs. 5,00,000 (Rupees five lakhs only) each, at a discount of 8.0%
per annum to the face value. The discounted amount raised by the REIT through the commercial paper was Rs. 1,446,117,000 (Rupees one billion four hundred forty-six
million one hundred seventeen thousand only) and the value payable on maturity is Rs. 1,500,000,000 (Rupees one billion five hundred million only). Discount on
Commercial papers is amortized over the tenor of the underlying instrument. The commercial papers are listed on BSE and shall mature on 06 June 2024.

Trade payables

Particulars As at As at

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Trade payables

- Total outstanding dues ¢ micro and small enterprises 2 2 1
- Total outstanding dues other than micro and small enterprises 13 16

Total 15 17
Other financial liabilities {Current)
Particulars As at As at

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Interest accrued but not due on debentures 830 3
Interest accrued and due on others 0 0
Unpaid Distributions 0 0
Other liabilities - -
- to related party (refer Note29) 28 26
- to others 2 -
Total 860 29
Other current liabilities
Particulars As at As at

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Statutory dues 7 7
Total 7 7
Current tax liabilities
Particulars As at As at

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Provision for Income Tax {Net of Advance Tax) 0 2
Total 0 2
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RN:IN/REIT/19-20/003

Notes to the Condensed Standalone Financial Statements
{all amounts in Rs. millions unless otherwise stated)

29  Related party disclosures
A Parties to Mindspace REIT as at 31 March 2024

SI. No. |Particulars Name of Entities Promoters/Partners* Directors
Axis Bank Limited Ms. Deepa Rath
(Refer note below) Mr. Rajesh Kumar Dahiya til January
15, 2024
Mr. Ganesh Sankaran til January 15,
1 Trustee Axis Trustee Services Limited 2024
Mr. Sumit Bali w.e.f. January 16,
2024
Mr. Prashant Joshi w.e.f. January 16,
2024
Mr. Ravi C. Raheja
Mr. Neel C, Raheja Mr. Ravi C. Raheja w.e.f. July 7, 2023
Mr. Neel C. Raheja w.e.f. July 7,
2023
Mr. Deepak Ghaisas w.e.f. July 11,
K Raheja Corp Investment Managers Private 2023
2 Manager Limited {formerly known as K Raheja Corp Mr. Bobby Parikh w.e.f. July 11,
Investment Managers LLP} 2023
(Refer note 35) Ms. Manisha Girotra w.e.f. July 11,
2023
Mr. Manish Kejriwal w.e.f. July 11,
2023
Mr. Vinod Rohira
w.e.f. September 1, 2023
Mr. Ravi C. Raheja
Mr. Neel C. Raheja
3 Anbee Constructions LLP Mr. Chandru L. Raheja
Mrs. Jyoti C. Raheja
Ms. Sumati Raheja
Sponsors -
Mr, Ravi C, Raheja
Mr. Neel C. Raheja
4 Cape Trading LLP Mr. Chandru L. Raheja
Mrs. Jyoti C. Raheja
5 Mr. Chandru L. Raheja -
6 Mr. Ravi C. Raheja - -
7 Mr. Neel C. Raheja - -
8 Mrs. Jyoti C. Raheja - -
9 Ms. Sumati Raheja - -
Mr, Ravi C. Raheja
Mr. Neel C. Raheja
10 Capstan Trading LLP Mr. Chandru L. Raheja
Mrs. Jyoti C. Raheja
Mr, Ravi C. Raheja
Sponsors Group ) ) Mr. Neel C. Raheja
11 . Casa Maria Properties LLP Mr. Chandru L. Raheja
Mrs. Jyoti C. Raheja
Mr. Ravi C. Raheja
Mr. Neel C. Raheja
12 Raghukool Estate Developement LLP Mr. Chandru L. Raheja
Mrs. Jyoti C. Raheja
Mr. Ravi C, Raheja
Mr. Neel C. Raheja
13 Palm Shelter Estate Development LLP Mr. Chandru L. Raheja
Mrs. Jyoti C. Raheja R
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Sponsors Group

K. Raheja Corp Pvt. Ltd.

Mr. Chandru L. Raheja Jointly with
Mrs. Jyoti C. Raheja

Mrs. Jyoti C. Raheja Jointly with
Mr. Chandru L. Raheja

Mr. Ravi C. Raheja Jointly with
Mr. Chandru L. Raheja Jointly with
Mrs. Jyoti C. Raheja

Mr. Neel C. Raheja Jointly with
Mr. Chandru L. Raheja Jointly with
Mrs. Jyoti C. Raheja

Anbee Constructions LLP

Cape Trading LLP

Capstan Trading LLP

Casa Maria Properties LLP

Raghukool Estate Developement LLP
Palm Shelter Estate Development LLP
Mr. Neel C. Raheja Jointly with

Mr. Ramesh M. Valecha

Ravi C. Raheja

Neel C. Raheja
Ramesh Valecha
Ramesh Ranganthan
Sunil Hingorani

15

16

Sponsors Group

Ivory Property Trust

Chandru L. Raheja

lyoti C. Raheja

Ivory Properties & Hotels Pvt Ltd
Ravi C. Raheja

Neel C. Raheja

(all are trustees}

Genext Hardware & Parks Private Ltd.

Mr. Ravi C. Raheja Jointly with
Mr. Chandru L. Raheja Jointly with
Mrs. Jyoti C. Raheja

Mr. Neel C. Raheja Jointly with

Mr. Chandru L. Raheja Jointly with

Mrs. Jyoti C. Raheja

Chandru L. Raheja jointly with Jyoti C.
Raheja, on behalf of the beneficiaries of
Ivory Property Trust.

Ravi C. Raheja

Neel C. Raheja
Ramesh Valecha
Ramesh Ranganthan

17

Names of SPVs / subsidiaries

1. Avacado Properties and Trading {India) Private

Limited

2. Gigaplex Estate Private Limited

3. Horizon Properties Private Limited

4. KRC Infrastructure and Projects Private
Limited

5. Intime Properties Limited

6. Sundew Properties Limited

7. K. Raheja IT Park (Hyderabad) Limited
8. Mindspace Business Parks Private Limited.




MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT
RN:IN/REITf19-20/003

Notes to the Condensed Standalone Financial Statements
(all amounts in Rs. millions unless otherwise stated)

Board of Directors

Mr. Deepak Ghaisas {Independent Member)

Ms. Manisha Girotra (Independent Member)

Mr. Bobby Parikh (Independent Member)

Mr. Manish Kejriwal (Independent Member)

Mr. Ravi C. Raheja (Non Executive Non
Board of Directors and Key|Independent Member)

|IManagerial Personnel of the|/Mr. Neel C. Raheja (Non Executive Non
18 |Manager (K Raheja Corp Investment|independent Member)

Managers Private Limited ) (Refer|Mr. Vinod Rohira (Non Executive Non
note 34) Independent Member} w.e.f. September 1, 2023
Key Managerial Personnel

Mr. Ramesh Nair (Chief Executive Officer) w.e.f.
September 1, 2023

Mr. Vinod Rohira (Chief Executive Officer)
resigned w,e.f August 31, 2023

Ms. Preeti Chheda (Chief Financial Officer)

Brookfields Agro & Development Private Limited
Grange Hotels And Properties Private Limited
Immense Properties Private Limited

Novel Properties Private Limited

Pact Real Estate Private Limited
Paradigm Logistics & Distribution Private Limited

Entities controlled/jointly controlled
by members of the Board of
Directors/Key Managerial Personnel
of the Manager

19

Aqualine Real Estate Private Limited

K Raheja Corp Real Estate Private Limited
(Formerly known as "Feat Properties Private
Limited") (till 8th August 2023)

Carin Properties Private Limited

Asterope Properties Private Limited

Content Properties Private Limited

Sundew Real Estate Private Limited
Gencoval Stretagic Services Private Limited
Stemade Biotech Private Limited

Hariom Infrafacilities Services Private Limited

K. Raheja Corp Advisory Services (Cyprus) Private
Limited

Convex Properties Private Limited

M/s Bobby Parikh & Associates

* only when acting collectively

Note:

Axis Bank Limited, being a promoter of Axis Trustee Services Limited (“Trustee”), trustee to Mindspace Business Parks REIT, also a Debenture Trustee regulated by SEBI, is
considered as a related party of Mindspace REIT in line with the SEBI REIT Regulations based on recent directions from SEBI dated 12 June 2023.
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Mindspace Business Park REIT
RMN:IN/REIT/19-20/003

Notes to the Condensed Standalone Financial Statements
(all amounts are in Rs. millions unless otherwise stated)

29 Related party disclosures

C Closing Balances

Particualrs As at Lok

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Unsecured loan receivable (non-current)
Avacado Properties & Trading (India) Private Limited 893 793
Gigaplex Estate Private Limited 12,393 11,983
Horizonview Properties Private Limited 3,813 4,490
Sundew Properties Limited 845 2,195
KRC Infrastructure & Projects Private Limited 9,692 7,857
Mindspace Business Park Private Limited 3,860 2,445
K. Raheja IT Park (Hyderabad) Limited 1,441 116
Unsecured loan receivable (current)
Avacado Properties & Trading (India) Private Limited - 450
Gigaplex Estate Private Limited 5,018 800
Horizonview Properties Private Limited 3,477 200
Sundew Properties Limited 10 170
KRC Infrastructure & Projects Private Limited 1,070 360
Mindspace Business Park Private Limited 1,066 -
K. Raheja [T Park {(Hyderabad) Limited 240 -
Investment in equity share of SPVs
Avacado Properties & Trading (India) Private Limited 9,482 9,482
Gigaplex Estate Private Limited 13,121 13,121
Horizonview Properties Private Limited 1,000 0
Sundew Properties Limited 33,722 33,722
KRC Infrastructure & Projects Private Limited 6,868 6,868
Mindspace Business Park Private Limited 48,814 48,814
K. Raheja IT Park {(Hyderabad) Limited 25,618 25,618
Intime properties Limited 15,478 15,478
Interest receivable (non-current)*
Gigaplex Estate Private Limited - 96
Horizonview Properties Private Limited % 26
Sundew Properties Limited . 185
KRC Infrastructure & Projects Private Limited - 107
Mindspace Business Park Private Limited - 95
K. Raheja IT Park {Hyderabad) Limited . 21
Interest receivable (current)*
Avacado Properties & Trading (India) Private Limited F g
Gigaplex Estate Private Limited 301 -
Horizonview Properties Private Limited 80 -
Sundew Properties Limited 204 -
KRC Infrastructure & Projects Private Limited 177 -
Mindspace Business Park Private Limited 126 -
K. Raheja IT Park {Hyderabad) Limited 38|




Mindspace Business Park REIT

RN:IN/REIT/19-20/003

Notes to the Condensed Standalone Financial Statements
(all amounts are in Rs. millions unless otherwise stated)

29

C

Related party disclosures

Closing Balances

Particualrs

As at
31 March 2024

As at
31 March 2023

Guarantee commision fees receivable (non-current)
Gigaplex Estate Private Limited

Horizonview Properties Private Limited

Sundew Properties Limited

KRC Infrastructure & Projects Private Limited
Mindspace Business Park Private Limited

Guarantee commision fees receivable (current)
Horizonview Properties Private Limited

Sundew Properties Limited

KRC Infrastructure & Projects Private Limited
Mindspace Business Park Private Limited

Other Financial Liabilities (non-current other payables)
Gigaplex Estate Private Limited

Sundew Properties Limited

Mindspace Business Park Private Limited

K. Raheja IT Park (Hyderabad) Limited

Intime properties Limited

Other Financial Liabilities (current other liabilities)
Gigaplex Estate Private Limited

Sundew Properties Limited

Mindspace Business Park Private Limited

Intime properties Limited

K Raheja Corp Investment Managers Private Limited

Co-Sponsor Initial Corpus
Anbee Constructions LLP
Cape Trading LLP

Current Account
Axis Bank Limited

Dividend Account
Axis Bank Limited

Corporate guarantees outstanding
Horizonview Properties Private Limited
Sundew Properties Limited

KRC Infrastructure & Projects Private Limited
Mindspace Business Park Private Limited

L - )

(0)

17

3,038

4,000
8,772
1,706

2,984

1,175
4,000
5,859
5,400




Mindspace Business Park REIT

RN:IN/REIT/19-20/003
Notes to the Condensed Standalone Financial Statements
(all amounts are in Rs. millions unless otherwise stated)

29
C

Related party disclosures

Closing Balances

Particualrs

As at
31 March 2024

As at
31 March 2023

Security and Corporate guarantee extended by Sundew towards debentures
Sundew Properties Limited

Security and Corporate guarantee extended by MBPPL towards debentures
Mindspace Business Park Private Limited

Security and Corporate guarantee extended by GIGAPLEX towards debentures
Gigaplex Estate Private Limited

Security and Corporate guarantee extended by INTIME towards debentures
Intime Properties Limited

Security and Corporate guarantee extended by KRIT towards debentures
K. Raheja IT Park {Hyderabad) Limited

8,750

9,150

5,000

5,500

5,000

8,750

2,750

5,000

5,500

*after Ind AS Adjustments




"€20Z Y21 TE PUE $Z0Z Y2IBIA TE€ Ppus Jeah ayl SULINp € |9A37 JO 7 [9ABT ‘T [SAST US9MIaq SI94SURLL OU B19Mm 313y
€ |3A37 pUB Z |3n27 ‘T [9A37 UIIM]AQ SI3JSUBI]

=

*{s3ndu| a|qeAIasqOUN) EJEP 1aYJEW 3|qRAISSGO UO PasE] 10U SJe Jey} S3N|IGE)| JO S13sse 3y} 104 sindu| - £ 2437

Ay2a11pul 1o {sea1d se 'a'1} A3aa.1p JayNa ‘Ay|Iqe)| 10 19558 BY1 10} 3|qBAISSQO S1B 1By} T [2A9T UIYHM Papn|aul s331d pajonb ueyy sayio sinduj — g jana]

*s3(}]IGE| 20 S13S5E |BOIUSPI 10} S)3¥JEU SAI30R Ul (pajsnipeun) saoud palonD - T [9A2]
Ayauesaly anjea Jieq

1MOjaq PaUOIUSW S| |9A3| YIS JO UONRUR|dX3 Uy ‘PJEpUR)s BUJUNoade By} JapuUn paquasald s|aA3| 8143 Y} OJUI SJUBWIIISUL [RISUBUY SY PaIISsE| sey ||y a2edspuliy "anjea Jiey Sujuiwiaiap U pasn sinduj ay3 jo Axjigela1 ayy inoqe uofiealpul ue apiaoid o)

‘SJUILIIIR)S |BIOUBUIY SUO|BPUB)S PISUSPUOD BY} Ul PBSOJosIp 3B SaN|BA JIB) Y2IYM JOj PUB 1502 Pasi;Iou’e 18 painsealu {q

an|eA Jie} 1B painseal pue pasjudodal {e

124 JBY] SJUSWINIISUI [BISUELY Y] JO SIN|BA JIES Y] SUIUIWISI9P U] SPRW S33RWNRSS pue Juswaspnl ay; sule|dxs uoldes ay|
sanjen Jjey jo Juawainsealy (q)

san|eA Jie) J19y} ajewxoldde s

|eI5UBLIY PUE S13SSE [BISUBUL SAOGE 4O SIUNOLIE SUlALIed 3} Jey) SIapIsuod Juawadeuew ay]

vLv'TT 9£9'GE saniIqel| |23o)
LT ST sa|qeAed apel]|
695 S898 13)1qeI (RISURLIY JBYIO
966°T TEE0T (wua1inD) sBuimauiog
68'6T S08°€C (w112 uon) sButmoltog
1509 PASIIOWE 18 PANSEIRN

- - Bawodul 3aisuayasdwod Jayjo ySnolys anjea sieq

& . 550] pue 3y01d ySnouy) anjen ey
TIY'SE 68L'LY $1955Y [e101
895 £E6 sjasse |ejoueuly J3yio
¥86°C BE0'E sjuajeAINba ysea pue yse)
086'T 188°0T {3ua11n2) sueo]
6862 LE6'TE {3ua.11n> uop) sueoq
1503 pasiuowe Je panseay

= - 3wodul 3aIsuaya1dwod 13Y3o ySnosyy anjea Jieq

E = 550] pue 31404d YySnoayy anjea se4
S}9sse |eppueuly

E£C0T YIIBNI TE 207 Y iew TE
anjea SuiAie)y Bnjea SuiAne) sie|ndjyeqd
:mo|aq se ale 534032312 AqQ SJUSWINIISUI [eI3UEU) JO InjeA Jies pue anjea SutAued 3y, (e}

sju3uINAs) [ePURUY  TE

€207 ‘TE Y2IBIN PUB £Z0Z ‘TE Y2IRIA 38 SB SJUSLUHWILIOD OU 21 313y |
sjuswwwo) (q

{uol|lw YEY‘GT "SY €20 YR TE) UolIW B2 KT "y S1 931ueiend SujpueIsING 3y} pue mapuns pue 1d4aiAl ‘e4ju} DY) Aq pajieAe sueo| Joj saajuelend ajelodiod papjaoid sey ][3y @dedspuliy
son|iqer Jusdunuo) e

sanuaduniuod pue sjusunwwo) Qg

{pa1€3S BSIMIBLYIO SSI|UN SUOH|IW 'SY Ul DI SJUNOLUE |[e)
SIUBLLIBIEIS [BIDUBULY BUOJEPURIS PASUDPUO) AU} O} SIION

113y }Jed ssauisng asedspuiy



¥2-€20T A4 Joj pe|y Hoday 5
£000/0Z-6T/L134/N| - "ON uoneusi3ay |a3s
s|qedijdde JoN - NID ‘ON uonelysi@ay 1835 / NID [4
(d717 s198eue|A JUBWISBAU) d10D
efayey ) "Ja8eue sy yanolyl Suinae) 1|3y sied ssauisng adedspully Ayug ayj jo swen T

*TZ0T ‘0T ¥sn3ny pa1ep £19/120Z/d/¥ID/SHAQ/OH/I183S 4&N2.1 |35 3Y1 Jpun usaid elisyid Ay

{zg ainxauuy ) ajelodio) adieq e se payijuapl Ajua ue Aq spew aq 0} 3NsoPIsIg |enuuy

eo)|dde oy} Jad se 2yesodio) aBieT, esi ||y S Ied SsouUIsng 23edspully Byl 1BY] WIJU0D 3L

jiomawiel)
ay3 Japun ujmolioq palinbal ay3 Ul ||efIoys Jo 3ses
(,358.) pouwr 3sg| ! ‘pred aq [|BYs auy ay3 Yoiym uy adueyaxy }201s jo awen S
3|qRIS/YYY QTNdd TISI¥D
1s2UNjUsqaQ paYuI 1a4.elN 104
Asualy Bupey J1paJD Y1 Jo sweu
(219e35) ym Suoje A snotasid ay3 Sutng Suney 31pald 15ayYSiH
Yy [vHD!] pue 8|qelIS/vyY 1ISI¥D iseanjuagag 3|qiHanuc)-uoy Joj
(219835) vV [vudI)
‘2981S/ ¥y 1ISIYD 14anss| Jog 14
|W XI5 ALY pue paipuni uanas puesnoy) Jnod Auy] ‘sy)| 720 "YdIBIN TE Ua se Anua ay yo Buimolioq SulpueIsing
uoj|jiw 9L 'PE 'Sy £
£000/0Z-6T/LIT¥/NI - "ON uonensisay |g3s o Uolyensiay 1g3S / ND
s|qeaydde 0N - NID T
{d17 s1e8eueiy Jusuiisaau| dioy Aygua sy jo awey
efayey ) ‘4afeueiy 51l ySnoays Suiroe) | |3y syied ssauisng adedspuiiy T
HIZEL] sie|nied ‘ON "I

“ajel 13YJEW JUSLIND 3UY} 18 PRIUNOISIP SMOYYSED PaIORIIUOD SINJN) B} JO SNjeA Jussaud 03 JuajeANba 8q 0} Pa1apISUOD 31e S33el PaXy) 1 SSUIMOLI0G JO SBN[BA Jiey 3y [
“sanjea BulALIRD J19y} 0} JU3|2AINbS aq 0] pa1apIsUOd ale Salll|Iqel| [2]oUBUI) PUR S18SSE |RIOUBULL JUSLIND JBY30 4O sanjea Jie) ay]

{y anxauuy ) ajelodio) adseq e se pa,

uap! A3us ue Aq apew aq 0 54Ns0[IsIq [eR) €€

‘SJUBWSIEIS |E[OURULY SUOJRPUEYS BY3 U] papirosd uaeq jou sey sjuawdas Suiesado ‘gOT Sy PujJapUN AINSOpISIp ‘a3uBY pue £207 YaJe ISTE PUB yZ0T Yo1BIN ISTE 1e se syuawdss Jujjessdo ajgepodal Aue aaey 10U S30p |13y 82edspuiiy

Suipoday Juswsas zg

-ajep Buppiodal je suofieionb ao1ud U paseq aie spuUNy [BNINW Jo aN|eA Jiey 3Y] {1

JEUY3 0} 1y02ds sajou 2y} Ul paso|IsIp s| san|ea Jiey SulUjWIasp U) spew suoRdWNSSe aYy3 JNOGE UOHIELLIOL] Jay1ny ‘ajqeondde uayp ‘spoyiaw Suimo||o} Y3 uo paseq sasodind a.nsojds|p Jo/pue JUSWSINSESW Jo) PaUILIIR}ap Usaq aAey sa|

“Aipqe) Jo 3esse
qel| pue $}assk [BI2UELL) JO SIN|BA JjB4
san|ea Jie} jo uoijeunuialaq (p)

{P31e3s BSIMIBYIO SSIIUN SUDI[JIL *SY UY 3JE SJUNOWE ([e)

1B3S [euUeU Bt

1134 Jied ssauisng aaedspuiy



‘Uol||IW §'Q 'Sy UBY] SS3Y Anjea sjuasaidal 0, SE

‘uoneiuasasd pouad JUBLIND YIM WIOJUOI 0} ‘AJessadau palapIsuoa se ‘padnosdal usaq aaey saundy pouad snoald S

‘MIIAD] Pa3IWI| O3 PR)IBIGNS 38 YIIYM ‘EZ0Z Jaqua1das DE PIPUS JBA Jjey dY3 Joj S3INSY Syl pUe £707 J9qWI33aQ TE PAPUS SYIUOL 3uUiU By o 132dsas U) SISy Y1 UsamIaq s3In8ly PaALISP Syl 31k £707 J9quiadag T papua Jajsenb ayl Joj saindy syl (2

*MBIABI PajII| 03 pa3o3lgns

3B YdIym ‘2207 JqWa1das OF PUB ZZ0T Jaquiadsg TE papus pouad 01dn sa.ndy a1ep-0i-1e9A paysiignd syl puB £207 Y2IBW TE PAPUD Jeah ay) o 19adsal Ul Sa1nSy pajIpne 3y} usamiaq sandy PSALIBp 3Ul 3Je £Z07 YdJeW T€ papua Jeadh jley pue Janenb ay) Joj saindy syl (q

"M3IAD1 paliW)| 01 pajdalgns

S4B YoIym ‘€207 Jaqiaydas Of pue £z0z Jaquadaq 1€ papua pouad 0idn saungly 91ep-03-1e94 paysignd 3yl pue $zZ0Z YdIBIN TE PIpUa 1eak ay Jo 139dsal ul saunSy palipne syl usam)ag saINSly PaALISP Y1 S1e $70Z YDIBIN TE Papua 1eah yey pue sajenb ay) Joj saindy ay) (e pE

#(3)-(p)} J0 %2°0=duy

1IN 3|qeaiidde 1 “4poiq Y3 Joy pled 3q 03 3uly JO JUNOWY ]
SZ-¥20Z A4
YZ-€20C A
£7-T20T A4 (s1eaA [eraueury Aj1oads) pousad y0|q JeaA-¢ i
202 Y2JBN TE 18 SY siejnaied ‘ON 'JS
’20|q snoiadud 03 1radsal ui ‘Aue §i ‘pred aq 03 Ayjeuad jo sjie3ag
{..l1u,, 81IM ‘SA11eSSU 10 0J3Z 51 aN|eA palenajes ayl j1}
[(2)-{2))-(q) =(4) {(L) A4 03 p1eMIO} paLLIED SEM LIIYM
(1-1) Ad 104 Buimolioq ej1I0Ys Aue 1oy Sunisnipe Jaye}
(1) Ad Joj sa13uN338
[N 1g3p yanouy) Suimoliog AJojepuewu syl ui ‘Aue J ‘|(ej110ys A
(3)
1IN () wouy 13W uzq sey yaym ‘(p) Jo wmuenp )
(P} (L) A4 0} pieamioy patsed (T-1) Ad 104
1IN ‘Aue JI ‘sa1311n3as 3gap Y3nouyl SuimoLioq ayj ul [|eRIoys A
(9)
9v8'vT (1) A4 u1 531311N235 1G3P Y3N0oJy1 dUop SJuIMO0110q [BNIDY Al
(e 40 %52) = (q)
{1} Ad ur saunaas
TL'E 1q3p J0 32uenss| y3nosyy suop aq 03 Suimolioq Alojepuey m
98T () "(1) A4 Ut 3uop Suimolloq |eIuUaWINY| il
92-520C Ad
ST-¥C0T M
vZ-€20T A4 (s1eaA (e1aueuly Aj1ads) porsad ¥20|q JeaA-¢ 1
202 YdJeN TE 18 sy siejnaied *ON "JS

sFuimo.ioq ayy o s|iezad

{P31B1S BSIMIBYIO SSBIUN SUOH||IW *SY U] 1L SUNOLWE ||e)
SJUSWA}EIS [e1IUBULY SUOJEPUBR)S PISUSPUO) Byl 0} $3ION

1134 [ 1ed ssauisng 92edspuilAl



(YN} 319e21|ddy 10N,

- - - . - - - - +Ol1BJ JUB|BAIND3 21419845 103295| 2z
%06 %ES %68 %8 %18 %68 %¥8 %18 {u 330U 13j31] (% ul) UIHIRN 1§01d 1BN| A
= = . - d = B 3 (W 310U Jag31) (9 Ul) uidiey Sunesedp| X

* = » ¥ - * ¥ & xd2A0UIN] Alojuaaul| Mm

= - - = 5 S - - {3 210U J34a1) (Sowiy Ul) JaAousny siolgag| A
Zro 810 [4A%¢} 91°0 870 [4%"] 9T'0 810 (I’ 310U J3ja4) (s3wiy Ut} s39sse [e301 013qap B0l N
600 €£°0 600 24 €€°0 600 9¢'0 £€°0 {1 910U J3JaJ) (s3W3 ut) ol Ajigey| uauny| )

= - . . - - - - (| 210U 1243J) (s3UIN UI) O11BL 3|GEAISIDI JUNOIIE 03 S1qap peg| S

{4y @10u
86'9 €8°L 86'9 99’8 £€8°L 86'9 99'9 £8'L Jaa1) (sawiy uf) jeuded Buppiom 0} (JUa1ind Uou) 3gap Wiy Buol| U
[ 9’1 £€7'C w1 9T £v'T 9T 9T (4 210U 13421} (sawiny ul) oney yuand| b
8¢'6T 85°6T 88'6 LL6 086 6% 6’7 L8V Pa3njiq - Hun Jad s3ujuiey d
8E'6T 8567 88'6 LL'6 08'6 [A%4 £6'7 8% 2lseq - Hun Jad s3ujule3
T6v'TT 71971 098'S 66L'S £18'S L¥6'T 26T 688°C {suoljiw "sy ul Junowy) xe3 Jaye jjoid JaN
10'99T 897991 T#0'99T SET'99T 897997 T¥0'991 £02'991 892'991 {sUoj[|iwl "sy Ul JUNowWYy} yuom 1aN

- - - & ¢ - - - (Suol|[ius 'Sy Ul JUNOWY) 3AIISaI Uoiidwapal a1njuagaq

* = E T . E . - 9AI3SaL Uondwapal |eyde)

- - - - - - - - {anjea pue Alquenb) saleys sausaJa)aid 3|qewaspal Buipueising| {11
OT'TT €29 ST'0T €89 LS 08'6 vL'S 89S {p 210U 1321} {SaWi} Ul) Ol3eS dFRUIBA0D BDIAIRS I5Ua3u|| )
oT'TT €29 ST'0T £8'9 1L'S 08'6 [ 89'S {0 910U J3j2l) (saw} ) oijel 25eIBA0D DIAIRS 1GRG| |
eT'o [44Y €T'0 02’0 [44¢] ET0 610 [44Y (g @30u Jajou) {sawnl ul} oies Aunba-1gaq| L

- €8T z C €8T . = €8'T {(x1)e o10u 43431} (g SBIISS DN} 1940 1855 / AJINI3S ]

> 87T : 9T’ 87T = 9T°C 87T {{1nA)e 310U Jajad) (£ $a113S QDN) Jan0d Jassy / Aaundas |y

- 61T & LT'T 61T - (1T [ {{1n)e 310U 12)21] (9 S2LI3S ADN]) JaA0D 1355y / Auindas | 3

{ine
154 61T ST'C ST'T 6T'C ST'T %4 6T°C 210U J3J2J) (T puog U33JD |13y 3JedSPUIIA) JOA0I 1955Y / AJINDSS }
05¢C LS°T sl 4 75T 15T 05T 75T L5 {{n)e @10u J3jau) (1 SBLAS ODN) 19A0D 3385y / Ajandag| @
91'C (444 91°¢C 91°C (444 9Tt [A%4 we {{Al)e 230U J3j2.) (€ SBLIRS QDN 12A02 3BssY / ApIndas P
e SS°C e we SS°T e 124 SS°C B 810U J3J2J) (T S31135 QIN) 19103 3355y / Alndas 3
8C'C JA44 8C'C LT°T LT 87T LTT LT'T ({11)e ®10u Jajal) (Z S3UBS JTN) J9A0D 3255y / ANdas | q
95°C - 95T 15T - 95°C = a3 {(1)e ®0u Jajal) (T s8lias QON) J9n0d 1assy /Ajundas | e
€202
€207 Y2BN TE | ¥20Z YIBW TE | €20Z YaJeN TE | €202 12quaidas 0g | $Z0Z YIJelN TE | €20C Y2MeIN TE | Jaquidaa TE | HZ0T Y2Ie TE sofey
papu? Jeap papuo 1eak Jjey ayy Jo4 papus Jauenp

:sojjel Supmo|joy ay3 paso|Isip sey 113y 3edspully “(SLIAUL) SISNIL JUBWISIAU] 3INIINASEIJU| pue (S]13H) SISNI] JU2WISaAU] ajelsT [eay Aq S3RLINIIS 1qap JO 3duenssi 10} (ST0Z
|udy €T paiep TL/8T02/d/¥1D/SHAA/SHAA/OH/I93S 'ON) 18(naaid (g3 1ad se spuawaainbal JaY10 pue TZ0z ‘SNOILYTINDIY (SLNINIHINDIY JYNSOTISIA ANY SNOILYOITHO DNILSIT) 1935 YUm 3dueplodde u| L€

(pa3e1s 251MI3YI0 SSB|UN UOI||ILL *SY U] BIE SIUNOWE ||e)
SIU3WIA)E]S [EIILUEUIY BUOJEPUEBIS PASUIPUO) A] 0} SIION

1134 Jjied ssauisng 9oedspulipf



Mindspace Business Park REIT

RN:IN/REIT/19-20/003
Notes to the Condensed Standalone Financial Statements
(all amounts are in Rs. million unless otherwise stated)

37 In accordance with SEBI (LISTING OBLIGATIONS AND DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS, 2021 and Other requirements as per SEBI circular (No. SEBI/HO/DDHS/DDHS/CIR/P/2018/71 dated 13 April

2018) for issuance of debt securities by Real Estate Investment Trusts {REITs) and Infrastructure Investment Trusts (InvITs}.,, Mindspace REIT has disclosed the following ratios:

Formulae for computation of ratios are as follows basis condensed standalone financial statements :-

a(i)
a(ii)
aliit)
a(iv)
a(v)
afvi)
a(viy)
a(viii)
alix)
bi)
biii)
o)

d)
e)

f)

g
h)

i)

i}

k}

N

m)

n)

Security / Asset cover ratio (NCD Series 1) = Lower of Fair value of the secured assets as computed by two independent valuers / {Outstanding principal amount of NCD Series 1 + Interest accrued
thereon)

Security / Asset cover ratio {(MLD Series 2} = Fair value of the secured assets as computed by independent vlaluer/ (Outstanding principal amount of MLD Series 2 + Interest accrued thereon)
Security / Asset cover ratio (NCD Series 2) = Fair value of the secured assets as computed by independent valuers / {Outstanding principal amount of NCD Series 2 + Interest accrued thereon)
Security / Asset cover ratio (NCD Series 3) = Fair value of the secured assets as computed by independent valuers / (Outstanding principal amount of NCD Series 3 + Interest accrued thereon)
Security / Asset cover ratio (NCD Series 4) = Fair value of the secured assets as computed by independent valuers / {Outstanding principal amount of NCD Series 4 + Interest accrued thereon)

Security / Asset cover ratio (Green Bond 1) = Fair value of the secured assets as computed by independent valuers / {Outstanding principal amount of Mindspace REIT Green Bond 1 + Interest accrued
thereon)

Security / Asset cover ratio (NCD Series 6) = Fair value of the secured assets as computed by independent valuers / (Outstar.ding principal amount of NCD Series & + Interest accrued thereon)
Security / Asset cover ratio (NCD Series 7) = Fair value of the secured assets as computed by independent valuers / {Outstanding principal amount of NCD Series 7 + Interest accrued thereon)
Security / Asset cover ratio (NCD Series 8) = Fair value of the secured assets as computed by independent valuers / {Outstanding principal amount of NCD Series 8 + Interest accrued thereon)

Total Debt = Long term borrowings + Short term borrowings + interest accrued on debts (current and non-current)
Debt Equity Ratio = Total Debt/Total Equity

Debt Service Coverage Ratio = Earnings before interest {net of capitalization}, depreciation, exceptional items and tax / {Interest expenses {net of capitalization} + Principal repayments made during the
period which excludes bullet and full repayment of external borrowings}

Interest Service Coverage Ratio = Earnings before interest {net of capitalization}, depreciation, exceptional items and tax / (Interest expense {net of capitalisation})

Net worth = Corpus + Unit capital + Other equity

Current ratio = Current assets/ Current liabilities

Long term Debt = Long term borrowings (excluding current maturities of long term debt) + Interest accrued on debts (Non-current)

Long term debt to working capital ratio = Long term debt/ working capital {i.e. Current assets less current liabilities)

Current liability ratio = Current liabilities/ Total liabilities

Total debt to total assets = Total debt/ Total assets

Debtors Turnover = Revenue from operations (Annualised) / Average trade receivable

Bad debts to account receivable ratio = Bad debts (including provision for doubtful debts) / Average trade receivable

Mindspace REIT’s income is earned from its investment in asset SPVs and classified as income from investment activity and therefore, operating margin ratio is not applicable and not disclosed

Net profit margin = Profit after exceptional items and tax/ Total Income




= Chartered Accountants
Delo‘tte Lotus Corporate Park
= 1st Floor, Wing A-G
Haskins & Sells LLP CTS No. 85/A Jay Cosc
Off Western Express Highway
Goregaon (East)

Mumbai-400 063
Maharashtra, India

Tel: +91 22 6245 1000
Fax: +91 22 6245 1007
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON AUDIT OF ANNUAL CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND REVIEW OF QUARTERLY AND HALF YEARLY CONDENSED
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TO

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS,

K. RAHEJA CORP INVESTMENT MANAGERS PRIVATE LIMITED (FORMERLY KNOWN AS K.
RAHEJA CORP INVESTMENT MANAGERS LLP (THE “INVESTMENT MANAGER")

(ACTING IN CAPACITY AS THE INVESTMENT MANAGER OF MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS
REIT)

Opinion and Conclusion
We have :

(a) audited the Condensed Consolidated Financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
which comprises of the following:

e the Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2024,

e the Condensed Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive
Income) for the year ended 31 March 2024;

e the Condensed Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March 2024;

e the Condensed Consolidated Statement of Changes in Unitholders’ Equity for the year ended
31 March 2024;
the Consolidated Statement of Net Assets at fair value as at 31 March 2024;
the Consolidated Statement of Total Return at fair value for the year ended 31 March 2024;
the Statement of Net Distributable Cash Flow of the Mindspace Business Parks Real Estate
Trust and each of the subsidiaries for the year ended 31 March 2024; and

e summary of the material accounting policies and select explanatory notes

(b) reviewed the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements, which were subject to limited review
by us; which comprise of the following for the quarter and half year ended 31 March 2024 (refer
‘Other Matters’ section below):

s the Condensed Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive
Income) for the quarter and half year ended 31 March 2024;

e the Condensed Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the quarter and half year ended 31
March 2024;

e the Consolidated Statement of Total Return at fair value for the half year ended 31 March
2024;

e the Statement of Net Distributable Cash Flow of the Mindspace Business Parks Real Estate
Trust and each of the subsidiaries for the quarter and half year ended 31 March 2024; and

e summary of the material accounting policies and select explanatory notes.

both included in the accompanying “Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements for the Quarter and
Year Ended March 31, 2024" of Mindspace Business Parks REIT (“the REIT") and its Special Purpose
Vehicles (“the SPVs”) (the REIT and its SPVs together referred to as “the Mindspace Group”), (“the
Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements”) being submitted by the REIT pursuant to the
requirements of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Real Estate Investment Trusts) Regulations,
mended from time to time including any guidelines and circulars issued thereunder read with

ended (}the Listing Regulations”).
d, Offjge: O_f}lé"lﬁgernational Center, Tower 3, 32nd floor, Senapati Bapat Marg, Elphinstone Road (West), Mumbai-400 013, Maharashtra, India.
aﬂa[@/a??;ens LLP is registered with Limited Liability having LLP identification No: AAB-8737
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(a) Opinion on Annual Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024:

i. includes the financial information of the following entities:

S No. | Name of the entities
A Parent Entity
1 Mindspace Business Parks REIT

Subsidiaries/ Special purpose vehicles

Avacado Properties and Trading (India) Private Limited
Horizonview Properties Private Limited

KRC Infrastructure and Projects Private Limited
Gigaplex Estate Private Limited

Sundew Properties Limited

Intime Properties Limited

K. Raheja IT Park (Hyderabad) Limited

Mindspace Business Parks Private Limited

NN AWIN|IFCR

ii. is presented in accordance with the requirements the REIT regulations and the Listing
Regulations; and

iii. gives a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standard 34 “Interim
Financial Reporting” ("Ind AS 34”) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India
to the extent not inconsistent with the REIT Regulations of the state of affairs of the REIT as
at 31 March 2024, its profit including other comprehensive income, its cash flows, net assets
at fair value, total returns at fair value and net distributable cash flows and other financial
information of the Group for the year then ended.

(b) Conclusion on Unaudited Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements for the quarter
and half year ended March 31, 2024

With respect to the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements for the quarter ended March 31,
2024, based on our review conducted and procedures performed as stated in paragraph (b) of
Auditor’'s Responsibilities section below, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe
that the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements for the quarter and half year ended March
31, 2024, prepared in accordance with the REIT Regulations, the Indian Accounting Standard 34
and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, to the extent not inconsistent with the
REIT Regulations, and has not disclosed the information required to be disclosed in terms of the REIT
and Listing Regulations, including the manner in which it is to be disclosed, or that it contains any
material misstatement.

Basis for Opinion on the Audited Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements for the year
ended March 31, 2024

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing ("SAs") issued by Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (the “ICAI”). Our responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in paragraph (a) of Auditor's Responsibilities section below. We are independent of the
Mindspace Group in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the ICAI together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements for the
year ended March 31, 2024 and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
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these requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Emphasis of Matters

We draw attention to Note 40(5)(a) to the condensed Consolidated Financial Statements regarding
freehold land and building thereon (Paradigm, Malad) held by special purpose vehicle, Avacado Properties
and Trading (India) Private Limited which is presently under litigation. Pending the outcome of the
proceedings and a final closure of the matter, no adjustments have been made in the Condensed
Consolidated Financial Statements for the quarter and year ended March 31, 2024. Our opinion is not
modified in respect of this matter.

We draw attention to Note 2 which describes the Basis of presentation of Condensed Consolidated
Financial Statements and Note 19(a) which describes the presentation of “Unit Capital” as “Equity”
instead of compound financial instrument to comply with the REIT Regulations. Our opinion is not
modified in respect of this matter.

Management’s Responsibilities for the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

The Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements is the responsibility of the Investment Manager and
has been approved by them for the issuance. This responsibility includes the preparation and
presentation of the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements for the quarter and year ended March
31, 2024 that give a true and fair view of the state of affairs as at 31 March 2024, its consolidated net
profit and consolidated other comprehensive income and consolidated cash flows for the quarter, half
year and year ended 31 March 2024, its Consolidated Statement of changes in Unitholder’s Equity for
the year ended 31 March 2024, its net assets at fair value as at 31 March 2024, its total return at fair
value for the half year and year ended 31 March 2024, its net distributable cash flows for the quarter,
half year and year ended 31 March 2024 and other financial information of the Mindspace Group in
accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards and other accounting principles generally accepted in
India to the extent not inconsistent with REIT Regulations and in compliance with the REIT and Listing
Regulations. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records for
safeguarding the assets of the REIT and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities;
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Condensed Consolidated Financial
Statements that give a true and fair view and is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

The Investment Manager of the REIT and respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the
Mindspace Group are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records for safeguarding the
assets of the Mindspace Group and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection
and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable
and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls,
that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the respective financial statements that give a true and
fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used
for the purpose of preparation of this Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements by the of the
Investment Manager, as aforesaid.

In preparing the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements, the Investment Manager and respective

Board of Directors of the companies included in the Mindspace Group are responsible for assessing the

ability of the respective entities to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related

to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Investment Manager and

respective Board of Directors either intends to liquidate their respective entities or to cease operations,
B alistic alternative but to do so.
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The Investment Manager and respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Mindspace
Group are responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process of the Mindspace Group.

Auditor’'s Responsibilities

(a) Audit of the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31,
2024

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Condensed Consolidated
Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of this Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Annual Condensed Consolidated
Financial Statements , whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud
is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of such internal controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the Investment Manager.

e FEvaluate the appropriateness and reasonableness of disclosures made by the Investment
Manager in terms of the requirements specified under the REIT and Listing Regulations.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the Investment Manager use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Mindspace
Group to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we
are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Mindspace Group to cease
to continue as a going concern.

s Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Annual Condensed Consolidated
Financial Statements, including the disclosures, and whether the Annual Condensed
Consolidated Financial Statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

¢ Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information to express an
opinion on the Annual Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of financial information of such entities
included in the Annual Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements of which we are the
independent auditors.

f.-;'}i-.-'Mat\erlallty is the magnitude of misstatements in the Annual Condensed Consolidated Financial
};nents that, individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a
ably knowledgeable user of the Annual Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements may

; be ﬁ?uenced We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope
) /~
w 2
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of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any
identified misstatements in the Annual Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the REIT and such other entities included
in the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements of which we are the independent auditors
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

(b) Review of the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements for the quarter and half year
ended March 31, 2024

We conducted our review of the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements for the quarter and
half year ended March 31, 2024 in accordance with the Standard on Review Engagements (SRE)
2410 ‘Review of Interim Financial Information Performed by the Independent Auditor of the Entity’,
issued by the ICAI. A review of interim financial information consists of making inquiries, primarily
of the REIT's personnel responsible for financial and accounting matters, and applying analytical
and other review procedures. A review is substantially less in scope than an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs and consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would
become aware of all significant matters that might be identified in an audit. Accordingly, we do not
express an audit opinion.

The Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements includes the financial information of the entities
as listed under paragraph (a)(i) of Opinion and Conclusion section above.

Other Matters

e Asstated in Note 48(a) of the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements, the financial information
for the quarter and half year ended March 31, 2024 are the balancing figures between the audited
figures in respect of the full financial year and the published year to date figures up to the third
quarter and second quarter of the current financial year which were subject to limited review by us.
Our report on the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements is not modified in respect of this
matter.

e As stated in Note 48(b) of the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements, the financial information
for the Quarter and Half Year ended March 31, 2023 are the balancing figures between the audited
figures in respect of the full financial year and the published year to date figures up to the third
quarter and first half of the previous financial year which were subject to limited review by us. Our
report on the Statement is not modified in respect of this matter.

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm's Registration No. 117366W/W-100018)

i

Nilesh Shah

Partner

(Membership No. 49660)
UDIN:24049660BKFRQX5870

SHins X\
2> $ N\

Place: Mumbai
Date: April 30, 2024



MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT

RN:IN/REIT/19-20/003

Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

Consolidated Balance Sheet

(All amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated)

ASSETS

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Investment property
Investment property under construction
Other Intangible assets
Financial assets

- Investments

- Other financial assets
Deferred tax assets (net)
Non-current Tax assets (net)
Other non-current assets
Total non-current assets

Current assets
Inventories
Financial assets
- Trade receivables
- Cash and cash equivalents
- Other bank balances
- Other financial asscts
Other current assets
Total current assets
Asset Held for Sale

Total assets before regulatory deferral account

Regulatory deferral account - assets

Total assets

Note

~ N W

13

14
15A
15B

16

17

51

As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
(Audited) (Audited)

1,129 1,296
204,037 205,144
14,567 7,867
1 1
33 29
3,160 2,526
301 473
778 928
1,175 580
225,181 218,844
44 72
1,092 57;‘
3,250 4,062
2,850 206
3,747 2,575
589 5.¢
11,572 8,33

1,465 -
238,218 226,877
228 354
238,446 227,231




MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT
RN:IN/REIT/19-20/003

Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
Consolidated Balance Sheet

(All amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated)

Note As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES (uslited) (Audited)
EQUITY
Corpus 18 0 0
Unit Capital 19 162,839 162,839
Other equity 20 (21,150) (15,012)
Equity attributable to unit holders of the Mindspace REIT 141,689 147,827
Non-controlling interest 45 7,596 7,955
Total equity 149,285 155,782
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities

- Borrowings 21 48,836 45,842

- Lease liabilities 115 114

- Other financial liabilities 22 3,355 4,153
Provisions 23 61 67
Deferred tax liabilities (net) 24 3,732 2,494
Oilier non-current liabilities 25 431 482
Total non-current liabilities 56,530 53,152
< rreni liabilities
Fincacial liabilities

- Borrowings 26 20,892 8,693

- Lease liabilities 13 13

- Trade payables 27

- total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and
small enterprises 224 133
- total outstanding dues of creditors other than
micro enterprises and small enterprises 864 576

- Other financial liabilities 28 9,411 7,696
Provisions 29 7 34
Other current liabilities 30 1,185 1,127
Current Tax liabilities (net) 31 35 25
Total current liabilities 32,631 18,297
Total liabiiities before regulatory deferral account 89,161 71,449
Total equity and liabilities before regulatory deferral account 238,446 227,231
Regulatory deferral account - liabilities - -
Total Equity and Liabilities 238,446 227,231
Material accounting policies 3
See the accompanying notes to the Condensed Consolidated 4-52

Financial Statements

As per our report of even date attached:

for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
K Raheja Corp Investment Managers Private Limited (Formerly known as
K Raheja Corp Investment Managers LLP)

Firm’s registration number: 117366W/W-100018 R\ anager to Mindspace Business Parks REIT)

N,W““J’/ W J!@;) ol ehre

Nilesh Shah . Raheja Preeti N. Chheda
Partner Chief Executive Officer  Chief Financial Officer

for Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP

Chartered Accountants

Membership number: 49660
Place: Mumbai
Date : 30 April 2024

DIN: 00029010
Place: Mumbai
Date : 30 April 2024

Place: Mumbai
Date : 30 April 2024

Place: Mumbai
Date : 30 April 2024



(¥9€)

(89€°1)

- (¥9€) (89¢'1) - (#9¢€)

0Lt'6 by poL'p 9LYy 8LI‘T TSE'T 97€°C

) #9) (6¢) (89) 9 (62) (6D
S0T (8) 18 ) ) 9¢ 6 8
[19‘s $65°6 SSHy 098°% SELY 9027 06€C LYET
pss'e LT8°E T 8061 516°1 0z6 6L6 ov6 8¢
1£p'€ 995‘p 788°1 [ata TS€T LL6 191°1 161°1 LE
965°S1 886°L1 781°8 786°8 900°6 £OT°Y 0S5y 8LYY
SHHL 18L'0 SYl‘e SEVE £PEE 0791 8LS 1 €OL1
6LTE 6L0°Y vSLT 9£6'1 £HIT L8 LIOT [ZAN1 9¢
081 191 €6 L9 v6 6y € £9
$9¢ 665 ¥6T L0 67 Syl 0€1 791
94 74 al 1 St 11 9 6
L8 901 N2 0S 9 vz 1€ ST
L 9 i ¢ € { 0 €
4 z 3 : I ( [ 0
L8T 867 o1 sl 321 99 SL 89 193
L18 £6L 0LE £0¥ 06€ 6L1 00T 061
ST 1 S 1 0 z 0 .
181°C 01L Ty v0$ 907 L97 L8 611
IP0°€T 69LVT LTETL [IYaa 6YET1 £TL'S 801°9 vZ'9
£9 08T T 501 SL 9w 8T v e
LST L67 19 ZAl €LY 0¥ 6L v6 ¢s
1287 6T czT1L 161t 01Tt L99'S 100°9 0019 €

{paipny’; {(papry) +(ponpreun) (poupneun) wPojtpnRUN) +(poypneun) «(paypneun) w(panpnenn)

£20T Ye 1€ PZOTUAIBN TE - s EZ0TWIRNW [T £207 Pquaidag PIOT YA G E £707 Ydre 1£ £207 PquaRq 1€ 20T Y218 I€
PApUD 1ea£ 3 104 POpId S8 K Oy S04 POPUY 1BIKJIBU IR 105 (f POUD 183K JITY AR I0F  PIPEA 8IS 8 42 40y Popu? 1911eNb 3Y1 104 Popua 1Enb A 104 papua Jopenb an) z0x

ajoN

(1S PuUe g6y “V6b 910U 10)01) Swoy] jeuondeoxyg

xg) pue swayl [euondadxa 10joq 1yold

sxspouad

Ja1[3ea J0 109dsa1 Ul (319u) (asuadxa)ewoour 10jendey : ppy
(3ou) (ssuadxa) sowoour Ko1e|nFay : ppy

Xe) pue
swa)) [euondadxa ‘saniayIT pajem3aa el 210J3q Jyo1g

asuadx¢ uormruoure pue uoyerdaidag
1509 9oueur]

X¥) pue swaji
[euondadxd ‘osuadxa ; awoduy Ar0)enSas ‘uoyesplowr
pue  wonemdidsp  ‘s)s0d  ddueuy al10jdq  sSuaey

sasuadxy jerof,

sosuadxa 1150

$39J jeuoissajold 29 e8yy
$39] Juswefeuepy
Sapupny

asuadxs ooueInsuy

$33] Uonen[EA

S99 991SN ],

asuadxa suyouaq safordurg
paseyaind 1omod Jo 150D
PIO3 S[eustew Jo 150;7)
SD[AIAS JOBIUOD JIOM JO 150
sasuadxy

Suled pue Jwodul [e30 ],
auIoou] JaYy1Q

SWOOU[ 1S2IU|
suoneiad() UIOL SNUAATY
suies pue awoduy

(Pa3CIS 25IMIIQ)0 SSIUN TOIIUL “Fy UL SPUNOWE [[y)
5507 PUE JJOIJ JO JUILIN)E)G PIJEPIIOSu0)y

I 1 o J
£00/0T-61/LIMUNT-NY

LI39 SHYVA SSANISNE ADVASANIIA




6¥C 79¢ 6S <. L8I- SLT Ly 06 S8 152101 HUI[[01TOd e 0) JqeIngLIe
Jeak/pouad ay) 10] (SS0])/2W0dUN dAISUIYIIdWOD [B)O

0€8'C 0ST's £98 L89°T €95°C (862) 6LET 981°1 LT 20edspuijA Jo sI9p[oy JIun 0 3|qeInqLIne
Juak ; porsad oy Joj (ssof)/puredur Arsuayaadwoed [eyo,
6L0°€ 719°s [423 $L8'T 8ELT (Sye) 69%°1 LT 1834 /porrad d) 103 (SS0p)/AWOIUT dAISUIYIAdWOD [B)O ],
= = = & = = : B $)$3J3)u1 FuIjjou0I
Uou 0) I[qBINGLIIE duodul AISTIYIIduIod 1O
® sv © = # © = = LITY dedsputiyl
30 S1I3P[OY }1UN 0) I[QEINQLINIE dUWedul JAISUIYPIIdwod 191
= = - - = - - - JA0QE 0) BBl XE) dwoedu] (11)
- - =5 - - . = - §S01 10 31302d 0) PALJISSEIIAI A [[IM Jey) SwWA (1) ‘g
- - - g ® - = - - 3A0qe 0) 3une[aa Xe) dwoduj (11)
(9 (0) © - ) © - 0 (#0sse) /imqen
JJOUSq PAUYAp JO SJUSUIRINSEIWAI UO (SSOT)/Urer) -
$S0[ 20 J1J0ad 03 PIIJISSE[II A JOU [[IM JBY) SWAH) (1) 'V
uwodul AAIsuYRIdwod 1YIQ
S8 3
6¥T 79¢ 6§ L81 sLl (v 06 SIsa1au Sulflojued
-uou 0) IqeInquNe Jeak/porrad ay) a0y (ss0T) A0
9£8'7 0sT's 698 L89°T £95°T (z62) 6LET 981°L 113y 2oedspuriy
30 SI3p|oY }un 0) IqEINquUNE J8IA/poLiad ay) 10y (Sso)AYOI]
S80°€ 719 876 ¥L8'T 8ELT (6E€) 69F°'L ILTL 1eak/poLiad ayy 10 (ssoT)AY0Id
66T°F P6b'€ 9L1T 076°'L . pLS'T 6b1°L €88 169 asuadxa Xe ],
YOr'T (1Ta1 LOI'T S06 S0S 899 16€ 21} 6€ 231y B} Panigjeg
S68°'1 y80°C 6L6 STO'1 690°T 8% /34 LLS 6¢ Xe) Juony)
PSE‘L 901°6 pOT‘E voL'Y ucr 018 TSET 796'1 Xe) 210J9q Y014
(ponpny) (powpny) «+(ponpneun) (poitpneun) »(panipnenn) «(poupneuny) w(ponprieun) w(ponprmun)
€207 WIEN 1t $207 T8I TE £207 UP1eI € €207 Pquordag 707 PABIN £207 WIBW 1€ £207 18qua30q 1€ P07 WIEW 1€
papus 1eak 1) Joy papud 182£ 27) 104 POpUS JeaA Jley U} 103 OF POPUD 1ea£ By Aup 1o Papua JBaA J[eu 3y 10, Popu3 saprenb ay) 104 papua Jauenb aip Jog papud Jayenb ag) o4

290N

(PAJBIS I5IMIDL}0 SSI[UN LOJELL 53 UY SJUNOWE [y)
SSOT PUE JGOLJ JO JTIWNE)S PAIEPIOSUOD)

&l 4 D> D
€00/0T-61/LIFW/NINY

LIFY SHUV SSANISNE IDVASANIW




#207 1udy ¢ : aeq
IEqUUNA] :908]J

430110
[v1oUDUL 1D
BpAYYD) "N W3Rdad

BNEoY e sasd/l

(d'171 s398euey Judusaau] dio) efayey] D] se umouy A[Idwioy) p

¥20z dv of : 21eq
[eqUNJA] :398[d

420UfJO danaxy f2147)

ALEN H
-

07

(LITY 376 ssoutsng 2ou

=

I'T ABALL] S.

A Yudumsaauy dio)) elayey
JO $10109.11(] JO pIEOg SU3 JO J[BYAq UO Pue 10§

70T Iudy ¢ : e
fequInpy :9%e[J

1A 01 1oZeuepy s Guy

20z 1Hdy 0f : 1ed
TeqUINJA :298] 4

0996§ Toquinu diysIaqusjAl
Iomreg

YeysS YsajIN

/4.4

810001-M/MO9ELI | “1oquinu uopensigal s,uuryg

S)URUNOIDY PaISHEy)

d'TT SIPS 29 SUPISEH IN10Q 103

:payoENE 9]EP UAS 10 Hodar 1no 1ad sy

€207 ‘1€ YoIR] P3ep 15pI0 YA UO Paseq £Z0g Y2Iey papue Jeak pue 1apenb o 10 jusugsnfpe dn anif 4.,

454
€
8Ly S8'8 Lyl 139 wh (6v'0) 134 00'C
8Ly S8°8 LY'1 1394 w©wy (6¥°0) 13%4 00T
1404 920°6 124! v9'v wy (s¥"0) 6¢°C | {14
1294 90°6 'l 12274 Wy (s¥'0) 68T $0'T
44
(penpny) (panpny) «(porpneun) (penpneun) «(payipneun) w(PoNPREUN) «(ponpneun) «(panpnaan)
€207 YOIEIN 1€ $T0Z YISl 1€ €207 WPIEW 1€ £207 Pquadag $20Z 1B 1€ £20T YIIBN 1€ £207 PqUIRJ 1€ $TOT UIBI [E
popus Jeaf ay) Jog Papud 1maL a1} Jog Popus 1ea J{BY 9 104 () POPLLD Teak 3y 31 104 POpua 1834 J[BY o1) J0 Ppapua myrenb ay) 104 Popu3 Jauenb 3y 10y Papuo 1313unb ay) Jog
0N

81 SION IoJay4
SIUSUIS)E)S [BIDUBUL]

PaEpI[OSUO)) pasuapuo)) oy o) sajou Jurkueduroode oy 908

saijod 3ununodde [ELI)EIA

pamia-
oiseq-

:Sadueeyq [e113Ja( £10)8M3IY U JHIWIAOUI JAU 13)JY

paniqg-
oiseg-

:SaaUR|EY [EII2J3( A10JEMBAY Ul JUIWIACW JAU JI0JIG

Jun J3d Suuiey

(Pa)IE)S ISLAIDY)O SSI|UN TOIM ‘SY U1 S)ONOME 1Y)

SSO’] PUE Jj014 JO JUIWYEIS PIICPIOSUD)

i i g 2 D
£€00/07-61/LITW/NI*NA
LITY S3AVA SSINISNE AIVASANIW



0€6°€1 S9T's1 L00'8 TsL UL £61'c 900 6ILE
(9¢LD) 76’ (s88) (res) 060°D (60%) (599} Szp)
999°GT 68I°LT 7688 9LE'R 7188 T06°€ 1L9% {247
2 6LE (€12) LTl (54 91 6 €0T
(y1) 9z1 61) 99 09 8¢ 6¢ | (4
19¢ (4£3) (8%) 4 (€9 (se1) [43 09
(€60°1) arve) (6D (Lo1) L1) (249] (ev0) ¥9
80L (0g9) 881°1 (SLy) (ss) 1LT 60% ¥9p)
(ot) 87 (91 0¢ @ #1) (o1 8
€L8'ST 8SS'LI 1€7°8 €6L'8 y9L8 090 S6€Y LED
89¢°1 $9¢ 89¢°1 - ¥9¢ 89¢'T - ¥Of
Lo wen (C19)] #8) (op) (D (o1 (0€)
[ I E 0 I : 0 0
(8¢) (s¢) (12) (€19 @wn (en) 6) (8)
L8 9€ LL It 14 8 - 74
0S or 0z S S Sl (@ ]
- LS E LS - - - -
(L) (0s2) (87) (s6) (ss1) (28} (92) (6L)
1£¥' 995y 7881 v1z'T 4 LL6 191°1 161°1
$SS'E LT8E SH8°L 806°T 616°1 06 6L6 0r6
$8E°L 901°6 v01°¢ P6L Y 4 x4 z18 (4134 796°T
(panpny) (panpny) +(PaupnEUN) «(pa1pneun) «(paupneun) +(pavpreun) +(panpneun)
€707 YN [ ¢ 70T WIBIAl 1€ €207 YO 1E €20 Jaquaidag g 70T Y218l 1€ £20T YO 1€ €707 13quisoaq ¢ 70T Y318l 1€
popus 1ok oY1 10]  POPUD 18I 3Y) 10  PAPUS Jedk ey oYl 10 Popud AL JEYIYI 104  PAPUD 1k JlBY 3y) 104  Papud Jaurenb o) o Popua saprenb ay) Jof papu? sapenb ayy Jog

(V) sani1ande Suneiado woay (Ul pasn)/pajelduds ysed JIN

PAAT9031 punjal Jo jou pred saxe] 1021

suonesado uioay (Ul pasn)/pajerauald yse)

sajqeAed apen up asearoul / (3searda()

(sanrqer

/ S19SSE) JUNOOOR [BLIJap A10)e[nTa1 Ut 9seaIoul / (9sea193(])

suoistaoid pue

sanIqel] JOYI0 ‘SINI[IQRI] [EIOUBUL JOYIO U] (ISBAIOAP) / 9SBAIOU]

SJOSSE IOYJO PUE SJOSSE [RIOURUY JOYJO UL 9SEIIdIP / (95B010U])
SI[QRAISD2I IpEI) UI 353103 / (9searouy)
SOLIOJUSAUI U] 35€2I93P / (I5BAIOU])

[e3de) Sup[Iom U JUIWIAOA]

saSuey? [ejdes Bunjiom 310)aq Moy ysed Sunesddo

(1S pue g6t V6 210u Iojar) swoy [euondsoxy
Soeq USPLIM palmbai 105uo] ou sanIfIqer]

(30u) sso] uonenonyy agueyoxs udiog
sjun puny jenjnuu jo uondwapal uo urer)
paysI{owa( /IO USILM SJaSSy

(3au) $19p 1NJIQNOP 10J UOISIA0I]
9NU3ARI Pa[[Iqu[)] L0] UOISIAOI]

WIOdUL 1S3I)U]
§1S00 dUBUL]

asuadxo uoyesyIouwre pue uoneoarda

110} sjudunsnipy

X®] 910J9q 11j01

saniande Juneiado woly smoy ysed

(PaJe)S ASIAIDYIO SSI|UN UOTIW *SY UT SJUNOWE [|Y)
MOL YSED JO JUIW)EIS PIIRPIIOSUO)

1 p { D P

o]

€00/0T-6 1/ LITRU/NI-NY
LIAd SV SSANISNE HDVASANIA



1981 (Ls6) 16€°C 197°7) €0€1 9EP‘T €1 671 (O+d+V) syudeainba yses pue yses ul (ISe3199p)/aSLAIdUT JIN

(€95°r) (S€9‘1D) @11'n (90¢) (67¢'D) €9 (SLY'D (790} (D) seniande 3urdueuy (Ul pasn)/ PIJEIIUII YSEI JON
(1L8°€) (195'v) (8Z8°1) €117 [Crad] (156) asr'n (§97°1) pred s)s00 aoueuLy
49 ({4 (D 1) = (48] - - sysodaq pun, ssuadxy A19A005y
xe} Surpnjour) Iap[o
(60021 @or'zm (801°9) (s60°9) (10’9 (€60°0) aro'e) (100°€) T SCaTTEs e esse—— ﬂ%_nmsmﬁ %:w?wEwos
(€1 @n (€0 - @D (gD I (€D SONI|IqRI] 9583 SPIBMO) JUdtuAe ]
(£86) = (£86) 2 = (€86) - = 1adeq [epwwo) Jo uonduspay
(18) (19) (0©) () ((20) (09 (®) () sasuadxa anSSI SAIMUIGAP F|QIIAAUCD-UON
£86 'L £86 d obr'T - 2! ™ 1odeq [BIOISWUIOD) JO ANSST WOL SPIdd0Ig
00%'s1 00F°EL 00S°‘S 000°01 00+'€ 00S°S = 00t°c SPUOQ PUE SDIMUIQIP J[QIHIAUOD-UOU JO INSST WOL SPI00IJ
(6Lg'€T) (27594 r1°s) (6£8°01) (SL8'p) (€S1') (19¢°¢) wIs'D a1qIIaAUCY-UOU Surpnjour sFurmoLoq aﬁ%ﬁﬂﬁﬂﬁ%ﬂ
16£'6 SL6'ST 2089 6L'8 ¥8T°L 95Ey 6£6'Y SYTT SFUIMOLIO] [BUIAIXD WOL SPIdd0I]
SAIANIR FuUBULY WOy SMOJ USBD) D
(90s°L) (L8S'PT) (86%'1) (L6V'6) (060°s) (689°‘T) (L18°7) (€LT°7) (d) sonIANIE SuNSIAUL WI0LJ PAJBIIUAT / (Ul Pasn) YSEI JON
)4 SL 1z £s (44 Cl At 01 PAAI9D21 15919
0s (€L8°€) LI (606°€) 9€ €Ll 18 (st) saoue[eq YUBq J9Y)0/8)Is0dap PaXY U JUSWISACIA
LE5°TT T60°€T 0LS°TI L6LL S6T°'s IvIL €LST LT PUNj [emnwW jO uopdwapas Woy spasdolg
(105°70) (LSO'ED) (9gs‘zn) (6LL'L) (8L7°S) (62T1°L) (595D (€1L°D) puny [enjnul ul JUSUNSIAU]
) ) - () I - [ - PUOg JUSWIUISAOK) UT JUSUISIAU]
sjuowrdinba
& o i € g ) ; g pue juejd Auadoid 2p Apadord jusunsaAur Jo 9[ES WOL SPIIOIJ
97) (%4) 1) 38 @D ) ® ® ssaidoxd ur-y1om [ende))

pue juowdmbyg pue sjueyd ‘Apedord uo paunour simrpuadxy

*(q6 210N) uonismboe jasse pue s10}paIo [eydes

(e9L) (sos‘om) 1Ly (Tv9°s) (€91°9) (£88°1) (1160 (TS0 . Jo jau ‘sodueape [endes Suipnpoul uoponisuod opun Ausdoid
jusunsaaul pue Apoedord jusunssaur uwo paumdur ammipuadxyg

SINIALIE SUNSIAUL WOLY SMO YSBD ¢

(papny) (panpny) «(paupneun) (powpneun) +(patpneun) +(parrprenn) +(panprieny) «(powpneun)
£T0T PR ¢ ¥70T WA 1€ €COT W 1€ £707 0qui21dag Of $70T U IBIAL 1€ €T0T UL 1€ £70T 1aquada( 1§ 20T WAIBIA 1€
Popus 1ok 9y1 104  PAPUS JBIAIY) 10  popud Jedk JEY Sl 10  Papus TesKJRY Syl Io  PIPUd 183K Jley ay) 104  popus mpmnboylsof  popudsdpmnboyjiog  PIPuUd Jayienb oy dog

(P3)EIs 3S1MIIYJO SSI|UN UOI[IUI *SY UI S)UNOWE [IY)
MO]J YSED) JO JUIWI]B)S PI)EpIosuo))
) JE)S Jer L 1 O P puo)

£00/07-6 1/ LITY/NI: NI
LITH SV SSANISNE ADVISANIN




vzoz 1udy Og - aea
lequnyA 904

429410 foioubUL] 214D
BpAYUD "N 1991

ey Y

(411 s138euey Judunsaau] dio)) eloyey] I se umowy A[JawI0) pay

¥20T udy 0¢ : 218
1equINA :998[d

420U PAINDBXT o1y

AN

(LITA syied ssauisng adedspurpy 0} IoFeuejy] oY) se

=y

r] 9BALIg $3

¥70z 1udy 0¢ : 1A
TequInJA :228[J

W Juaunsaau] dio) efayey M

JO $1010911(] JO pIeOg 9} JO J[eYyaq UO pue 10J

[4%4

$207 [1dy o€ * A1ed
TBQUINJA :90B]J

0996% :Ioquinu drysIaquisTy
AUV
ueys ysapN

W

810001-M/M99ELT | :I2qUINU UOHENSIZAI S, UL
SJUBIUNOIDY Palayey)
d'TT SIPS 79 sup{SeH dnlo[d( 103

:payoe)Ie 2Jep U243 Jo HodoI 1no Jod sy

8% 10N 1) «

sjuawIvlel§

[eIOUBUL] PAJEPIOSUO)) PISUSpuo)) 3y} 0} sajou Jurkuediuodse ay) 99§
"SUOI)OBSUEL] YSED UOU 103 (B)9 30U I19Jay T 910N

" SMOL] yseD) Jo JusuIels, - £ (S ANI) PIepuel§ Sununodsoy sy} ul Jno as Se ,pOYIaJA 1031Ipu], Y} Iopun paledsid usaq sey justualelg Mo] YSBD 9A0QE YT, '] 910N

£P8°T 9881 €8T €8S 988°1 €487 y6S 988°L
612°1) (T4 (61Z'1) 92L°2) [CZ ) 617D (Z9L'T) 9e'D
088 = 088 08 - 088 SIL -
€ 43 € 99 (43 € 09 4
9LIE S6I°E oLI'E IL1°¢ S61°E 9LI‘E 8LIC S6TE
€ 3 € € € € € £
€8T 988°1 €8T €8S 988°1 €8T ¥6S 988°1
786 €8T IS €8T €8S Loy €8S p6S
(panpny) (poaipmy) +(paupneupy) (panpneany) +(panpneun) +(paupneun) +(paypnenp)) w(pan1pneun)
EC0TWEW L€ PT0T Y3IBIN 1€ €207 PR 1T €207 12quaidas 0 $T0T Y2IBIAl 1€ £20T YoreN 1€ €707 32qWa3(q 1€ $T0T YIBIA IE
POpuUD 10K 0yl 10]  PIPUD 189K Y} 10  PopUS JeoA JIEY 93 J0J  POPUL JeoA JBU oyl lo  POPUD JBAK J[BY YY) J0  popud 1airenb ayj 104 papus Jauenb oy 104 PapuR Japaenb ayy Jog

€ )0U 13J31 - Sa1d[j0d BuNUNOIIE |BIINBIA

183k / porsad a1 Jo pud ay) Je syudjealnba yses pue yseH
YRIPIGAO Yueg : SS¥T

SYIUOUI 3211} ULY) $S9] JO Ajumewu [euISUO Yim sjunoode jisodep ul-
SJUNOJOE MOIDSI Ul -

SJUNODOE. JUSLND Ul -

syueq yim ddue[eq

PUBY UO YSED)

(97 % VSI ‘ou 3jou 13J31) sastadwod syudjeanba yses pue yse)

183K / por1ad 3y) Jo pua ay) je sjuadjeAlnba gsed pue ysed
1e24/po1aad ay) jo SuruuyBaq ay) e sjuareainba yses pue yse)

(Pa)E)S ISIAIBIO SSI|UN UOTIUI *SY UT SHUNOWE [[Y)
AOL YSED JO JUIUA)EIS PAIEPIIOSUOD)

S I8l 14 pajepl D P puo)

€00/02-6 1/ LITA/NI:NY
LI SV SSANISNE HDVISANIA




MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT
RN:IN/REIT/19-20/003

Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
Consolidated Statement of changes in Unit holder's Equity
(All amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated)

A. Corpus Amount
Balance as on 1 April 2022 0
Changes during the year -
Balance as on 31 March 2023 0
Balance as on 1 April 2023 0
Changes during the year -
Closing balance as on 31 March 2024 0

B. Unit Capital Amount
Balance as at 1 April 2022 162,839
Changes during the year -
Balance as at 31 March 2023 162,839
Balance as at 1 April 2023 162,839
Changes during the year -
Balance as at 31 March 2024 162,839

C. Other equity

Retained Earnings Amount
Balance as at 1 April 2022 . (6,743)
Add: Profit for the year attributable to the unitholders of Mindspace REIT 2,836
Add: Other comprehensive income/(expense) attributable to the unitholders of Mindspace REIT 6)
Less: Distribution to Unitholders for the quarter ended 31 March 2022* (2,734)
Less: Distribution to Unitholders for the quarter ended 30 June 2022* (2,811)
Less: Distribution to Unitholders for the quarter ended 30 September 2022* 2,817)
Less: Distribution to Unitholders for the quarter ended 31 December 2022* (2,846)
Less: Transfer to/from Debenture Redemption Reserve** (425)
Balance as at 31 March 2023 (15,546)
Balance as at 1 April 2023 (15,546)
Add: Profit for the year attributable to the unitholders of Mindspace REIT 5,250
Add: Other comprehensive income/(expense) attributable to the unitholders of Mindspace REIT ()]
Less: Distribution to Unitholders for the quarter ended 31 March 2023* (2,852)
Less: Distribution to Unitholders for the quarter ended 30 June 2023* (2,846)
Less: Distribution to Unitholders for the quarter ended 30 September 2023* (2,841)
Less: Distribution to Unitholders for the quarter ended 31 December 2023* (2,846)
Less: Transfer to/from Debenture Redemption Reserve** 134

Balance as at 31 March 2024

(21,550)




MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT
RN:IN/REIT/19-20/003

Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
Consolidated Statement of changes in Unit holder's Equity
(All amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated)

Debenture Redemption Reserve** Amount
Balance as at 1 April 2022 109
Transfer to retained earnings 4)
Transfer from retained earnings 430
Balance as at 31 March 2023 534
Balance as at 1 April 2023 534
Transfer to retained earnings (299)
Transfer from retained earnings 165
Balance as at 31 March 2024 400

* The distributions made by Trust to its Unitholders are based on the Net Distributable Cash flows (NDCF) of Mindspace REIT under the REIT
Regulations.

** Refer Note 20

Material accounting policies - refer note 3
See the accompanying notes to the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements 4-52
As per our report of even date attached:

for Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
K Raheja Corp Investment Managers Private Limited (Formerly known as K Raheja
Corp Investment Managers LLP)

. (acting as the Manager to Mindspace Business Parks REIT)

Chartered Accountants

Firm’s registration number: 117366W/W-100018

e’

Nilesh Shah C. Raleja RamesH Nair Preeti N. Chheda
Partner wcto Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer
Membership number: 49660 : 00029010

Place: Mumbai lack: Mumbai Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai

Date : 30 April 2024 Date : 30 April 2024 Date : 30 April 2024 Date : 30 April 2024



MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT
RN:IN/REIT/19-20/003

C

d

dC lidated Fi ial St: £

(Al amounts are in Rs. million unless otherwise stated)
Disclosure pursuant to SEBI circular No, CIR/IMD/D¥/146/2016

A)

—_

Statement of Net Assets At Fair Value

As at 31 March 2024 (Audited) As at 31 March 2023 (Audited)

S.No Particulars Book Value* Fair value Book Value* Fair value

A Assets 238,446 323,575 227,231 301,174
B Liabilities** 89,161 86,158 71,449 68,962
C Net Assets (A-B) 149,285 237,417 155,782 232,212
D Less: Non controlling interests 7,596 11,746 7,955 11,649
E Net Assets attributable to unit holders of Mindspace REIT (C-D) 141,689 225,671 147,827 220,563
E No. of units 593,018,182 593,018,182 593,018,182 593,018,182
G Net Assets Value per unit (E/F) 239 381 249 372

* as reflected in the Balance Sheet

**Refer Note-5 below

Measurement of fair values:

The fair values of Investment property, Property, plant and equipment, Investment property under construction and Capital work-in-progress are solely based on an independent valuation performed by an
external property valuer ("independent valuer"), having appropriately recognised professional qualification and recent experience in the location and category of the properties being valued.

Other assets include cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances and other working capital balances which are not factored in the discounted cashflow method used in determining the fair value of investment
property, investment property under development, property, plant and equipment, capital work-in-progress and intangibles.

Valuation technique

The fair value measurement for al! of the Investment property, Property, plant and equipment, Investment property under construction and Capital work-in-progress (excluding Pocharam) has been categorized as
a Level 3 fair value based on the inputs to the valuation technique used. The valuer has followed a Discounted Cash Flow method, except for valuation of land for future development where the valuer has
adopted Market Approach or Government Benchmark Price / Guideline Value as may be applicable. The Discounted Cash Flow valuation model considers the present value of net cash flows to be generated
from the respective properties, taking into account the expected rental growth rate, vacancy period, occupancy rate, and lease incentive costs. The expected net cash flows are discounted using the risk adjusted
discount rates. Among other factors, the discount rate estimation considers the quality of a building and its location (prime vs secondary), tenant credit quality, lease terms and investor return expectations from
such properties.

The existing buildings in Pocharam are unoccupied. Considering the absence of leasing demand in the near term, and therefore no expected income stream and also since the asset is held for sale, the Valuer has
opted for the Cost Approach. Under this method, the land component is assessed using the Comparable Sales/Quoted Instances Method under the Market Approach while building and plant & machinery
components have been valued using the Depreciated Replacement Cost Method.

Notes
Project wise break up of fair value of assets as at 31 March 2024 is as follows

Particulars Fair value of Investment Other assets at book value Total assets
property, Property, plant and
equipment and Investment
property under construction
Intime 19,559 1,601 21,160
KRIT 37,865 818 38,683
Sundew 63,634 517 64,151
MBPPL
MBPPL - Mindspace Airoli East 47,524
MBPPL - Mindspace Pocharam** 1,488
3,317 79,818
MBPPL - Commerzone Yerwada 18,259
MBPPL - The Square, Nagar Road 9,230
Gigaplex 48,021 1,064 49,085
Avacado
Avacado - Mindspace Malad 11,329
124 16,371
Avacado - The Square, BKC 4,917
KRC Infra
KRC Infra - Gera Commerzone Kharadi 31,315 882 39,742
KRC Infra - Camplus 7,545
Horizonview 11,363 115 11,478
Mindspace REIT - 47,808 47,808
Less: Eliminations and Other Adjustments* - (44,721) (44,721)
Total 312,048 11,525 323,575
Less: Non-controlling interest (13,316)| (350) (13,666)
2 1 0!
Total attributable to unitholders 98,732 173 A0

* 1t includes eliminations primarily pertaining to lending to SPVs by Mindspace REIT and consolidation adjustments
** Classified as "Asset Held for Sale"”




2 Project wise break up of fair value of assets as at 31 March 2023 is as follows

Particulars Fair value of Investment Other assets at book value Total assets*
property, Property, plant and
equipment, Investment
property under construction
and Capital work-in-progress
Intime 18,911 1,898 20,809
KRIT 34,243 625 34,868
Sundew 62,189 398 62,587
MBPPL
MBPPL - Mindspace Airoli East 45,213
MBPPL - Mindspace Pocharam 2,327
MBPPL - Commerzone Yerwada 19,389 e 82,424
MBPPL - The Square, Nagar Road 9,223
Gigaplex 44,865 741 45,606
Avacado
Avacado - Mindspace Malad 10,582
Avacado - The Square, BKC 4,653 125 =
KRC Infra
KRC Infra - Gera Commerzone Kharadi 26,162 1,524 34,677
KRC Infra - Camplus 6,991
Horizonview 8,205/ 301 8,506
Mindspace REIT - 35,421 35,421
Less: Eliminations and Other Adjustments* - (40,251) (40,251)
Total ’ 292,953 8,221 301,174
Less: Non-controlling interest (12,688) (321) (13,009)
[Total attributable to unitholders 280,265 7,900 288,165

* It includes eliminations primarily pertaining to lending to SPVs by Mindspace REIT and consolidation adjustments

3 Other assets at book value excludes capital advances, unbilled revenue, finance lease receivable and regulatory assets (which forn part of fair valuation of the Investment property, Property, plant and equipment
and Investment property under construction).

4 Power Deemed Distribution License operations in Gigaplex, MBPPL and KRC Infra have been valued by the valuer separately using Discounted Cash Flow method.

5 Liabilities at book value for calculation of fair value of NAV excludes lease liability, provision for revenue share, capital creditors (other than related to initial direct cost) and retention payables (which form part
of fair valuation of the Investment property, Property, plant and equipment and Investment property under construction).

Significant accounting policies - refer note 3

4-52
See the accompanying notes to the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
As per our report of even date attached:
for Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
K Raheja Corp Investment Managers Private Limited (Formerly known as K Raheja

Chartered Accountants Corp Investment Managers LLP)

Firm's registration number: 117366W/W-100018

Nilesh Shah

Partner
Membership number: 49660

acting as the Manager to Mindspace Business Parks REIT)

L
l‘!ﬁ

Chief Executive Officer

M‘Aﬂ St

Preeti N. Chheda
Chief Financial Officer

Place: Mumbai

Date : 30 April 2024

Place: Mumbai

Date : 30 April 2024

Place: Mumbai
Date : 30 April 2024

Date : 30 April 2024



MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT
RN:IN/REIT/19-20/003

C

d dC Lidated Fi ial S

(All amounts are in Rs. millions unless otherwise stated)

B)

Statement of Total Return at Fair Value (Attributable to unit holders of Mindspace REIT)
Total Return - Attributable to unit holders of Mind REIT
S.No Particulars For the half year ended | For the half year ended | For the half year ended | For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2024 30 September 2023 31 March 2023 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
(unaudited)* (unaudited) (unaudited)* (audited) (audited)
A Total comprehensive Income 2,563 2,687 863 5,250 2,830
Add : Changes in fair value not recognised in total
B g . En 9,595 1,653 8,083 11,249 14,847
comprehensive income (refer Note below)
C (A+B) [Total Return 12,158 4,340 8,946 16,499 17,677
Note:

1 Measurement of fair values:

The fair values of Investment properly, Property, plant and equipment, [nvestment property under construction and Capital work-in-progress are solely based on an independent valuation performed by an external property

valuer ("independent valuer"), having appropriately recognised professional qualification and recent experience in the location and category of the properties being valued.

2 In the above statement, changes in fair value not recognised for the year ended 31 March 2024, year ended 31 March 2023, half year ended 31 March 2024, half year ended 30 September, 2023 and half year ended 31 March
2023 have been computed based cn the change in fair values for such periods adjusted for change in book value of Investment Property, Investment property under construction and Property, Plant and Equipment and Capital
work in progress, Capilal advances, Unbilled revenue, Finance lease receivable, regulatory assets, Capital creditors (other than related to initial direct cost), Retention payables and Lease Liabilities for the respective periods.

*Refer Note 50

Significant accounting policies - vefer note 3

S¢ e accompanying notes to (ke Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

As , = ~ur report of even date attached:

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP

Chartered Accountants
Firm's registration number: 117366 W/W-1000138

pe

Nilesh Shah
Partmer

Membership number: 49660

Place: Mumbai
Date : 30 April 2024

for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
K Raheja Corp Investment Managers Private Limited (Formerly known as K Raheja Corp
Investment Managers LLP)

DIN: 00029010

Place: Mumbai
Date : 30 April 2024

(actilfe as the Manager to Mindspace Business Parks REIT)
A [
< -
eel C. Ralfeja Ramesh Nair

Chief Executive Officer

Place: Mumbai
Date : 30 April 2024

/iw,ﬁ.' /U(‘Jd“"‘""/

Preeti N. Chheda

Chief Financial Officer

Place: Mumbai
Date : 30 April 2024
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MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT
RN:IN/REIT/19-20/003

Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
Notes to Accounts

(All amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated)

1 Organisation Structure
The condensed consolidated financial statements (‘Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements’) comprise financial statements of Mindspace Business Parks Real
Estate Investment Trust (Mindspace Business Parks REIT/ Mindspace REIT/Trust), its SPVs Mindspace Business Parks Private Limited (MBPPL"), Gigaplex Estate
Private Limited (Gigaplex'), Sundew Properties Limited (‘Sundew') Intime Properties Limited ('Intime'), K. Raheja IT Park (Hyderabad) Limited ('KRIT'), KRC
Infrastructure and Projects Private Limited (KRC Infra'), Horizonview Properties Private Limited (‘Horizonview"), Avacado Properties and Trading (India) Private Limited
(‘Avacado’) (individually referred to as ‘Special Purpose Vehicle’ or ‘SPV’ or "Asset SPV" and together referred to as ‘Mindspace Business Parks Group’/'Mindspace
Group'). The SPVs are companies domiciled in India.

Anbee Constructions LLP (*ACL’) and Cape Trading LLP (‘CTL’) collectively known as (the ‘Sponsors” or the ‘Co-Sponsors’) have set up the 'Mindspace Business Parks
REIT as an irrevocable trust, pursuant to the Trust Deed, under the provisions of the Indian Trusts Act, 1882 and the Trust has been registered with Securities and
Exchange Board of India (SEBI') as a Real Estate Investment Trust on 18th November 2019 under Regulation 6 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Real
Estate Investment Trusts) Regulations, 2014 having registration number RN:IN/REIT/19-20/003. The Trustee to Mindspace REIT is Axis Trustee Services Limited (the
“Trustee’) and the Manager for Mindspace REIT is K Raheja Corp Investment Managers Private Limited (Formerly known as K Raheja Corp Investment Managers LLP)
(the ‘Investment Manager’).

The objectives and principal activity of Mindspace REIT is to carry on the activity of a real estate investment trust, as permissible under the REIT Regulations, to raise
funds through the REIT, to make Investments in accordance with the REIT Regulations and the Investment Strategy and to carry on the activities as may be required for
operating the REIT, including incidental and ancillary matters thereto.

The units of the trust were listed on the Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE Limited) and National Stock Exchange (NSE) on 7 August 2020.

The brief activities and shareholding patiern of the SPVs are provided below:

Shareholding Shareholding

Name of the SPV i (in percentage) as at 31 March 24 (in percentage) as at 31 March 2023

The SPV is engaged in real estate|Mindspace Business Parks Mindspace Business Parks
development projects such as Special|REIT : 100% REIT : 1009,

Economic Zone (SEZ), Information
Technology Parks and other commercial
assets. The SPV has its projects in Airoli
(Navi Mumbai), Pune and Pocharam
MBPPL (Hyderabad). The SPV is a deemed
distribution licensee pursuant to which it
can distribute power to the SEZ tenants|
within the Park. It commenced distribution
of electricity in its project at Airoli, Navi
Mumbai from 9 April 2015.

The SPV is engaged in real estate]Mindspace Business Parks Mindspace Business Parks
development projects such as Special| REIT : 100% REIT : 100%

Economic  Zone (SEZ), Information
Technology Parks and other commercial
assets. The SPV has iis projects in Airoli
(Navi Mumbai).The SPV is a deemed
distribution licensee pursuant to which it
can distribute power to the SEZ tenants
within the Park. It commenced distribution
of electricity in its project at Airoli, Navi
Mumbai from 19 April 2016.

Gigaplex

The SPV is engaged in development and|Mindspace REIT : 89% Mindspace REIT : 89%

leasing/licensing of Information Technology

Sundew (IT) park, SEZ to different customers in|Telangana State Industrial Infrastructure|Telangana State Industrial Infrastructure
Hyderabad. Corporation Limited (11%) Corporation Limited (11%)

The SPV is engaged in development and|Mindspace REIT : 89% Mindspace REIT : 89%
leasing/licensing of IT park to different
customers in Hyderabad. Telangana State Industrial Infrastructure|Telangana State Industrial Infrastructure
B Corporation Limited (11%) Corporation Limited (11%)

ntime

The SPV is engaged in development and Mindspace REIT : 89% Mindspace REIT : 89%
KRIT leasing/licensing of IT park to different

Telangana State Industrial Infrastructure|Telangana State ructure

Corporation Limited (11%) Corporation Limit




The SPV is engapged in real estateMindspace Business Parks Mindspace Business Parks
development projects such as Special|REIT : 100% REIT : 100%

Economic Zone (SEZ) and Intormation
Technology Parks. The SPV has its project
in Kharadi Pune.The SPV is a deemed
distribution licensee pursuant to which it
KRC Infra can distribute power to the SEZ tenants
within the Park. It commenced distribution
of electricity in its project at Kharadi, Pune
from 1 June 2019.

The SPV is also engaged in Facility
Management services.

The SPV is engaged in development and|Mindspace Business Parks Mindspace Business Parks
Horizonview leasing/licensing of IT park to different|REIT : 100% REIT : 100%

customers in Chennai.

The SPV has developed an Industrial park|Mindspace Business Parks Mindspace Business Parks

for the purpose of letting out to different|REIT : 100% REIT : 100%

customers in Paradigm building at Malad-
) Mumbai and is being maintained and
EuaRAds operated by the SPV The SPV also has a
commercial project in Bandra Kurla
Complex, Mumbai.

Basis of preparation

The Cendensed Consolidated Financial Statements of Mindspace Business Parks REIT comprise the Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024, the
Condensed Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, including other comprehensive income, the Condensed Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow for the quarter, half
year and year ended March 31, 2024, the Condensed Consolidated Statement of Changes in Unitholders Equity for the year ended March 31, 2024, the Statement of Net
Assets at Fair Value as at March 31, 2024, the Statement of Total Returns at Fair Value for the half year and year ended March 31, 2024, the Statement of Net
Distributable Cashiflows of Mindspace Business Parks REIT and each of the SPVs for the quarter, half year and year ended March 31, 2024, and a summary of the
significant accountmg pelicies and select explanatory information and other additional financial disclosures.

The Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Real tstate
Investment Trusts) Regulations, 2014 as amended from time to time including any guidelines and circulars issued thereunder read with SEBI Circular No.
SEBI/HO/DDHS-PoD-2/P/CIR/2023/116 dated 6 July 2023 (“the REIT regulations"); Regulation 52 and Regulation 54 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requitements) Regulations 2015 ("Listing Regulations"); Indian Accounting Standard {Ind AS) 34 “Interim Financial Reporting”, as prescribed in Rule 2(1)(a) of the
Companies (Indian Accounting Siandards) Rules, 2015 (as amended) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, to the extent not inconsistent with REIT
regulations (refer note 19 on presentation of “Unit Capital” as “Equity” instead of compound instruments under [nd AS 32 - Financial Instruments: Presentation)

The Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements were authorised for issue in accordance with the resolution passed by the Board of Directors of the Manager on April
30, 2024

Statement of compliance to Ind AS:

These Condensed Consolidated financial statements for the quarter, half year and year ended March 31, 2023 have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting
Standard (Ind AS) 34 “Interim Financial Reporting”,as prescribed in Rule 2(1)(a) of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended) to the extent
not inconsistent with the REIT regulations as more fully described above and Note 19 to the condensed consolidated financial statements.

The accounting policies adopted and methods of computation followed are consistent with those of the previous financial year.

The financial statements of all the SPVs and the Trust used for the purpose of consolidation are drawn up to the same reporting date.

Basis of Consolidation

Mindspace Business Parks Group consolidates entities which it owns o controls. The Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements comprise the financial statements of
Mindspace Business parks REIT and its subsidiary SPVs as disclosed in note 1. Contro} exists when the parent has power over the entity, is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns by using its power over the entity. Power is demonstrated through existing
rights that give the ability to direct relevant activities, those which significantly affect the entity’s returns. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date control commences
uatil the date control ceases.

The procedure for preparing Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements of Mindspace Business Parks Group are stated below:

a) The financial statements of Mindspace Business Parks Group are consolidated for Jike items and intragroup balances and transactions for assets and liabilities, equity,
income, expenses and cash flows between entities of Mindspace Business Parks Group are eliminated in full upon consolidation.

b) Telangana State Industrial Infrastructure Corporation Limited, which is a shareholder in Intime, KRIT and Sundew has not agreed to exchange their equity interest in
the SPVs (Intime, KRIT and Sundew), thus, Mindspace Business Parks REIT has recorded a non-controlling interests for these SPVs. The interest of non-controlling
shareholders may be initially measured either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest proportionate share of the fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets.
The choice of measurement basis is made on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis. Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount of non-controlling interests is the amount
of those interests at initial recognition plus the non-controlling interests’ share of subsequent changes in equity.

¢) The figures in the notes to accounts and disclosures have been Consolidated line by line and Inter-company transactions and balances including unrealised profits are
eliminated in full on consolidation.

d) Mindspace Business Parks Group holds 4% of the 2quit iy share capital of Stargaze Properties Private Limited, a company involved in the :2al estate development.
Mindspace Business Parks Group is of the view th |s—n‘a1<1\:. to exercise significant influence over Stargaze Properties Private Limited and hence it has not been
accounted using equity method.
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Material accounting policies

(a) Functional and presentation currency

The Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements are presented in Indian rupees, which is Mindspace Business Parks Group’s functional currency and the currency of the
primary economic environment in which Mindspace Business Parks Group operates. All financial information presented in Indian rupees has been rounded off to nearest
million except otherwise stated.

(b) Basis of measurement

The Condensed Consolidated Financia! Statements are on the historical cost basis, except for the following:

- Certain financial assets and liabilities (refer accounting policy regarding tinancial instrument): measurad at fair values;

= Net defined benefit (asset)/ liabiiity less present valve of defined obligations: Fair value of plan assets less present value of defined benefit plan.

{(c) Use of judgements and estimates

The preparation of the Condensed Censolidated Financial Statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principies in India (ind AS) requircs reanagement
to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, labilities, income and expenses. Actual resuits could differ from those estimates

Estimates and underlying asswnptions are reviewed on a periodic basis. Revisicns to accounting estimates are recoguised in the period in which the estimates are revised
and in any future periods affected.

TInformation about critical judgements in applying accounting policies that iave the most material effect on th¢ amounts recognised ini the Condensed Consolidated

Financial Statements is included in the following notes:

Presentation of “{(/nit Capital” as “Equity” in accordance with the REIT Regulaiions instead of compound instrment (Note 195
Estimation of lease term for revenuc vecognition
Estimation of aseful life of property, plant and equipment and investment properiy

< . Estimation of recognition of deferved tax assets, availability of future taxabie profit against which tax losses carried forward can be used and income taxes.

Impairment and Fair. valuation.of Investment Property, Investment property under gonstruction and Property, piant and equipment

Recognition-and measurement of provisions for contingencies and disclosurz of zontingent liabilitics

. Significant judgements is ifivolved in the allocation cost of acquisition to the identifiable assets and liabilities based on their relative fair values at the date of

acquisition in case of asset acquistion.

d) Current versus non-current classification
Mindspace Business Parks Group presents assets and liabilities in the Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheet based on current/ non-current classification:
An asset is treated as current when it is:
- Expecied to be sealised or intended io be sold or consumed in normal syserating cycis;
- Held primarily for the purpose of trading;
Expecied to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period; ot
Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being sxchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve monius after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.
A liabiiity is currers when
1t is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle;
- It is held primarily for the purpose of trading;
- It is due to be settled within twehve monihs after the reporting period; or
- There is no uncoaditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at ieasf lwelve months after the reporting period.
Mindspace Business Parks Group classifies all other liabilities as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities

‘The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing aud their realisation in cash and cash equivalents. Mindspace Business Parks Group has

identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

(e) Mcasurement of fair values
Fair value is thé price that would be received to sell an asset or paid tc transfer 2 liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price 1s directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, Mindspace REIT

_ takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability and how market participants would take those characleristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at

the measurement date. -
Mindspace Business Parks Group's accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values, for both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities.

. Mindspace Business Parks Group has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair values

Mindspace Group regularly review significant unobservable inputs ‘and valuation adjustments. If third party information is used to measure fair values then the
Management assesses the evidence obtained from the third partie$ to support the conclusion that such valuations meet the requirements of Ind AS, including the lovel 1p
the fair value hierarchy in which such valuations should be classified.

Whet: measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, Mindspace Business Parks Group uses observable market data as far as possible. Fair values are categorised into
different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows:

s Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that entity can access on measurement daie.
+ Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly {i.e. as prices} or indirectly (i.e derived foe

prices)
Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability thai are not based on observable market data {unobservable inputs).

- If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of (he fair value hierarchy, then the fair value neasurement is categorised ir its

enfiretv in the same level nf the fair value hierarchv as the lowest ievel innut that iz sienificant to the entire measurement.
Financial guarantee contracts
A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to make spevitied payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debior fails

to make payments when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrumen?.
Financial guarantee contracts are measured initially at the fair value and in accoviznce with Ind AS 109 uniess on a case to case basis clected to be accounted for rinancial

guarantee as [nsurance Contracts as specified under Ind AS 104.
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Property, plant and equipment

Recognition and measurement

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment, if any. Depreciation is charged when the assets are ready for their intended
use. The cost of property, plant and equipment includes freight, duties, taxes and other incidental expenses related to the acquisition or construction of the respective
assets. The cost of such assets not ready for their intended use are disclosed as capital work-in-progress. Purchase price or construction cost is defined as any consideration
paid or fair value of any other consideration given to acquire the asset.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are accounted for as separate items (major components) of property,
plant and equipment. N

Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only if it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to Mindspace Business Parks
Group. Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to Mindspace Business Parks Group and the cost of the item can be measured rehably All other repairs and maintenance are
charged to the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss during the reporting period in which they are incurred. i

Depreciation

Depreciation / amortisation is provided using straight line method as per the useful life of the assets estimated by the managemcnt over the balance useful life. The
estimated useful lives of the assets, which are higher than, lower than or equal to those prescribed under Schedule II of the Companies Act 2013, are listed in the table
below. Depreciation on addition / deletion of property, plant and equipment made during the period-is pr0v1ded on pro-rata basis from / to the date of such addition /

deletion.
The assets and estimated useful life are as under:

Estimated Useful Life .y ]
Asset group .
(in years) .
Power assets Other assets

Right to use - Leasehold land Balance Lease term ) =
Buildings* 75/90 -
Plant and machinery 15 15

i Electrical installation* 15 15
Computers 3 3
Temporary Structure* - L
Office equipment* 4 4

{ Fumniture and fixtures* - 7

| Vehicles® - 5

* For these class of assets, based on technical assessment the management believes the useful life of the assets is appropriate which:is different than those prescribed under
Part C of Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013.

(1) Based on internal assessment the management believes the residual value of all assets except Leasehold Land is estimated to be 5% of the original cost of those
respective assets at SPV.

(2) Assets individually costing less than Rs 5,000 are fully written off in the year of acquisition. .

(3) The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of the reporting period with the effect of any changes in the estimation
accounted for on a prospective basis.

De-recognition

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.

Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognized in the Condensed Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss.

Capitai work in progress

Property, plant and equipment under construction is disclosed as capital work in progress which is carried at cost less any recognized impairment losses. Cost comprises of
purchase price and any attributable cost such as duties, freight, borrowing costs, erection and commissioning expenses incurred in bringing the asset to its working
condition for its intended use. ;
Advance paid and expenditure incurred on acquisition / construction of property, plant and equipment which are not ready for their intended use at each balance sheet
date are disclosed under other non current assets as advances on capital account and capital work-in-progress respectively.

Intangible assets

Recognition and measurement

An intangible asset is an identifiable non-monetary asset without physical substance. Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are initially
measured at its cost and then carried at the cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment, if any. The estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed at
the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives that are
acquired separately are carried at cost less impairment, if any.

Subsequent expenditure
Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in the spec1ﬁc asset to which it relates. All other expenditure,
including expenditure on internally generated goodwill and brands, is recognised in the Condensed Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss as incurred.

Amortisation
Amort;sation is calculated over the cost of the asset, or other amount substituted for cost, less its residual value. Amortisation isecognised in the Condensed Consolidated
statement of Profit and Loss on a straight line method over the estimated useful lives ol intangible assets, from the date that they are available for use.

Estimated Useful Life
(in years)
wins
m \ Other assets
Computer Softwares &" ~ \::t \\ 3
Trademarks © :;.'.F 10

The estimated useful life a m ‘th re reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimgf
prospective basis.

Asset group




34

(G

(a)

)

@

(@

®

De-recognition

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal, gains or losses arising from derecognition of an
intangible asset, measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, are recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit
and Loss when the asset is derecognised. '

Investment property

Recognition and measurement

Properties including land, building and other assets, which are held either for long-term rental yield or for capital appreciation or for both, and which are not occupied
substantially by Mindspace Business Parks Group are classified as investment property.

Investment properties are initially recognised at cost, including related transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are measured in
accordance with the requirement of Ind AS 16's requirements for cost model i.e. Cost less depreciation less impairment losses, if any. Depreciation is charged when the
investment property is ready for its intended use. Cost comprises of direct expenses like land cost, site labour cost, material used for project construction, project
management consultancy, costs for moving the plant and machinery to the site and general expenses incurred specifically for the respective project like insurance, design
and technical assistance, and construction overheads are allocated on a reasonable basis to the cost of the project.

Plant and machinery, furniture and fixtures, office equipment and electrical equipments which are physically attached to the commercial buildings are considered as part of
investment property.

Acquisitions and disposals are accounted for at the date of completion of acquisitions and disposals.

If significant parts of an item of Investment property have different useful lives, then they are accounted for as separate items (major components) of Investment property.

Subsequent expenditure
Subsequent expenditure is capitalised to the asset’s carrying amount only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to
Mindspace Business Parks Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed when incurred.

Depreciation

Depreciation / amortisation is provided using straight line method as per the useful life of the assets estimated by the management over the balance useful life.The
estimated useful lives of the assets, which are higher than, lower than or equal to those prescribed under Schedule II of the Companies Act 2013 and listed in the table
below. Depreciation on addition / deletion of investment property made during the period is provided on pro-rata basis from / to the date of such addition / deletion.

Asset group Estimated Useful Life
(in years)
Right to use - Leasehold land Balance Lease term
Buildings* 75/90
Infrastructure and development 15
Roadwork* 15
Broadwalk, vantage café etc.* 50
Plant and machinery 15
Office equipment* 4
Furniture and fixtures*® 7
Electrical installation* 15

* For these class of assets, based on technical assessment the management believes the useful life of the assets is appropriate which is different than those prescribed under
Part C of Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013.

(1) Based on internal assessment the management believes the residual value of all assets except Leasehold Land is estimated to be 5% of the original cost of those
respective assets at SPV.

(2) Assets individually costing less than Rs 5,000 are fully written off in the year of acquisition.

(3) The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of the reporting period with the effect of any changes in-the estimation
accounted for on a prospective basis.

(4) Useful life of building is restricted to the lease term of leasehold Jand on which the building is constructed.

Fair Value

Fair value of investment property is based on a valuation by an independent valuer who holds a recognised and relevant professional qualification and has recent
experience in the location and category of the investment property being valued. The fair value of investment property is disclosed in the Statement of Net assets at Fair
Value.

De-recognition

An investment property is derecognized upon disposal or when the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits are expected
from the disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the property {calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset) is included in the Condensed Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which the property is de-recognised.

In determining the amount of consideration from the derecognition of Investment properties, the Group considers the effects of variable consideration, existence of a
significant financing component, non-cash consideration, and consideration payable to the buyer (if any).

Investment properties under construction

Property that is being constructed for future use as investment property is accounted for as investment property under construction until assets are ready for their intended
use.

Direct expenses like land cost, site labour cost, material used for project construction, project management consultancy, costs for moving the plant and machinery to the
site and general expenses incurred specifically for the respective project like insurance, design and teclinical assistance, and construction overheads are taken as the cost of

the project. y
Investment properties under construction represent the cost incurred in respect of areas under construction of the real estate development projects less impairment losses, if
any.

capital advance.
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Impairment of assets

Mindspace Business Parks Group assesses at each balance sheet date, whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired. If any such indication exists,
Mindspace Business Parks Group estimates the recoverable amount of the asset. The recoverable amount of the assets (or where applicable that of the cash generating unit
(CGU) to which the asset belongs) is estimated as the higher of its fair value less cost of disposal and its value in use. Value in use is the present value of estimated future
cash flows (discounted using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset) expected to
arise from the continuing use of the assets and from its disposal at the end of its useful life. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are
taken into account, For the purpose of impairment testing, assets that cannot be tested individually are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that generates
cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or CGU. An impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying amount
of an asset or the cash-generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment loss is recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and

1 nas
When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount,

so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or cash-
generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets are treated as direct cost and are considered as part of cost of such
assets. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation. A qualifying asset is an
asset that necessarily requires a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale.

Capitalisation rate used to determine the amount of borrowing costs to be capitalised is the weighted average interest rate applicable to the general borrowings.

Interest expense is recognised using the effective interest method. The ‘effective interest rate’ is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments through the
expected life of the financial instrument to the amortised cost of the financial liability. In calculating interest expense, the effective inierest rate is applied to the amortised
cost of the liability.

Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended during the extended period in which active development is interrupted. Capitalisation of borrowing costs is ceased when
substantially all the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are complete.

All other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

Borrowing cost incurred by the SPVs on inter-company loans is continued to be capitalised only to the extent Mindspace Group has incurred external borrowing cost.

Inventories

Measurement of inventory

Inventories comprise of building material and components. Contractual work in progress, in respect of third party customers, is classified as work in progress. Mindspace
Business Parks Group measvres its inventories at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Cost of inventories

The cost of inventories of building material and components and work in progress comprise all costs of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to
their present location and condition. Cost is determined on moving weighted average basis.

Net realisable value

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Revenue recognition
Facility rentals
Kevenue trom property leased out under an operating lease 1S recognised over the lease term on a straight line basis, except where there 1s an uncertainty ot ultimate

collection
Lease incentives granted are recognised as an integral part of the total rental income. The lease term is the non-cancellable period together with any further term for which

the tenant has the option to continue the lease, where, at the inception of the lease, the Mindspace Business Parks Group is reasonably certain that the tenant will exercise
that option. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in which they are earned on a receipt basis.

Revenue from works contractual services

Revenue from contracts with custor:ars is recognised when a performance obligation is satisfied by transfer of promised goods or services to a customer in accordance
with the agreement with the customer. For works contract arrangement, the performance obligation gets satisfied over time, and therefore, the revenue recognition is done
by measuring the progress towards complete satisfaction of performance obligation from time to time as per the agreement with the customer. The progress is measured in
terms of a proportion of actual cost incurred to-date, to the total estimated cost attributable to the performance obligation. The revenue is recognised to the extent of
transaction price allocated to the performance obligation satisfied. Transaction price is the amount of consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange
for transferring goods or services to a customer excluding amounts collected on behalf of a third party

Maintenance services
Maintenance income is recognised over a period of time for services rendered to the customers.

Revenue from power supply

Revenue from power supply is accounted for on the basis of billings to consumers and includes unbilled revenues accrued up to the end of the accounting year. Mindspace
Business Parks Group determines surplus/deficit i.e. excess/ shortfall of aggregate gain over return on equity entitlement for the period in respect of its operations based on
the principles laid down under the respective Tariff Regulations as notified by Maharashtra Electricity Regulatory Commission (MERC), on the basis of the tariff order
issued by it.In respect of such surplus/deficit, appropriate adjustments as stipulated under the regulations are made during the period. Further, any adjustments that may
arise on annual performance review by the MERC under the tariff regulations is made after the completion of such review.

Revenue from sale of goods

Revenue towards satisfaction of a performance obligation is measured at the amount of transaction price (net of variable consideration) allocated to that performance
obligation. The transaction price of goods sold is net of variable consideration on account of various discounts offered by the Company as part of the contract. Revenue
from the sale of goods is recognised when the Group performs its obligations to its customers and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably and recovery of the
consideration is probable. The timing of such recognition in case of sale of goods is when the control over the same is transferred to the customer.

Finance Lease

For assets let out under finance lease, Mindspace Business Parks Group recognises a receivable at an amount equai to the net investment in the lease. Rentals received are
accounted for as repayment of principal and finance income. Minimum lease payments receivable on finance leases are apportioned between the finance income and the
reduction of the outstanding receivable. The fin. Gime-allocated to each period during the lease term so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the

are earned.

%8 fecognised when control of the goods are transferred to the customer at a
u
/n;}ffor those goods net of the expected removal cost.
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Recognition of dividend income, interest income :

(i) Dividend income is recognised in profit or loss on the date on which Mindspace REIT group has right to receive payment is established.

(ii) Interest income is recognised on time proportion basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and the effective interest rate applicable.

(i1i) Delayed payment charges and interest on delayed payments are recognised, on time proportion basis, except when there is uncertainty of ultimate collection.

Tax expense

Income tax expense comprises current tax and deferred tax charge or credit. It is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss except to the extent that it relates to an
item recognised directly in equity or in other comprehensive income in which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised in equity and other comprehensive
income respectively

Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of
previous years. The amount of current tax reflects the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received after considering the uncertainty, if any, related to
income taxes. It is'measured using tax rates (and tax laws) enacted or substaniively enacted by end of reporting period.

Current iax assets and liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts, and it is intended to realise the asset and settle the
iiability on a net basis or simultaneously

Deferred tax

Deferred tax asset/liability is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the Consolidated Financial Statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computatiou of taxable profit. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, using the tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of reporting period. The measurement of
deferred tax iiabilities and assels reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which Mindspace Business Parks Group expects, at the end of the
reporiing period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax is not recognised for:

.- Temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of assets and liabilities in a fransaction that is not a business combination and that affects neither accounting nor

taxable profit or loss at the time of the transaction; and
- Temporary differences related to investments in subsidiaries, associates, and joint arrangements to the extent that Mindspace Business Park Group is able to control the

aming of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that they will not
reverse in the foreseeable future;

Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences
in the extent that it i probable that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilized. Such deferred tax assets and
liabilities are not recognised if the lemporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other than in a business combinatiun) of assets and liabilities in a transaction
that affects neither the 1axable profit nor the accounting profit.

The existence of unused tax losses is strong evidence thar future taxable profit may not be available. Therefore, in case of a history of recent losses, the Mindspace
Business Parks Group tecognises a deferred tax asset only to the extent that it has sufficient taxable temporary differences or there is convincing other evidence that
sufficient taxable profit will be available against which such deferred tax asset can be realised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assels are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax liabilties, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax
authority on the same taxable entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis or their tax assets and liabilities will
be realised simultaneously.

For operations carried cut under tax holiday period (80IA benefits of Income Tax Act, 1961), deferred tax assets or liabilities, if any, have been established for the tax
consequences of those temporary differences between the carrying values of assets and Jiabilities and their respective tax bases that reverse after the tax holiday ends.

In the situations where one or more units of the Group are entitled to a tax holiday under the tax law, no deferred tax (asset or liability) is recognized in respect of
temporary differences which reverse during the tax holiday period, to the extent the concerned unit's gross total income is subject to the deduction during the tax holiday
period. Deferred tax in respect of temporary differences which reverse after the tax holiday period is recognized in the year in which the temporary differences originate.
However, the Group restricts recognition of deferred tax assets to the extent it is probable that sufficient future taxable income wili be available against which such
aeferred tax assets can be realized. For recognition of deferred taxes, the temporary differences which originate first are considered to reverse first.

Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT)

MAT credit entitlement is recognized as an asset only when and to the extent there is convincing evidence that normal income tax will be paid during the specified period.
In the year in which MAT credit becomes eligible to be recognized as an asset, the said asset is created by way of a credit to the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss
and shown as MAT credit entitlement under deferred tax assets. This is reviewed at gach balance sheet date and the carrying amount of MAT credit entitlement is written
down to the extent it is not reasonably certain that normal income tax will be paid during the specified period.

Earnings per unit (EPU):

The basic earnings per unit is computed by dividing the net profit/ (loss) atiributable to the unit holders of Mindspace REIT by the weighted average number of units
outstanding during the reporting period. The number of units used in computing djluted earnings/ (loss) per unit comprises the weighted average units considered for
deriving basic earnings/ (loss) per unit and also the weighted average number of units which could have been issued on the conversion of all dilutive potential units.
Dilutive potential units are deemed converted as of the beginning of the reporting date, unless they have been issued at a later date. In computing diluted eamings per unit,
only potential equity units that are dilutive and which either reduces earnings per unit or increase loss per units are included.
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Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets
Provisions are recognised when Mindspace Business Parks Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event, it is probable that Mindspace
Business Parks Group will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration net of recoveries if any, required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting
period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognised as finance cost.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may, but will probably-not, require an outflow of resources. When there
is a possible obligation of a present obligation in respect of which the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision or disclosure is made.

Provisions for onerous contracts, i.e. contracts where the expected unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations-under the contract exceed the economic benefits expected
to be received under it, are recognised when it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle a present cbligation as a
result of an obligating event, based on a reliable estimate of such obligation. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted

A contingent asset is disclosed when there would be a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of Mindspace Business Parks Group.
Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

Foreign currency transactions and translations

Transactions denominated in foreign currency are recorded at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of transactions. Exchange differences arising on foreign exchange
transactions settled during the year are recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss of the period.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency, which are outstanding as at the period-end and not covered by forward contracis, are translated at the
period-end at the closing exchange rate and the resultant exchange differences are recognised in the Condensed Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss. Non-monetary
foreign currency items are catried.at cost. N 5

Leases

As a Lessor

Mindspace Business Parks Group enters into lease agreemients as a lessor with respect to some of its investment properties.

Leases for which Mindspace Business Parks Group is a lessor is classified as finance or operating leases. Whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the lessee, the contract is classified as a finance lease. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

When Miadspace Business Parks Group is an intermediate lessor, it accounts for the head lease and the sublease as two separate contracts T sublease is classified as a
finance or nperating lease by reference to the right-of-use asset arising from the head lease.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease and presented as unbilled revente in other financial assets.
The lease term is the non-cancellable period together with any further term for which the tenant has the option to continue the lease, where, at the inception of the lease,
the Mindspace Group is reasonably certain that the tenant will exercise that option.

Initial direct costs such as brokerage expenses incurred specifically to earn revenues from an operatmg lease are capitalised to the carrying amount of leased asset and
recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental income.

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recognised as receivables at the amount of Mindspace Business Parks Group's net investment in the leases. Finance
lease income is allocated to reporting periods so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on Mindspace Business Parks Group's net investment outstanding in respect

of the leases.

As a Lessee

Mindspace Business Parks Group assesses whether a confract is or contains a lease, al inception of a contract A contracl is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the
right Lo control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. Mindspace Business Parks Group recognises a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding lease liability with respect to all lease agreements in which it is the lessee, except for short-term leases ( defined as leases with a lease term of 12 months or
less) and leases of low value assets. For these leases, Mindspace Business Parks Group recognises the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over
the term of the lease unless another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date, discounted by using the rate implicit in the
lease. If this rate cannot be readily determined, Mindspace Business Parks Group uses its incremental borrowing rate.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise:

- fixed lease payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives;

« variable lease payments that depend on an index or rate, initially measured using the index or rate at the commencement date;

- the amount expected to be payable by the lessee under residual value guarantees; '

« payments of penaltiés for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the exercise of an option to terminate the lease.

The lease liability is presented separately as part of Financial Liabilities in the Condensed Consolidated balance sheet.The lease liability is subsequently measured by
increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability (using the effective interest method) and by reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease
payments made.

Mindspace Business Parks Group remeasures the lease liability (and makes a corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use asset) whenever

- the lease term has changed or there is a change in the assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in which case the lease liability is remeasured by discounting the
revised lease payments using a revised discount rate.

- the lease payments change due to changes in an index or rate or a change in expected payment under a guaranteed residual value, in which cases the lease liability is
measured by discounting the revised lease payments using the initial discount rate (unless the lease payments change is due to a change in a floating interest rate, in which
case a revised discount rate is used). .

« a lease contract is modified and the lease modification is not accounted for as a separate iease, in which case the lease liability is remeasured by discounting the revised
lease payments using a revised discount rate.
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The right-of-use assets comprise the initial measurement of the corresponding lease liability, lease payments made at or before the commencement day and any initial
direct costs . They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Whenever Mindspace Business Parks Group incurs an obligation for costs to dismantle and remove a leased asset, restore the site on which it is located or restore the
underlying asset to the condition required by the terms and conditions of the lease, a provision is recognised and measured under Ind AS 37 ‘Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent Assets’. The costs are included in the related right-of-use asset, unless those costs are incurred to produce inventories.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement date over the shorter period of lease term and uscful life of the underlying asset.
Mindspace Business Parks Group applies Ind AS 36 Impairment of Assets to determine whether a right-of-use asset is impaired and accounts for any identified
impairment loss as described in Note 3.5.

Variable rents that do not depend on an index or rate are not included in the measurement the lease liability and the right-of-use asset. The related payments are recognised
as an expense in the period in which the event or condition that triggers those payments occurs and are included in the line  other expenses” in the Condensed
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss.

Financial instruments

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets and/or financial liabilities are recognised when Mindspace Business Parks Group becomes party to a contract embodying the related financial instruments.
All financial assets/ financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value, plus in case of financial assets/ financial liabilities not recorded at fair value through profit or
loss (FVTPL), transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets/ financial liabilities are added to or deducted, as the case may be, from the
fair value of such assets or liabilities. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
are recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component are measured at transaction price.

Financial assets:

Classification of financial assets:
Mindspace Business Parks Group classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:
- those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive income, or through the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss), and

- those measured at amortised cost.
The classification is done depending upon Mindspace Business Parks Group's business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the cash
For investments in debt instruments, this will depend on the business model in which the investment is held.

Mindspace Business Parks Group reclassifies debt investments when and only when its business model for managing those assets changes.

Subsequent Measurement
Debt instruments:

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on Mindspace Business Parks Group's business model for managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics of
the asset. There are three measurement categories into which Mindspace Business Parks Group classifies its debt instruments:

Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost if these financial assets are held within a business whose objective is to hold these assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

Financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if these financial assets are held within a business whose objective is
achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows that give rise on specified dates to solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding and by
selling financial assets.

Financial assets at fair value through the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (FVTPL).

Financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value through the Condensed Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss unless it is measured at amortised cost or fair
value through other comprehensive income on initial recognition. The transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets and liabilities at fair v.lue
through profit or loss are immediately recognised in the Condensed Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss.

Equity instruments:

Mindspace Business Parks Group subsequently measures all equity investments at fair value. There are two 'measurement categories into which Mindspace Business Parks
Group classifies its equity instruments:

Investments in equity instruments at FVTPL:

Investments in equity instruments are classified as at FVTPL, unless Mindspace Business Parks Group irrevocably elects on initial recognition to present subsequent
changes in fair value in other comprehensive income for equity instruments which are not held for trading.

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI:

On initial recognition, Mindspace Business Parks Group can make an irrevocable election (on an instrument-by-instrument basis) to present the subsequent changes in fair
value in other comprehensive income. This election is not permitted if the equity investment is held for trading. These elected investments are initially measured at fair
value plus transaction costs. Subsequently, they are measured at fair value with gains and losses arising from changes in fair value recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the reserve for 'equity instruments through other comprehensive income'. The cumulative gain or loss is not reclassified to Consolidated
Statement of Profit and Loss on disposal of the investments, but is transferred to retained earnings.
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Impairment of financial assets:

Mindspace Business Parks Group applies the expected credit loss model for recognising impairment loss on financial assets measured at amortised cost, lease receivables,
trade receivables, other contractual rights to receive cash or other financial asset. For trade receivables, Mindspace Business Parks Group measures the loss allowance at
an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses. Further, for the purpose of measuring lifetime expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables, Mindspace Business
Parks Group has:used a practical expedient as permitted under Ind AS 109. This expected credit loss atlowance is computed based on a provision matrix which takes into
account historical credit loss experience and adjusted for forward-looking information.

Derecognition of financial assets:
A financial asset is primarily derecognised when:
(i) the right to receive cash flows from the asset has expired, or
(i) Mindspace Business Parks Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset; and
Mindspace Business Parks Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or
Mindspace Business Parks Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its-entirety (other than investments in equity instruments at EVOCYD), the differences between the carrying amounts measured at the
date of derecognition'and the consideration received is recognised in Consolidated Stateraent of Profit and Loss. Any interest in iransferred financial assets that is created
or retained by the SPV is recognised as a separate asset or liability.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Classification as debt or equity

Financial liabilitics and equity instruments issued by Mindspace Business Parks Group are classified according te the substance of the coutractual arrangements entered
into and the definitions of a financial Jiability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An’equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assels of Mindspace Business Parks Group after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity
instruments are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of Mindspace Business Parks Group's own equity instrument is recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss is recognised in the Consolidated
Statement of Profit and Loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of Mindspace Business Parks Group's own equity instruments.

Compound financial instruments

‘The component parts of corapound financial nstruments issued by Mindspace Husiness Parks Group are classified separately as financial liabilities and equily ir
~ccordance with the substance of the conlractual arrangements and the definitions <f ¢ financial liability and an equity instoument. A conversion option that will be settled
by the exchange of a fixed amaunt cf cash or another financial asset for a fixed number of Mindspace Business Parks Group's own equity instruments 1S an equily

istrument
At the date of issue, the fair value of the liability component is estimated using the prevailing market interest rate for similar non-convertible instruments. This amount is
recorded as a liability on an amortised cost basis using the effective interest method unti] extinguished upon conversion or at the instrument’s maturity date.

The conversion option classified as equity is determined by deducting the amount of the liability ccmponent from the fair value of the compound instrument as a whole.
This is recognised and included in equity, net of income tax effects, and is not subsequently remeasured.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible instruments are allocated to the liability and equity components in proportion to the allocation of the gruss
proceeds. Transaction costs relating to the equity component are recognised directly in equity. Transaction costs relating to the liability component are included in the
carrying amount of the liability component and are amortised over the lives of the convertible instrument using the effective interest method.

Financial Liabilities

Recognition, measurement and classification

Financial liabilities are classified as either held af a) fair value through the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, or b) at amortised cost. Management determines the
classification of its financial liabilities at the time of initial recognition or, where applicable, at the time of reclassification.

Mindspace Business Parks Group's financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings and derivative financial instruments. Subsequent
measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification as fair value through the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss or at amortized cost. All changes in
fair. value of financial liabilities classified as FVTPL are recognized in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss . Amortised cost category is applicable to Joans and
borrowings, trade and other payables. After initial recognition the financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the Effective Interest Rate method.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. Gains and losses are recognized in the Condensed
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss when the liabilities are derecognized.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and presented on net basis in the Balance Sheet when there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention either to settle on a net basis or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Embedded derivatives

Derivatives embedded in a host contract that is an asset within the scope of Ind AS 109 are not separated. Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in
their entirety when determining whether their cash flows are solely payment of principal and inferest.

Embedded derivatives closely related to the host contracts are not separated. Derivatives embedded in all other host contract are separated only if the economic
characteristics and risks of the embedded derivative are not closely related to the economic characteristics and risks of the host and are measured at fair value through
profit or loss.
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Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprises of cash at banks and on hand, demand deposits, other short-term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months
or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Statement of Cash flow
Cash flow is reported using the indirect method, whereby net profit before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals
of past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of Mindspace Business Parks Group are segregated.

For the purpose of the Condensed Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow, Initial direct costs such as brokerage expenses incurred specifically to earn revenues from an
operating lease which are capitalised to the carrying amount of leased assets are considered as cashflows used in investing activity. -

For the purpose of the Condensed Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined above, net of
outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of Mindspace Business Parks Group’s cash management

As per para 8 of Ind AS 7 “where bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand form an integral part of an entity’s cash management, bank overdraiis are included as a
component of cash and cash equivalents. Bank overdraft, in the Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheet, is included as ‘borrowings’ under Financial Liabilities.

Employee benefits plan

Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS ~ 19 ‘Employee benefits’

Short term emaployee benefits

AJl employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short-term employee benefits such as salaries, wages, etc. and are
recognused in the period in which ihe employee tendered the related services. The undiscounted amount of short-tern emoloyee benefits expected to be paid in exchange
for the services rendered by employees is 1ecognised as an expense during the period.

Long term employee benefits

Defined contribution plans

Contributions to defined contribution schemes such as provident fund are charged as an expense based on the amount of contribution required to be made as and when
services arc cendered by the employees. Mindspace Business Parks Group's provident fund contribution, in respect of certain employees, is made to a government
administered fund and charged as an expense. The above benefits are classified as defined contribution schemes as Mindspace Business Parks Group has no further
defined obligations beyond the monthly contributions

Defined hewnefif plan

Mindspace Business Parks Group's gratuity benefit scheme is a defined benefit plan. Mindspace Business Parks Group has determined the gratuity liability based on
internal calculation based on the number of years completed and last drawn basic salary as mentioned in the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. The liability or asset
recognised in the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit gratuity plans is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period less the
fair value of plan assets, if any. The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by actuaries / SPVs using the projected unit credit method.

The present value of the defined benefit obligation denominated in INR is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows by reference to market yields at
1he end of the reporting period on government bonds that have terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation. The net interest cost is calculated by applying
the discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets. This cost is included in eraployee benefit expense in the Condensed
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss.

Other long term employee benefits - Compensated absences

Benefits under compensated absences are accounted as other long-term employee benefits. Mindspace Business Parks Group has determined the liability for compensated
absences based on internal calculation which is determined on the basis of leave credited to employee’s account and the last drawn salary. Mindspace Business Parks
Group's net obligation in respect of compensated absences is the amount of benefit to be settled in future, that employees have earned in return for their service in the
current and previous years. The benefit is discounted to determine its present value. The obligation is measured on the basis of an actuarial valuation / by SPVs using the
projected unit credit method. Remeasurement is recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which they arise. Compensated absences
which are not expected to occur within twelve months after the end of the period in which the employee renders the related services are recognised as a liability.

£arnings before finance costs, depreciation and amortisation, regulatory income / expense, exceptional items and tax

Mindspace Business Parks Group has elected to present carnings before interest, depreciation and amortisation, regulatory income / expense, exceptional items and tax as
a separate line item on the face of the Condensed Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss. Mindspace Business Parks Group measures earnings before interest,
depreciation and amortisation, regulatory income / expense, exceptional items and tax on the basis of profit/ (loss) from continuing operations.
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Subsequent events

The Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements are adjusted to reflect events that occur after the reporting date but before the Condensed Consolidated Financial
Statements are issued. The Consolidated Financial Statements have their own date of authorisation, which differs from that of the financial statements of the entities which
are part of Mindspace REIT group. Therefore, when preparing the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements, management considers events up to the date of
authorisation of these financial statements

Errors and estimates

Mindspace Business Parks Group revises its accounting policies if the change is required due to a change in Ind AS or if the change will provide more relevant and reliable
information to the users of the Condensed Consolidated financial statement. Changes in accounting policies are applied retrospectively.

A change in an accounting estimate that results in changes in the carrying amounts of recognised assets or liabilities or to profit or loss is applied prospectively in the
period(s) of change.

Discovery of errors results in revisions retrospectively by restating the comparative amounts of assets, liabilities and equity of the earliest prior period in which the error is
discovered. The opening balances of the earliest period presented are also restated

Segment Information

Primary segment information
The primary reportable segment is business segments

Business segment

The Mindspace Group is organised into the two operating divisions - 'real estate’ and ‘power distribution’, which are determined based on the internal organisation and
management structure of the Mindspace Group and its system of internal financial reporting and the nature of its risks and its returns. The Board of directors of the manager
has been identified as the chief operating decision maker (CODM), CODM evaluates the Mindspace Group's performance, allocates resources based on analysis of various
performance indicators of the Group as disclosed below.

Real estate segment

Real estate comprises development and management of projects under Special Economic Zone (SEZ), Information Technology Parks and other commercial assets .The
Group has its project/properties in Mumbai Region, Hyderabad, Pune and Chennai for development and management of commercial SEZ, [T parks and commercial assets
including incidental activities

Power distribution
The state power regulator has taken on record the SEZ developer MBPPL, Gigaplex, Sundew and KRC Infra as Deemed Distribution Licensee for Power The approved
SPVs being Deemed Distributor, supplies power to customers within the notified SEZ

Secondarv segment information
Mindspace Business Parks Group's operations are based in India and therefore Mindspace Business Parks Group has only one geographical segment - India

Non-controlling interests

Non-controlling interests represent the share of reserves and capital atiributable to the shareholders of the SPVs who have not agreed to exchange their shares in the SPVs
for units of Mindspace REIT and will not become the unitholders of Mindspace REIT Below is the list of shareholders of the SPVs lor whom non-controlling interest has
been recognised Non-controlling interests in the results and equitv of subsidiaries are shown separately in the Condensed Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss.
Condensed Consoitdated Statement of Changes 1n Equity and Condensed Balance Sheet

SPV Shareholder % Holding in SPV
[As on reporting date)
KRIT Telangzmﬁlulc Industiial falrastruciure 11 0%
Corporation Limited
Intime Telangana Statc Industrial Infrastructure 110%
Corporation Limited
Sundew Telangana State [ndustrial Infrastructure 11.0%

Corporation Limited

Ind AS 110 requires entities to attribute the profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income to the owners of Mindspace REIT and to the non-controlling
interests. This requirement needs to be followed even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance

Cash distribution to unit holders

The Group recognises a liability to make cash distributions to Unitholders when the distribution is authorised and a legal obligation has been created As per the REIT
Regulations, a distribution is authorised when it is approved by the Board of Directos of the Manager. A corresponding amount is recognised directly in other equity.

Distribution Policy
The Net Distributable Cash Flows of Mindspace REIT are based on the cash flows generated from Mindspace REIT’s assets and investments.

In terms of the Distribution Policy and the REIT Regulations, not less than 90% of the NDCF of each of the Asset SPVs is required to be distributed to Mindspace REIT, in
proportion of their shareholding in the Asset SPV, subject to applicable provisions of the Companies Act or the LLP Act. Presently, NDCF to be received by Mindspace
REIT from the Asset SPVs may be in the form of dividends, interest income, principal loan repayment, proceeds of any capital reduction or buyback from the Asset SPVs,
sale proceeds out of disposal of investments it any or assets directly held by Mindspace REIT or as specifically permitted under the Trust Deed or in such other form as may
be permissible under the applicable law

The Manager is required to and shall declare and distribute at least 90% of the NDCF of Mindspace REIT as distributions (“REIT Distributions™) to the Unitholders. Such
REIT Dislributions shall be declared and made for every quarter of a Financial Year

Non-current assets held for sale and Discontinued Operations:

Discontinued operation is a component of the Company that has been disposed of or classified as held for sale and represents a major line of business or geographies Non-
current assets are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use. This condition is
regarded as met only when the sale is highly probable and the asset is available for immediate sale in its present condition

Management musi be committed to the sale which should be expected Lo qualily for iecognition as a completed sale within one year from the date of classification
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Recent Pronouncements
The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Amendment Rules 2023 dated March 31, 2023 to amend the following Ind AS

which are effective from April 01, 2023:

Ind AS 1 — Presentation of Financial Statements
The amendments require companies to disclose their material accounting policies rather than their significant accounting policies. Accounting policy information, together

with other information, is material when it can reasonably be expected to influence decisions of primary users of general purpose financial statements. This amendment
does not have any significant impact in the financial statements.

Ind AS 12 — Income Taxes
The amendments clarify how companies account for deferred tax on transactions such as leases and decommissioning obligations. The amendments narrowed the scope of

the recognition exemption in paragraphs 15 and 24 of Ind AS 12 (recognition exemption) so that it no longer applies to transactions that, on initial recognition, give rise to
equal taxable and deductible temporary differences. This amendment does not have any significant impact in the financial statements.

Ind AS 8 — Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors

The amendments will help entities to distinguish between accounting policies and accounting estimates. The definition of a change in accounting estimates has been
replaced with a definition of accounting estimates. Under the new definition, accounting estimates are “monetary amounts in financial statements that are subject to
measurement uncertainty”. Entities develop accounting estimates if accounting policies require items in financial statements to be measured in a way that involves
measurement uncertainty. This amendment does not have any significant impact in the financial statements.

There were certain amendments to standards and interpretations which are applicable for the first time for the year ended 31 March 2024, but either the same are not
relevant or do not have an impact on the consolidated financial statements of the Group.
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MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT
RN:IN/REIT/19-20/003

Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
Notes to Accounts

(All amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated)

8 Non Current Investment

Particulars

As at
31 March 2024

As at
31 March 2023

Financial assets

Investments in equity instruments

Unquoted equity shares measured at FVTOCI

2,000 equity shares of Stargaze Properties Private Limited, face value of Rs. 10 each fully paid-up
(31 March 2023 : 2,000)

Unquoted investment in Government Securities at amortised cost

7.61% Central Government Loan (Face value Rs 100), 25,000 units (31 March 2023: 25,000)
8.24% GOI 2027 Bond (Face value Rs 100), 25,000 units (31 March 2023: 25,000)

7.17% Central Government Loan (Face value Rs 100), 25,000 units (31 March 2023: 25,000)
7.26% Central Government Loan (Face value Rs 100), 22,000 units (31 March 2023: 22,000)
7.06% Central Government Loan (Face value Rs 100), 22,000 units (31 March 2023: 22,000)
6.67% GOI 2050 Bond (Face value Rs 100), 8,000 units (31 March 2023: 8,000)

7.72% GOI 2055 Bond (Face value Rs 100), 10,000 units (31 March 2023: 10,000)

6.99% GOI 2051 Bond (Face value Rs 100), 11,300 units , (31 March 2023: 11,300)

7.26% GOI 2029 Bond (Face value Rs 100), 18,000 units (31 March 2023: 18,000)

7.40% GOI 2055 Bond (Face value Rs 100), 28,700 units (31 March 2023: 28,700)

8.33% GOI 2036 Bond (Face value Rs 100), 21,210 units (31 March 2023: 21,210)

7.06% GOI 2046 Bond (Face value Rs 100), 12,000 units (31 March 2023: 12,000)

8.33% GOI 2036 Bond (Face value Rs 100), 1,790 units (31 March 2023: 1,790)
6.99% GOI 2051 Bond (Face Value Rs 100), 28,000 units (31 March 2023: 28,000)

6.99% GOI 2051 Bond (Face Value Rs 100), 17,700 units (31 March 2023: 17,700)
7.36% GS 2052; Bond (Face Value Rs 100), 1,200 units (31 March 2023: Nil)
6.99% GS 2051; Bond (Face Value Rs 100), 10,400 units (31 March 2023: Nil)
6.99% GS 2051; Bond (Face Value Rs 100), 1,037 units (31 March 2023: Nil)
6.99% GOI 2051; Bond (Fave Value Rs 100), 24700 units (31 March 2023: Nil)
6.99% GOI 2051; Bond (Face Value Rs 100), 14,900 units (31 March 2023: Nil)

m N QD = O N WS W W NE EENN N W W

N W O —= W W N~ == §N-BNDNDWw Ww

[
w

Investments measured at cost (gross)

Investments measured at fair value through profit or loss

Investments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
Investments measured at amortised cost

Aggregate amount of impairment recognised

Aggregate amount of quoted investments and market value thereof
Aggregate amount of unquoted investments




MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT
RN:IN/REIT/19-20/003

Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
Notes to Accounts

(All amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated)

9 Other financial assets (Non current)

Particulars

As at
31 March 2024

As at
31 March 2023

Unsecured, considered good

Fixed deposits with banks* 145 29
Unbilled revenue 882 1,058
Interest receivable 1 23
Finance lease receivable 1,627 844
Security deposits for development rights - 60
Security deposits 498 497
Other receivables 7 15

3,160 2,526

* Fixed deposits amounting to Rs. 145 million (31 March 2023 — 29 million) are held as lien in respect of loan availed by the SPVs and earmarked

for Debenture Redemption Reserve.

10 Deferred tax assets (net)

Particulars As at Asat
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Deferred tax assets (net) 301 473
301 473
11 _Non-current Tax assets (net)
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Advance Tax (net of provision for tax) 778 928
778 928
12 Other non-current assets
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Unsecured, considered good
Capital advances 1,011 293
Balances with government authorities 107 237
Prepaid expenses 57 50
1,175 580
13 _Inventories (valued at lower of cost and net realisable value)
Particulars As at Asat
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Building materials and components 44 40
Inventory of Equipment - 32
44 72
14 Trade receivables
Particulars As at Asat
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Unsecured
Considered good 1,092 572
Credit impaired 82
Less: loss allowance (82)

572




15A Cash and cash equivalents

Particulars As at Asat
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Cash on hand 3 3
Balances with banks
- in current accounts* 3,195 3,176
- in escrow accounts 52 3
- in deposit accounts with original maturity of less than
three months - 880
3,250 4,062
*Includes balance with bank of Rs 0 million as on 31 March 2024 (31 March 2023: Rs 0 million) for unpaid distributions.
15B Other bank balances
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Fixed deposits with original maturity for more than 3 months and less than
twelve months* 2,666 78
Balance with banks** 184 128
2,850 206

* Fixed deposits amounting to Rs. 579 million (31 March 2023 — 78 million) are held as lien in respect of loan availed by the SPVs and earmarked
for Debenture Redemption Reserve.

** These are amounis, deposited in separate escrow accounts, earmarked for on-going Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) projects.

16 Other financial assets (Current)

17

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Unsecured, considered good
Interest receivable

- on fixed deposits 191
- from others 12 11
Interest accrued but not due
- on fixed deposits 10 1
- from others 3 3
Security deposits 210 170
Fixed deposits with banks* 1,435 322
Unbilled revenue 1,435 1,613
Less: loss allowance for Unbilled revenue 67 -
Finance lease receivable 504 309
Other receivables**
- Considered good 4 102
- Credit impaired 1 1
Less: loss allowance ) (1)
3,747 2,535

* Fixed deposits amounting to Rs. 325 million (31 March 2023 — 322 million) are held as lien in respect of loan availed by the SPVs and
earmarked for Debenture Redemption Reserve.

** Refer Note 46 for related party disclosure.

Other current assets
Particulars As at As at

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Unsecured, considered good
Deposit / advance for supply of goods and rendering of services 323 330
Loan to staff - 0
Balances with government authorities 166 149
Prepaid expenses 99 107
Other receivables 1 -

589 586




MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT
RN:IN/REIT/19-20/003

Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
Notes to Accounts

(All amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated)

(a)

(b)

(c)

18

Corpus

Corpus -
As at 1 April 2022 0
(‘hanges during the year -
Closing balance as at 31 March 2023 0
As ar 1 April 2023 0
Changes dunng the period -
Closing balance as at 31 March 2024 a

Unit Capital
A. Unit Capital = : — N Amount
As at 1 April 2022 : 593,018,182 162.839
Changes during the year - .
Closing balance as at 31 March 2023 593,018,182 162,833
As at 1 Aprii 2023 593,018,182 162,839
Changes during the period . _ = N L
Closing balance as at 31 March 2024 ] 593,018,182 162,839

Terms/rights attached to Units and other disclosures

The Trust has only one class of Units. Each Unit represents an undivided beneficial interest in the Trust. £ach holder of Units is entitled, to one vote per unit. The
nitholders have the right to receive at least 90% of the Net Distributable Cash Flows of the Trust on quarterly basis in accordance with REIT Regulations/ in terms of

the Distribution Palicy. The Board of directors of Investment Manager approves distributions. The distribution will be,in proportion to the number of Units held by the

Unitholders. The Trust declares and pays distributions in Indian Rupees.

Under the provisions of the REIT Regulations, Mindspace Business Parks REIT is required to distribute to Unitholders not less than 90% of the net distributable cash
flows of Mindspace Business Parks REIT on half year basis for each financiai year, Accordingly, a portion of the Unit Capital contains a contractual obligation of the
Mindspace Business Patks REIT o pay to its Unitholders cash distributions. Hence, the Unit Capital is a compound financial instrument which contains equity and
liability components in ‘accordance with Ind AS 32 - Financial® Instruments. Presentation. However, in accordance with SEBI Circular No. SEBVHO/RDHS-PoDd

2/B/CIR/2023/116 dated 6 July 2023 issued under the REIT Regulations, the Unitholders’ funds have been preseated as “Equity” in order to comply with tl <

20

requirements of Section H of Chapter 3 to the SEBI master circular dated 6 July 2023 dealing with the minimum presentaticn and disclosure requirements for Ley
financial staiements. Consistent with Unit Capital being classified as equity, the distributions to Unitholders is also presented in Statement of Changes in Unitholders'
Equity when the distiibutions are approved by the Board of Directors of Investment Manager.

Unitholders hoiding more than 5 percent Units in the Trust

|Name of the unithoider R . As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023 |
. o No of Uniis % holding No of Units % holding |
Platinura Mluniination A 2018 Trust 54,375,000 9.17% 54,375,000 9.17% I
Anbee Constructions LLP 35,404,890 5.97% 35,404,890 5.97% i
Cape Trading LLP 35,438,895 5.98% 35,404,890 5.97% |
Chandru Lachmandas Raheja® 32,634,433 5.50% 32,634,433 5.50% |
Capstan Trading LLP 41,095,719 6.93% 41,095,719 6.93% I
Casa Maria Properties LLP 46,820,719 - 7.90% 46,820,719 - 7.90% |
Palm Shelter Estate Development LLP. 41,095,719 6.93% 41,095,719 6.93% |
Raghukool Estate Developement LLP 42,004,546 7.08% 41,937,069 7.07%
K. Raheja Corp Private Limited |- 36,596.296 6.17% 36,596,296 6.17%

*Excludes holding in for and on behalf of beneficiaries of Ivory-Property Trust

The Trust has not allotted any fully paid-up units by way of bonus units nor has it bought back any class of units from the date of registration till the balance sheet date.
Further, the Trust had issued an aggregate of 36,363,600 Units for cash at Rs. 275 per unit and 556,654,582 Units at a price of Rs. 275 per unit for consideration other
than cash during the period of five years immediately preceding the balance sheet date

Other Equity*
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Reserves and Surplus a Sl
Retained earnings {21,550) (15,546}
Debenture redemption reserve 400 534
- {21,150) (15,012)

“Refer Condensed Consolidated Statement of changes in Unit holder's equity for detailed mevement in other equity balances.

Retained earnings :
The cumulative gain or loss arising from the operations which is retained and is recognized and accumulated under the heading of retained eamnings. At the end of the
period, the profit/loss after tax is transferred from the statement of profit and loss to the retained eamings account.

Debenture redemption reserve

As per the Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014 (amended), SPVs are required to create Debenture Redemption Reserve (DRR) out of profits, which
is available for payment of dividend, equal to 10% of the amount of debentures issued. Accordingly, the SPVs have created DRR out of their profits in terms of the
Companies (Share Capital and Debenture)Rules, 2014 (as amended) which would be utilized for redemption of debentures at the time of its maturity.




21 Borrowings (Non-current)

21A

21 A()

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Secured

Terms loans

- from banks (refer Note 21 A) 21,563 15,276

- from other parties (refer Note 21 A) 3,106 1,578
Flexi term loan (refer Notes (21 A(ii)-Note 2 and 21 A(vi)-Note 2)) 362 380
Debentures .
10 year G-Sec linked secured, listed, senior, taxable, non-cumulative, rated, - 3,741

principal protected — market linked, redeemable, non-convertible debentures
(“Market Linked Debentures / MLD Series 2”) (net of issue expenses, at
amortised cost) (refer Note 21 B(ii))

Secured, listed, senior, taxable, non-cumulative, rated, redeemable non- - 750 .
convertible debentures (NCD Seties 2) (net of issue expenses, at amortised

cost) (refer Note 21 B(iii))

Senior, Listed, Rated, Secured, Non-Cumulative, - ) 3,986
Taxable, Transferable, Redeemable Non-Convertiable Debentures (Sundew

NCD 1) (refer Note 21 B(iv))

Secured, listed, senior, taxable, non-cumulative, rated, redeemable non- - 4,971
convertible debentures (NCD Series 3) (net of issue expenses, at amortised
cost) (refer Note 21 B(v))

Senior, listed, rated, sécured, non-cumulative, taxable, transferable, 4,976 4,969
redeemable, non-conveftible debentures (“NCD Series 4”) (Refer note 21 -

B(vii))

Secured, listed, rated, secured, non-cumulative, taxable, transferable, 5,473 5,461

redeemable non-convertible debentures (“Mindspace REIT Green Bond 17°) (net
of .ssue expenses, at amortised cost) (refer Note 21 B(viii))

Secured, listed, rated. non-cumulative, taxable, transferable, redeemable non- 4,978 -
wonvertible debentures (NCD Series 6) (net of issue expenses, at amortised
cos:* (1efer Note 21 B(ix))

Secured, listed, rated, non-cumulative, taxable, transferable, redeemable non- 4,986 -
convertible debentures (NCD Series 7) (net of issue expenses, at amortised )
cost) (refer Note 21 B(x))

Secured, listed, rated, non-cumnulative, taxable, transferable, redeemable non- 3,392 -
convertible debentures (NCD Series 8) (net of issue expenses, at amortised
cost) (31 March 2023 : NIL) (refer Note 21 B(xi))

Bonds - Senior, Listed, Rated, Secured, Non-Cumnmulative, Taxable, - 4,730
Transferable, Redeemable Non-Convertible Bonds (MBPPL NCB 1) (Refer
note 21 B(vi))

48,836 45,842

Repayment terms, rate of interest and security details

Gigaplex .
Note 1: Lender: Term loan current maturities of long-term debt - INR Nil million (31 March 2023 - INR 820 million); Bank Overdraft of INR 119 million (31 March

2023 : INR 6 million)

(1) Nature of securities:
Exclusive EM/ RM charge of Building No.1 along with Pari-Passu charge on all that piece or parcel of land known as Plot No. IT-5 in the Trans Thane Creek (T.T.C.)

Industrial Area, MIDC (Airoli Knowledge Park) ,Navi Mumbai admeasurements, 2,02,300 Square Meters.

Exclusive charge on entire current assets (including receivables, moveable fixed assets and cash flows) and moveable fixed assets, both present and future, of Building

No. 1.
Exclusive charge by way of hypothecation over;
a) All the rights, titles, interest, benefits, claims and demands whatsoever, of the Borrower, in the contracts, agreements, clearances, los§ protection covers, etc,

pertaining to Building No.1. (b) all the rights, titles, interest, benefits, claims and demands whatsoever, of the Borrower in any letter of credit, guarantee, performance
bond provided by any counterparty to the Borrower, pertaining to Building No.1 (c) all the rights, titles, interest, benefits, claims and demands whatsoever, of the
Borrower in the insurance contracts, policies, insurance proceéds, procured by the Borrower or procured by any of its contractors favouring the Borrower, pertaining to
Building No.1.

(2) Terms for repayment:

The term loan from Lender carries interest rate of 8.25% p.a. payable monthly.
The said loan shall be repaid in structured 36 monthly installment, beginning from the end of the month of the date of first disbursement of rupee term loan and ending

on January 31, 2024.

Note 2: Lender: Term Loan of INR 704 million (31 March 2023: INR Nil million) and Term loan curre:t maturities of long-term debt - INR 38 million (31 March 2023 -
IN¥ Nil million)
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(1) Nature of securities:
Exclusive EM/ RM charge of Building No.1 along with Pari-Passu charge on all that piece or parcel of land known as Plot No. IT- 5 in the Trans Thane Creek (T.T.C.)
Industrial Area, MIDC (Airoli Knowledge Park) ,Navi Mumbai admeasurements, 2,02,300 Square Meters.

Exclusive charge on entire current assets (including receivables, moveable fixed assets and cash flows) and moveable fixed assets, both present and future, of Building
No. 1.

Exclusive charge by way of hypothecation over;

a) All the rights, titles, interest, benefits, claims and demands whatsoever, of the Borrower, in the contracts, agreements, clearances, loss protection covers, etc,
pertaining to Building No.1. (b) all the rights, titles, interest, benefits, claims and demands whatsoever, of the Borrower in any letter of credit, guarantee, performance
bond provided by any counterparty to the Borrower, pertaining to Building No.1 (c) all the rights, titles, interest, benefits, claims and demands whatsoever, of the
Borrower in the insurance contracts, policies, insurance proceeds, procured by the Borrower or procured by any of its contractors favouring the Borrower, pertaining to
Building No.1.

(2) Terms for repayment:

The term loan from Lender carries interest rate of 8.25% p.a. payable menthly.

The said loan shall be repaid in structured 180 monthly installment, beginning from the end of the month of the date of first disbursement of rupee term loan and ending
on January 31, 2039.

Note 3: Lender: Term loans - INR 1,246 million (31 March 2023 : INR 1,279 million); Current maturities of long-term debt - INR 33 million (31 March 2023 : INR 26
million) and Bank Qverdraft of INR 118 million (31 March 2023 : NIL million)

(1) Nature of securities:

i) Hypotheciation of movebale fixed asset pertaining to property, present and future, ii) Hypotheciation of current asset and receivables pertaining to property , present
and future ii) Escrow account and Debt service reserve account.(DSRA), iv) Charge by way of Registered Mortgage Mortgage of immovable assets peratining te
certain floor/mit of [T building named Building 4, v) Pari-Passu charge by way of registered mortgage on all that piece or parcel of land known as Plot No. IT- 5 in the
Trans Thaoe Cresk (T.T.C.) Industrial Area, MIDC (Airoli Knowledge Park) ,Navi Mumbai admeasurements, 2,02,345 Square Meters .

(2) Terms for repayment:
The term loan from Leuder carries interest rate of 8.45% p.a. payable monthly.

The said loan shall be repaid in structured 156 monthly installment, beginning from the end of the month of the date of first disbursement of rupee term loan and ending
on August 31, 2034.

Horizonview
Note 1: Lender : Term Loan cucrent Maturities of Term Loan of INR Nil Million {31 March 2023 : INR 1,000 million); Bank Overdraft of INR Nil million (31 March
2023 : INR 175 million) :

{1) Nature of securities:

(i) First and exclusive charge through registered mortgage over units comprising of leasable area of 4.68 lacs sq. fi. i.e company's share in Tower 'B' located at
Poonamallee Road, Porur, Chennai, alongwith proportionate car parks, open space, amenities and undivided share of land (present and future) with all rights
appurtenants there to along with right of way to be herein referred to as "Security Property”.

(ii) together with first and exclusive charge by way of hypothecation on Current Assets, Movable Properties, Escrow Account, Receivables and Specific Assets related to
Tower B, commerzone Porur, located at Mount Poonamallee High Road, Porur, Chennai

(iii) Unconditional and irrevocable guarantee from Mindspace Business Parks REIT.

(2) Terms of repayment:

Bullet repayment at the end of the month after 36 months from the date of first disbursement. The loan carries interest rate 9.15% p.a. for Term Loan facility and 8.25%
for the OD facility (Sublimit of Term loan). The loan has been repaid during the year.

Note 2: Lender: Term Loan of INR 1,470 million {31 March 2023 : INR 1,483 million); Current maturities of long-term debt of INR 15 million (31 March 2023 : INR 8
million). Flexi term loan of INR Nil miilion (31 March 2023 : INR 0 million).

(1) Nature of securities:

(i) Charge over leasable area of 0.342 Mn Sq Ft. situated on the 3rd to the Sth floor in Tower A, Commerzone comprising of two towers being Tower A and Tower B
consisting of a combined triple basement, ground floor plus nine office floor, constructed on the land admeasuring approximately 5 acres 51 cents (equivalent to
22,425.13 square meters) as per Tevenue records bearing Survey No.25/3A, Survey No.25/4HS5, Survey No.25/4H6B and Survey No.25/41 situate at 111/168, Porur
village, Ambattur Taluk, Thiruvallur District, D.No.111 Mount Poonamallee High Road, Porur, Chennai 600 116. ’

(ii) Hypothecation of receivables pertaining to Horizonview's share of Units in Tower A through Escrow account

(2) Terms of repayment:
Repayment to be done through staggered monthly installment till November 2036. The loan carries interest rate 3.3% for the entire facility.

Note 3: Lender: Term Loan of INR 969 million (31 March 2023 : INR Nil million); Current maturities of long-term debt of INR 25 million (31 March 2023 : INR Nil
million). Bank Overdraft of INR 118 million (31 March 2023 : INR Nil million)

(1) Nature of securities:

(i) First and exclusive charge through by way of registered mortgage of 3rd to 9th Floor in Tower B of the IT/ITES building comprising of two towers being Tower A
and Tower B consisting of a combined triple basement, ground floor plus nine office floor having a carpet area of 353,882 sq. ft. along with 577 car parking spaces and
712 two wheeler parking spaces which is constructed on the larger piece of frechold land at S. No. 25/3A, 25/4H5, 25/4H68, 25/41 situated at 111/168, Porur Village,
AmbatturTalk, Thiruvallur District, D. No. 111 Mount Poonamallee Road, Porur, Chennai, Tamil Nadu ~ 600116 contained by admeasurement 5.51 Acres.(hereinafter
called as Mortgaged Property)

if) First and Exclusive Charge on escrow account wherein all receivables from the Mortgaged Property to be deposited.

iii) Charge by way of registered mortgage on the joint and undivided right, title and interest pertaining to mortgaged property over all that piece and parcel of free hold
land at S. No. 25/3A. 25/4H5, 25/4H6B, 25/41 at Mount Poonamallee Road, Porur Chennai, Tamil Nadu - 600116 contained by admeasurement 5.51 Acres.

iv) First Charge on the relevant DSRA of -2- month of interest and principal amount by way of lien marking on Overdraft Account

(2) Terms of repayment:
Repayment to be done through 180 structured installments commencing after the end of month from the date of first disbursement. The loan carries interest rate of

8.15%




21 A(iii)

21 A(iv)

KRC infra
Note 1: Lender: Term Loan of INR 3,933 million (31 March 2023: INR 4,449 million); Current maturities of long-term debt of INR 516 million (31 March 2023 : INR
451 million) and Bank Overdraft of INR 196 million (31 March 2023 : INR 64 million).

Terms Loans from Lender is secured by way of Mortgage on the project Land and Building of R1 and R4.

(1) Nature of securities:

a. Exclusive registered mortgage over project Land & Building for R1 and Exclusive registered mortgage over project Land & Building for R4.
b. Exclusive charge over receivables of Building R1 and Exclusive charge over receivables of Building R4

c. Fixed deposit pledged - DSRA equivalent to 3 months interest and principal

d. Corporte Guarantee from Mindspace REIT

(2) Terms of repayment:
Repayment in 110 instalments upto February 10, 2030. The overdraft facility 1s payable on demand. Term Loan carries interest rate of 8.25% p.a.

Note 2: Lender: Term Loan of INR 4,007 million (31 March 2023 : INR 467 million); Current maturities of long-term debt of INR 54 million (31 March 2023 : INR 27
million) and Bank Overdraft of INR 34 million (31 March 2023 : INR 395 million). Terms Loans from Lender is secured by way of Mortgage on the project Land and
Building of R3

(1) Nature of securities:

a.’Exclusive Mortgage over Floor 1,2,3,4,5,12 and 13 of building R3 alongwith land appurtenant thereto
b. Exclusive charge over receivables from Floor 1,2,3,4,5,12 and 13 of building R3

¢. Exclusive Mortgage over Floar 6 to 11 of building R3 alongwith land appurtenant thereto

d. Exclusive charge over receivables from Floor 6 to 11 of building R3

e. Fixed deposit pledged - DSRA equivalent to 3 months interest and principai

. Corporte Guarantee from Mindspace REIT

(2) Terms of repayment:

Repayment in 180 instalments upto March 31, 2038. The overdraft facility is repayable over 35 monthly installments starting from 31 May 2035 . Term Loan carries
interest rate of 8.65% p.a.
Repayment in 175 instalments upte May 31, 2038. Term Loan carries interest rate of 8.32% p.a.

MBPPL

Note 1: Lendeér : Term Loan of INR 1,600 million {31 March 2023 . iNR 1,851 million); Current maturities of long-term debt o w¥R 249 million (31 March 2023 : INR
2,613 million}; Bank Overdraft of INR 231 million (31 March 2023 : INR Nil williou}

Nature of securities:

Term loan and overdraft from Lender are secured by assignment of. lease rent receivabie and exclusive charge on property being all that piece and parcel ot land
together with the building Nc.1, 3 and 4 at Airoli constructed thereon.

Exclusive 1st Charge over all the current assets, present and future, including Cashflow / rentals arising out of Building No. 1,3 & 4 {Excluding the corresponding
electricity receivables of Bldg. No. 1,3 & 4).

Exclusive hypothecation charge on all the movable fixed assets of the property, both present and future.

Term loan and overdraft are secured by exclusive charge by way of mortgage of the building No. 2, 7. 8 & 9 {only floor no 6.7.8) alongwith undivided inierest in the
appurtenant land thereon at Mindspace Airoli East. Exclusive charge on the piece and parcel of land at Airoli east has been modified to pari-passu charge on entire land
parcel and amended modification deed is in the process of execution

Exclusive charge on the future cash flows of lease rentals to be received from and out of the Building 2,7,8, 9(only floor no 6,7,8).

Terms of repayment:

Term loan of Rs 3,000 Millions is repayable 168 monthly installments starting from 30 September 2018. The loan carries interest rate of 9.40%

Overdraft of Rs. 500 millions is repayable alongwith the term loans and carries interest rate of 9.40% p.a. currently.

The above loan of 3,500 millicn has been repaid during the year.

Teérm loan of Rs 2,530 Millions is repayable 156 monthly installments starting from 27 March 2020. The loan carries interest rate of 8.25% p a. currently payable
monthly.

Overdraft of Rs. 1,500 millions is repayable alongwith the term loans and carries interest rate of 8.25% p.a. currently.

Note 2: Lender : Term Loan of INR Nil million (31 March 2023 : INR 2,009 million), Cuirent maturities of long-term debt of INR 3,199 million (31 March 2023 : INR
237 million) and Bank Overdraft of INR 6 million (31 March 2023 : INR Nil million)

Nature of securities:

(a)(i) first and exciusive charge by way of registered mortgage on land admeasuring approx. 23,400 sq. meters located at Survey No. 35, Hissa No. 9+10+11-+12B,
Ahmednagar Road, Vadgaon Sheri, Pune - 411014 along with building/structures constructed/to be constructed thereon admeasuring Approx. 4.63 lakh sq.ft of leasable
carpet area and car parking's and on all the movable fixed assets in the building excluding those owned by the lessees; (Security for Term Loan Facility 1 & 2)

(a)(ii) Escrow of receivables from sale/lease/transfer of the property offered as security including all revenues generated from existing and future lessees of the property;

(Security for Term Loan Facility 1 & 2)
(a)(ili) An amount equivalent to one months Debt Servicing obligation dusing the entire Tenure of the Facility shall be maintained in the (DSRA) maintained with

KMBL at all times from the date of first disbursement.(Security for Term Loan Facility 1 & 2)

Terms of repayment:

Term Loan Facility 1 : Term loan of 2,800 million is obtained at an interest rate of 9.65% linked to Repo rate with quarterly reset and is repayable in 144 monthly
installments starting from the month after date of first disbursement. The principal installment starting from 49th Month following the month of first disbursement of the
term loan. the current applicable ROl is 9.05% p.a.

Term Loan Facility 2 : Term Loan is obtained at an interest rate of 9.10% linked to 6 months KMCLR with Yearly reset. The interest and Principal is payable by way of
144 streutured monthly installments starting from the next month from first disbursement date. Overdraft Facility is repayable v demand. The Current applicable ROI
for the both term loan and overdraft facility is 9.05%.

Note 3: Lender : Term Loan of INR 3,293 million (31 March 2023 : INR 1,677 million); Current maturities of long-term debt of INR 115 million (31 March 2023 : INR
46 million) and Bank Overdraft of INR 150 million (31 March 2023 : INR 4 million) o,
= :
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Nature of securities:

1) Exclusive charge by way of registered mortgage on the entire Building Nos. 5 & 6 consisting of stilt, 2 parking floors and 8 office floors having a chargeable area of
about 0.86 Mr sq. fi. which is constructed on the larger piece of leasehold Jand known as Plot No. 3 in the Kalwa Industrial Area within the village limits of Tlthan and
Airavali Taluka and registration sub-district Thane district and registration district Thane contained by admeasurement 1,98,997 square meters or thereabouts; along
with first pari-passu charge on the Land.

2) First and exclusive charge over the lease rentals (receivables) from tenants of building no. 5&6 at Mind Space, Airoli, Navi Mumbeai, District Thane, Maharashtra
through an Escrow account

Terms of repayment:
Term loan is obtained at an interest rate of 8.10% with yearly ieset and is repayable in 180 monthly installments.
The overdraft facility is repayable over 25 monthly installments starting frorm 15 March 2036 . Term Loan carries interest rate of 8.10% p.a

KRIT
Note 1: Lender : Overdraft faciiity of INR 184 million (31 Mar:h 2023 : TNR 283 million)

Nature of securities:

'Overdraft limit from Lender is secured with following:

Primary: Exclusive charge on the entire assets, both movables (excluding current assets) and immoveable of the Borrower in the Property, present and future
Collateral:

4) Fxclusive security charze on the entire current assets of the Borrower m the Property, present and future.

b) Property is defined as Bldg. no § (zlongwith appurtenant land thereto) leased to BA Continuam Solutions - with leasable area of ~ 1.14 lakhs sq ft and Floor 1 & 2
Jialongwith proporfionate undivided interest in the land appurtenar thereio) of Bldg no 4A & B leased to EIT Services India Pvi [td - with leasable area of ~ 0.42 lakhs
sy ft"

“Terms of repayment:
‘Bank overdratt is repayable on demand

Note 2: Lender : Term Loan of INR 2,423 mullion (31 March 2023 : iNR Nil million); Current maturities of long-term debt of INR 90 million (31 March 2023 : INR Nil
million)

Nature of securities:

Teims Loans from Lender is secured by way of Mortgage on the project Land and Building of 3A and 3B

« Exclusive sharge by way of hypothecatior: of the receivables from Bldg 24 and 3B having total leasable area 0f 0.44 mn sq fi

xclusive sharge by way of mortgage nver Bldg 3A and 3B along with proposticuate undivided right, title and interest on the tand

¢ DSRA equivalent to 3 months interest and priney,ui

=8

“Terms of repayment:
‘Repayment in 144 instalments npto Nov 10, 2035. Term Loan carries viterest rate of 8 25% p.a

Sundew Properties Limited
Mote 1 'Lender: Term Loan INR 847 willion (31 March 2023 = INR 705 million}: L urrerit maturities of long-term debt INR 59 million (31 March 2023 : INR 48
million); Bank Qverdraft INR 76 million (31 March 2023 : INR 96 million)

Natai e of securities:

“Term loan and Bank Ovesdraft fiom Lender is secured by way of charge on All the piece & parcel of Building 14 together with sub-plot of land located at Survey no. 64
situated at Madhapur Village, Serilngampally Mandal, Ranga Reddy District, Hyderabad admeasuring approximately 14,456.45 sq. mtrs., having total leasable arca ol
around 529,030 sq it. including all the structures thereon both present & future, along with all the development potential arising thereon including additional
development potential in the form of TDR, premium FSL, etc., both present and future (“Property”) and Exclusive charge by way of hypothecation on the Scheduled
Receivables and all insurance proceeds. both present and furure pertaining to the Property and Exclusive charge by way of hypothecation on the Escrow Account along
with all monies credited/deposited therein (in whatever form the same may hc), and all investments in respect thereof (in whatever form the same may be) pertaining to

the Property.

Terms of repayment:

"Repayable in 120 monthly instalments of varying amounts.

The Rupee Term loan facility currently carries an interest rate of 8.65% per annum and the Overdraft facility carries an interest rate 0f9 10% per annum

Mote 2: Lender : Non current borrowings of INR 1,636 million {3) March 2023 : INR 93 million); Current maturities of Jong-term debt of INR 90 million (31 March
2023 : INR 4 million).

Flexi term loan of INR 262 miilion (31 March 2023 : INR 380 million); Current maturities of Flexi term loan of INR {8 million {31 March 2023 : INR 10 million)

Nature of securities:

1. First and Exclusive charge by way of Equilable mortgage on the demiarcated portion of the land admeasuring about 12,008.46 sq. mtrs (2.96 acres) (de-notified SEZ
Portion) being a portion of the larger property together with the Buiiding No i1 consisting of 3 basement, 1 stilt, 1 (Parking + office) and 13 office floors admeasuring
about 6,02,456 sq. ft. at the Borrower's SEZ/NON SEZ project comprising of 40.25 acres land (larger Property) bearing Survey No. 64 (part) being and situated at
Maghapur Village, Seritingmpally Mandal, Ranga Reddy District, Hyderabad 500081

2. Fitst and exclusive charge over the lease ventals (receivables) from tenants of building no. 11 siutated at Mindspace Cyberabad, Madhapur, Hyderabad through an
Escrow account

Terms of repayment:

Repayable in 156 staggered monthly instalments. The entire facility cuzrently cerries an interest rate of 8.00% per annum.
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Avacado

Note 1: Lender : Term Loan INR 2,741 million (31 March 2023 : INR 2,838 million); Current maturities of long term borrowings INR 97 million (31 March 2023 : INR
89 million) and Bank Overdraft of INR 49 million (31 March 2023 : INR 196 million)

Nature of securities:

Loan from Lender has been secured by way

1) Exclusive charge by way of registered mortgage on all the piece & parcel of land located at Plot no. C-61, admeasuring approx. 3,818.19 square meters, G-Block,
Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra East, Mumbai together with the structure constructed thereon consisting of two basements and ground plus eight upper floors all
collectively admeasuring 1,46,350 square feet) along with any additional TDR. )

2) Exclusive charge on movable fixed, current assets and receivables both present and future associated with the Property:

The Rupee term loan carries interest rate of 8.65% per annum and the Overdraft facility carries an interest rate of 8.90% per annum

Terms of repayment:
Loan is repayable in 148 monthly installments.

Intime properties
Note 1: Lender : Overdraft facility of INR 81 million (31 March 2023 : INR Nil million)

Nature of securities:
Overdraft limit from Lender is secured against Fixed Deposit
Terms of repayment:

Bank overdraft is repayable on demand

Non-Convertible Debentures/Bonds

In December 2020, Mindspace Business Parks REIT issued 2,000 secured, listed, senior, taxable, non-cumulative, rated, redeemable, non-convertible debentures (“NCD
Series 17) having face value of Rs. 10,00,000 (Rupees ten lakhs only) each, amounting to Rs. 2,000,000,000 (Rupees two thousand million only) with a coupon rate of
6.45% p.a. payable quarterly beginning from the end of first full quarter from the date of allotment i.e. 31 March 2021, with last coupon payment on the scheduled
redemption date i.e. 16 December 2023. The tenure of the said N/ Series 1 is 36 months from 17 December 2020, being date of allotment.

This NCD Series 1 was listed on BSE Limited on 21 December 2020.

b

Security terms . . Bl . :
NCD Series 1 are secured by each of the following security in fave:u of the Debenture Trustee (holding for the benefit of the NCD Holders):

a) First and exclusive charge registered by way of simple mortyage (including receivables arising therefrom) on the aggregate leasable area of approximate.y 414,599 Sq.
Ft. or thereabouts in buildings no. 1 and 5 of Commerzone Yerawada (approx. 43,200 sq. ft. in building no. 1:and approx. 371,399 in building no. 5) together with the
proportionate undivided right, title and interest in the notionally demarcated land admeasuring approximately 18,264 sq. mtrs on which the said two buildini no. 1 and
5, out of all those pieces and parcels of larger land that are situated, lying and being in Village Yerawada, Taluka Haveli, District Pune (“Mortgaged Properties”) or

NCD Series 1.

b) A charge on the escrow account in which receivables of the Mortgaged Properties shall be received save and except any common area maintenance charges payable to
MBBPL with respect to the maintenance of the mortgaged properties. . s

c) Corporate guarantee executed by MBPPL.

Redemption terms:
a) NCD Series 1 were redeemed by way of bullet repayment at the end of 36 months from the date of allotment, i.e. 16 December 2023 and the same has been repaid

during the year.

b Interest is payable on the last day of each financial quarter in a year (starting from 31 March, 2021) until fhp scheduled redemption date.

¢) The Coupon shall be increased by 25 bps for every notch downgrade in the rating by the Credit Rating Agency. In case rating is upgraded after any rating downgrade,
the Coupon shall be decreased by 25 bps for each upgrade. - .

d) Upon occurrence of a mandatory redemption event, the Debenture Trustee may, by issuing not less than 30 (thirty) business days’ notice to the Issuer require the
Issuer to redeem in full, all the debentures then outstanding by paying an amount equal to the total mandatory redemption amount in respect of each debenture.
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In March 2021, Mindspace REIT issued 3,750 10 year G-Sec linked secured, listed, senior, taxable, non-cumulative, rated, principal protected — market linked,
redeemable, non-convertible debentures (“Market Linked Debentures / MLD Series 2”) having face value of Rs. 10,00,000 (Rupees ten lakhs only) each, amounting to
Rs. 3,750,000,000 (Rupees three thousand seven hundred fifty million only). The tenure of the said MLD Series 2 is 38 months from 18 March 2021, being date of
allotment of the MLD Series 2 and coupon, if any shall be payable on the Scheduled Redemption Date i.e. on maturity on 17 May 2024. The coupon payoff structure is
linked to condition where the payoff will be fixed on the final fixing date i.e. 16 April 2024. If identified 10 year G-Sec's last traded price as on final fixing date is
greater than 25% of its last traded price as on initial fixing date i.e. 18 March 2021, the coupon rate will be 6.65% p.a. If identified 10 year G-Sec’s last traded price as
on final fixing date is less than or equal to 25% of its last traded price as on initial fixing date, the coupon rate will be zero percent. As per the valuers report in respect
of valuation of these MLD Series 2, the probability of occurrence of such an event (last traded price of identified 10 year G-Sec on final fixing date being less than or
equal to 25% of its last traded price on initial fixing date) is remote and hence the value of the option considered as zero.

This MLD Series 2 was listed on BSE Limited on 22 March 2021.

Security terms

MLD Series 2 are secured by each of the following security in favour of the Debenture Trustee (holding for the benefit of the Debenture Holders):
a) First and exclusive charge being created by way of equitable mortgage on the aggregate leasable area of approximately 13,71,442 Sq. Ft. or thereabouts in buildings
no. 12A and Units of Building 12B of Madhapur, Hyderabad (approx. 12,69,140 sq. ft. in building no.12A and approx. 1,02,302 sq. ft in building no. 12B) together with
the proportionate undivided right, title and interest in the notionally demarcated land admeasuring approximately 29,842 sq. mtrs on which the said two building no.12A
and 12B, out of all those pieces and parcels of larger land that are situated, lying and being in Madhapur Village, Serilingampally Mandal, Ranga Reddy District,
Hyderabad (“Mortgaged Properties™), for MLD Series 2.

b) First ranking exclusive charge created by way of a hypothecation over the Hypothecated Properties of MLD Series 2.

¢) A charge on the escrow account has been created, in which receivables of the Mortgaged Properties of Sundew shall be received, save and except any common area
maintenance charges payable to Sundew with respect to the maintenance of the mortgaged properties.
d) Corporate guarantee executed by Sundew.

Redemption terms:

a) MLD Series 2 are redeemable by way of bullet payment at the end of 38 months from the date of allotment, i.e. 17 May 2024. accordingly the same has been
classified as current maturities of long term borrowings as on 31 March 2024.

b) The Coupon shall be increased by 25 bps for every notch downgrade in the rating by the Credit Rating Agency. In case rating is upgraded after any rating downgrade,
the Coupon shall be decreased by 25 bps for each upgrade. The Investors shall have the right to accelerate the MLD Series 2 if the rating is downgraded to A+.

¢) Upon occurrence of a mandatory redemption event, the Debenture Trustee may, by issuing not less than 30 (thirty) business days notice to the Issuer require the Issuer
to redeem in full, all the Debentures then outstanding by paying an amount equal ¢> the total mandatory redemption amount in respect of each Debenture.

In March 2021, Mindspace Business Parks REIT issued 750 secured, listed, senior, taxable, non-cumulative, rated, redeemable, non-convertible debentures (“NCD
Series 2”) having face value of Rs. 10,00,000 (Rupees ten lakhs only) each, amounting to Rs. 750,000,000 (Rupees seven hundred fifty million only) with a coupon rate
of 6.6861% p.a. payable quarterly beginning from the end of first full quarter ism the date of allotment i.e. 30 June 2021, with last coupon payment on the scheduled
redemption date i.e. 17 May 2024. The tenure of the said NCD Series 2 is 38 montfs from 18 March 2021, being date of allotment.
NCD Series 2 was listed on BSE Limited on 22 March 2021.

Security terms

NCD Series 2 are secured by each of the following security in favour of the Debenture Trustee (holding for the benefit of the NCD Holders):
a) First and exclusive charge being registered by way of simple mortgage (including receivables arising therefrom) on the aggregate leasable area of approximately
151,460 Sq. Ft. or thereabouts in building no. 4 of Commerzone Yerawada together with the proportionate undivided right, title and interest in the notionally demarcated
land admeasuring approximately 9,561 sq. mtrs on which the said building, out of all those pieces and parcels of larger land that are situated, lying and being in Village
Yerawada, Taluka Haveli, District Pune (“Mortgaged Properties™) of NCD Series 2.

b) A charge on the escrow account has been created, in which receivables of the Mortgaged Properties shall be received, save and except any common area maintenance
charges payable to MBPPL with respect to the maintenance of the mortgaged properties.

¢) Corporate guarantee executed by MBPPL.

Redemption terms:
a) NCD Series 2 are redeemable by way of bullet repayment at the end of 38 months from the date of allotment, i.e. 17 May 2024. accordingly the same has been
classified as current maturities of long term borrowings as on 31 March 2024.
b) Interest is payable on the last day of each financial quarter in a year (starting from 30 June, 2021) until the scheduled redemption date.
¢) The Coupon shall be increased by 25 bps for every notch downgrade in the rating by the Credit Rating Agency. In case rating is upgraded after any rating downgrade,
the Coupon shall be decreased by 25 bps for each upgrade.
d) Upon occurrence of a mandatory redemption event, the Debenture Trustee may, by issuing not less than 30 (thirty) business days’ notice to the Issuer require the
Issuer to redeem in full, all the debentures then outstanding by paying an amount equal to the total mandatory redemption amount in respect of each debenture.

In September 2021, Sundew Properties Limited issued 4,000 Senior, Listed, Rated, Secured, Non-Cumalative, Taxable, Transferable Redeemable Non-Convertible
Debentures of (“Sundew NCD 1") having face value of Rs. 10,00,000 (Rupees ten lakhs only) each, amounting to Rs. 4,000,000,000 (Rupees four thousand million only)
with a coupon rate of 6.1% p.a. payable quarterly beginning from the end of first full quarter from the date of allotment (date of allotment being 28 September 2021 and
end of first full quarter being 31 December 2021), with last coupon payment on the scheduled redemption date i.e. 28 June 2024. The tenure of the said NCD is from
deemed date of allotment i.e. 28 September 2021, till scheduled redemption date i.e. 28 June 2024.

This NCD was listed on BSE Limited on 1 October 2021.

Security terms:

NCD 1 are secured by each of the following security in favour of the Debenture Trustee (holdmg for the benefit of the NCD Holders) (as further detailed in security
documents):

1. First ranking exclusive security interest by way of an equitable mortgage over identified immovable properties (as identified below); First ranking sole and exclusive
security interest by way of hypothecation over '

(a) the current & future movable assets owned by the Sundew and receivables pertaining to identified immovable properties Building 20 with 709,165 square feet carpet
area (save and except 11,974 square feet carpet area of cafeteria and 1,520 square feet carpet area of SEZ office), Building 12B (unit no 1301 (22,069 square feet carpet
area), unit no 1302 (16,296 square feet carpet area), unit no 1401 (37,050 square feet carpet area) Part Project Mindspace Madhapur, Hyderabad Buildings

(b) the escrow account and the subscription account and all amounts standing to the credit of, or accrued or accruing on escrow account and the subscription account.

2. NCD are backed by guarantee provided by Mindspace REIT.




21 B(v)

21 B(vi)

Redemption terms:

a) NCD 1 are redeemable by way of bullet payment on 28 June 2024.

b) Interest is payable on the last day of each financial quarter in a year (starting from 31 December, 2021) until the scheduled redemption date.

¢) The Coupon shall be increased by 25 bps for every notch downgrade in the rating by the Credit Rating Agency. In case rating is upgraded after any rating downgrade,
the Coupon shall be decreased by 25 bps for each upgrade.

d) Upon occurrence of a mandatory redemption event, the Sundew shall issue mandatory redemption notice within 2 business days and no later than than 30 (thirty)
Business Days from issuance of mandatory redemption notice (unless instructed otherwise by debenture trustee), redeem in full (or as the case may be, in part) all the
Debentures then outstanding by paying an amount equal to the mandatory redemption amount in respect of each Debenture.

In February 2022, Mindspace Business Parks REIT issued 5,000 senior, listed, rated, secured, non-cumulative, taxable, transferable, redeemable, non-convertible
debentures (“NCD Series 3”) having face value of Rs. 10,00,000 {Rupees ten lakhs only) each, amounting to Rs. 5,000,000,000 (Rupees five thousand million only)
with a coupon rate of 6.35% p.a. Coupon on the outstanding Nominal value of each debenture shall be applicable and computed from day to day ,be prorated on an
actual/ actual basis for the actual number of days in the Coupon Period and be payable in arsears on the relevant Coupon Payment date to the Debenture Holder whose
name is appearing on the Register of Beneficial Owners as on the Record Date.The Issuer hereby aknowledges and agrees that there shall be no moratorium period for
the payment of Coupon. The first Coupon payment Date is 31 March 2022, with last coupon payment on the scheduled redemption date i.e. 31 December 2024, The
tenure of the said NCD Series 3 is 35 months from 1 Februaty 2022, being date of allotment.

This NCD Series 3 was listed on BSE Limited on February 04, 2022

Security terms

NCD Series 3 are secured by each of the following security in favour of the Debenwre Trustee (holding for the benefit of the NCD Holders):

a)-First and exclusive charge heing registered by way of simple mortgage or: the carpet area of approximately 5,52,974 8q. Ft.(save and except entire 2nd floor
admeasuring 11,383 Sq. Ft. carpet area in building no. 2) (the building no. 2 ) situated on the Mortgage land along with proportionate covered and open parking spaces,
in Building 2 together with all the beneficial rights, title and interest of the Airoli West in appurtenant to Building 2 and all erections. The Building 2 is situated on a
portion of the Mortgage Land admeasuring 8.04 Hectares, which portion is notified as a Specia! Economic Zone & first and exclusive charge being registered by way of
simple mortgage on the identified units with aggregating to carpet area of approximately 4,64,527 Sq. Ft. (identified units of building no. 3 ) situated on the Mortgage
Tand along with proportionate covered and open parking spaces, in Building 3 together with all the benciicial rights, title and interest of the Assets SPV in appurtenant 1o
Building 3 and all erections (“Mortgaged Properties™) of NCD Series 3 as further detailed in transaction documents

A first ranking pari passu charge by way of a simple mortgage over the Morigaged Land as further detailed in transaction documents

b) A charge on the escrow account has been created, in which receivables of the Mortgaged Properties shall be received, save and except any common area maintenance
charees payable to Gigaplex with respect to the maintenance of the mortgaged properties.

¢) Corporate guarantee executed by Gigaplex.

Redemption terms: '

2) NCD Series 3 are redeemable by way of bullet repayment at the end of 35 months from the date of allotment, i.e. 31 December, 2024 and accordingly the same has
been classified as current maturities of long term borrowings as on 31 March 2024

b) Interest is payable on the last day of each financial quarter in a year (starting from 31 March, 2022) until the scheduled redemption date.

¢) The Coupon shall be increased by 25 bps for every notch downgrade in the rating by the Credit Rating Agency. In case rating is upgraded after any rating downgiade.
the Coupon shall be decreased by 25 bps for each upgrade.

d) Upon occurrence of a mandatory redemption event, the Debenture Crustee may, by issuing not less than 30 (thirty) business days’ notice to the Issuer require the
Issuer to redeem in full, all the debentures then outstanding by paying an amount equal to the total mandatory redemption amount in respect of each debenture.

In June 2022, Mindspace Business Parks Private Limited issued 4,900 senior, redeemable, listed, rated, sccured, transferable, rupee denominated, non-convertible bonds
(“Non Convertable Bonds™) having face value of Rs. 10,00,000 (Rupees ten lakhs only) each, amounting to Rs. 4,900,000,000 (Rupees four thousand nine hundred
wmillion only) with a coupon rate linked to 3 month Government of India T-Bill plus spread of 203 bps payable yuarterly, with last coupon payment on the scheruled
redemption date i.e. 22 June 2027. The tenure of the said non convertible bond is 60 months from deemed date of allotment i.e. 23 June 2022, till scheduled redempticn
date i.e. 22, June 2027,

This NCB Series 1 was listed on BSE Limited on June 24, 2022. During the year, principal and interest is paid on 30 June 2023

Security Terms:

The Non Convertible Bonds are secured by

(i) a first ranking pari passu Security by way of a simple mortgage over the spzcified land (larger land admeasuring 2,02,740 square meters situated at Kalwa Industrial
Area sub district Thane ) and

(if) a first ranking exclisive Security over the identified buildings having aggregate carpei area of approximately 10,40,548.98 sq.fi. (approx. 2,67,560.75 sq. ft. in
Building No. 10, approx. 2,35,961.50 sq. ft. in Building no. 11 (part),approx. 2,74,449.71 sq. ft. in Building No. 12, approx. 2,62,577.02 sq. ft. in Building No. 14),
receivables and Account Assets, as specifically defined in the bond trust deed dated June 02, 2022 and as further amended from time to time (“Bond Trust Deed”).

(iii) Corporate guarantee by the REIT pursuant to the terms of the Bond Trust Deed.

Redemption terms:

Finai Redernption Date is the date falling 60 months from the Deemed Date of Allotment (Principal repayment: 1% on 31 Mar 23, 2% on 31 Mar 24, 53% on 31 Mar 25,
4% on 31 Mar 26, 5% on 31 Mar 27 and Balance on Final Redemption Date). The said ron convertible bonds are voluntarily redeemable by tire company upon the
expiry of the lock-in prescribed under the Applicable Laws as specifically defined in the Bond Trust Deed. Non convertible bond holders have a pul option at the end of
54 months from Deemed Date of Allotment as specified in the Bond Trust Deed.

On and from the occurrence of a Rating Downgrade Event/ Rating upgrade Fvent, the Spread shall stand increased/ decreased by 0.25% per annum over and above the
immediately preceding Coupon as on the date of the occurrence of such Rating Downgrade/ Upgrade Event
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In July 2022, Mindspace Business Park REIT issued 5,000 senior, listed, rated, secured, non-cumulative, taxable, transferrable, redeemable, non-convertible debentures
of face value of INR 1,000,000 (Indian Rupees One Million) per Debenture for aggregate principal amount of upto INR 5,000,000,000/- (Rupees Five Thousand Million
Only) with a coupon rate of 7.95% p.a. Coupon on the outstanding Nominal value of each debenture shall be applicable and computed from day to day, be prorated on
an actual/ actual basis for the actual number of days in the Coupon Period and be payable in arrears on the relevant Coupon Payment date to the Debenture Holder
whose name is appearing on the Register of Beneficial Owners as on the Recoxd Tiate. The first Coupon payment Date is 30 Sept 2022, with last coupon payment on the
scheduled redemption date i.e. 27 July 2027. The tenure of the said NCD Series 4 is 60 months,

This NCD Series 4 was listed on BSE Limited on July 29, 2022
Security terms
NCD Series 4 ar secured by each of the following security in favour of the Debenture Trustee (holding for the benefit of the NCD Holders):

. a) First ranking sole and exelusive security interest by way of an equitable nisrtgage on carpet area of approximately 779,466 sq ft in building 12 D (identified units of

building) of Madhapur, Hyderabad along with the common areas, usage and access mights appurtenant to the units mortgaged in Building 12D as menticned in the trust
deet, situated. on a notionally demarcated land admeasuring approximately 17414.77 square metres (equivalent te 4.30 acres), forming part of a portion of land
admeasuring 14.02 hectares equivalent to 34.64 acres or thereabout declared as *Special Economic Zone' land from and out of the larger piece of land bearing Survey
no. 64(part), lying, being and situated at Madhapur Village, Serilingampally Mandal, Ranga Reddy District, Hyderabad.

) A charge on the escrow account has been created, in which receivables uf the Mortgaged Properties shall be received, save and except any common area maintenance
charges payable tc Sundew with respect to the maintenance of the mortgaged properties.

¢} Corporate guarantec executed by Sundew Properties Limited.

Redemption teyms:

) NCT Series 4 are redeemable by way of bullet repayment at the end of 60 months from the date of allotment, i.e. 27 July, 2027

t is payable on the last day of each financial quarter in 2 year (starting from 3(September 2022) until the scheduled redemption date.

¢} The Crupon shall be increased by 25 bps for every notch downgrade in the rating by the Credit Rating Agency. In case rating is upgraded after any rating downgrade,
ihe Coupon shall be decreased by 25 bps for each upgrade.

&) Upon ocemrence of a mandatory redemption event, the Debenture Trustee may, by issuing not less than 30 (thirty) business days’ notice to the Issuer require the

Jssuer to redeem in fiill, all the debentures then outstanding by paying an amount squal to the total mandatory redemption ameount in respect of each debenture.

On 15 March 2023, Mindspace Business Parks REIT issued 55,000 (fifty five thousand) Green Debt Secuniies in the form of listed, rated, secured, non-cumulative,
taxable, transferable, redeemable non-convertible debentures {(“Mindspace REIT Green Bond 17) having nominal value of Rs. 1,00,000 (Rupees One lakh only) each,

- amounting to Rs 5,500,000,000 (Rupees Five thousand five hundred million only) with a coupon rate of £.72% p.a. payable quarter]y beginning from the end of Grst
-quarter from the date of allotment i.e. 15 March 2022, with last ¢oupon pryment on the scherluled redemption date i.e. 13 April 2026. The tenure of the said Mindspace

]
A

RETT Cireen Bo * § i 3 year and 30 days from 15 March 2023, being date of silotment. The daie of paymen; of first coupon is 31 March 23.

Mindspace REIT Green Bond ! was listed on BSE Limited on 16 March 2023
Security terms:

Mindspace REIT Green Bond 1 are secured by each of the foliowing security in favour of the Debenture Trustee (holding for the benefit of the NCD Holders) as more
particularly described in the transaction documents, summarized as follaws:
a) First and exclusive charge registered by way of equitable morigage

uding reccjvabies arising therefrom) on the aggregate leasable area of approximately 1.067

“million square feel or thereabouts in buildings no. 5B and 9 of Mindspace Madhapur Hyderabad (spprox. 245,977 sq. fi. in building no 5B and approx. 821,717

building no. 9) together with the proportionate undivided right, title and interest in (i) the notionally demarcated land admeasuring approximately 7,169.90 square mctres
(equivalent to 1.7717 acres) on which Building 5B is situated, and (ii) the neticnally demarcated land admeasuring approximately 16,871.82 square metres (equivalent
t0 4.17 acres) on which Building 9 is situated.

b) A charge on the escrow account in which receivables of the Mortgaged Properties shall be payable to Intime Properties Limited.

c) Corporate guarantee executed by Intime Properties Limited.

Redemption terms:

:a) Mindspace REIT Green 13ond 1 are redeemable by way of bullet repayment at the end of 3 years and 30 days from .he date of allotment {date of aliotment being 15

March 2023 and date of redemption being 13 April 2026).

b) Interest'is payablé on the last day of each financial quarter in a year {starting from 31 March, 2023) until the scheduled redemption date and on the scheduled
redemption date.

¢) The Coupon shall be increased by 25 bps for every notch downgrade in the rating by the Credit Rating Agency. In case rating is upgraded after any rating downgrade.
the Coupon shall be decreased by 25 bps for each upgrade.

d) Upon oceurrence of a mandatory redemption event, the Debenture ¥rustce may, by 1ssuing not less ihan 30 (thirty) business days’ notice to the Issuer require the
Issuer to redeern in full, all the debentures then outstanding by paying an amount equai to the total mandatory redemption amount in respect of each debenture.

fn June 7023, Mindspace Business Park REIT issued 50.000 listed, rated, secured, non-cumulative, taxable, transférrable, redeemable, non-convertible debentures of
tace value ¢f INR 1,00,000 (Indian Rupees One Lakh only) per Debenture for aggregate principal amount of upto INR 5,000,000,000/- (Rupees Five Thousand Millien
Only) with a coupos rate of 7.75% p.a. payable quarterly. Ceupon on the cutstanding Nominal value of each debenture shall be applicable and computed from day to
day, be prorated on an actual/ aetual basis for'the actial number of days in the Coupon Period and be payable in arrears on the relevant Coupon Payment date to the
Debenture Holder whose name is appearing on the Register of Beneficial Owners as on the Record Date. The first Coupon payment Date is 30 June 2023, with last
ccupon payment on the scheduled redemption date i.e. 30 June 2026. The tenure of the said NCD Series 6 is 3 year and 29 days.

This NCD 3eries 6 was Jisted on BSE Limited on June 06, 2023.
Security terms

NCD Series 6 are secured by each of the following security in favour of the Debenture Trustee (holding for the benefit of the NCD Holders):

a) first ranking soie and exclusive security interest, by way of a registered simple mortgage on identitied units in buticings 6, 7 and 8 of Commerzone Yerwada adding to
a cumuiaiive carpet area of approximately 0.7msf across these 3 buildings at Commerzone Yerwada, Pune along with the common areas, usage and access rights
appurtenant to the units mortgaged in Buildings 6, 7 and 8 as mentioned in the trust deed, situated or a notionally demarcated land admeasuring approximately 26,162
square metres , forming part of a portion of land larger land admeasuring 1,03,919 square metres (after deducting 21 square metres for road from total extent of 1,03,940

* square mefres) at Village Yerwada, Taluka Haveli, District Pune and within the limits of Pune Municipal Corporation.

b)A charge on the escrow account has been created, in which receivabies of the Mortgaged Froperties shall be received, save and except any commor area maintenance
charges payable to Sundew with respeet to the maintenance of the moitgaged properties romaea
¢) Corporaie guarantee uxcfy;c{"fgfi@ e Business Parks Private Limited.
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Redemption terms:

a) NCD Series 6 are redeemable by way of bullet repayment at the end of 3 year and 29 days from the date of allotment i.e. 30 June 2026.

b) Interest is payable on the last day of each financial quarter in a year (starting from 30 June 2023) until the scheduled redemption date.

c) The Coupon shall be increased by 25 bps for every notch downgrade in the rating by the Credit Rating Agency. In case rating is upgraded after any rating downgrade,
the Coupon shall be decreased by 25 bps for each upgrade.

d) Upon occurrence of a mandatory redemption event, the Debenture Trustee may, by issuing not less than 30 (thirty) business days’ notice to the Issuer require the
Issuer to redeem in full, all the debentures then outstanding by paying an amount equal to the total mandatory redemption amount in respect of each debenture.

In September 2023, Mindspace Business Park REIT issued 50,000 listed, rated, secured, non-cumulative, taxable, transferrable, redeemable, non-convertible debentures
of face value of INR 1,00,000 (Indian Rupees One Lakh only) per Debenture for aggregate principal amount of upto INR 5,000,000,000/- (Rupees Five Thousand
Million Only) with a coupon rate of 8.03% p.a. payable quarterly. Coupon on the outstanding Nominal value of each debenture shall be applicable and computed from
day to day, be prorated on an actual/ actual basis for the actual number of days in the Coupon Period and be payable in arrears on the relevant Coupon Payment date to
the Debenture Holder whose name is appearing on the Register of Beneficial Owners as on the Record Date. The first Coupon Payment Date is 30 September 2023, with
last coupon payment on the scheduled redemption date i.e. 10 December 2026. The tenure of the said NCD Series 7 is 3 years and 3 months

This NCD Series 7 was listed on BSE Limited on September 13, 2023.

Security terms

NCD Series 7 are secured by each of the following security in favour of the Debenture Trustee (holding for the benefit of the NCD Holders):

a) first ranking sole and exclusive security interest, by way of an equitable mortgage on identified units in buildings 2A, 2B and 10 of Mindspace Madhapur adding to a
cumulative carpet area of approximately 0.73 msf across these 3 buildings in buildings 2A, 2B and 10 as mentioned in the trust deed, situated on a notionally
demarcated land admeasuring approximately 36,258 square metres, being and situated at Mindspace Madhapur, Madhapur Village, Serilingampally Mandal, Ranga
Reddy District, Hyderabad.

b) first ranking sole and exclusive security interest by way of a hypothecation over Collection Account and Escrow Account and all amounts standing to the credit of or
accrued or accruing on, receivables, movable assets pertaining to Mortgaged Immovable Properties as further specified in transaction documents.

¢) Corporate guarantee executed by KRIT.

Redemption terms:

a) NCD Series 7 are redeemable by way of bullet repayment at the end of 3 year and 3 months from the date of allotment i.e. 10 December 2026.

b) Interest is payable on the last day of each financial quarter in a year (starting from 30 September 2023) until the scheduled redemption date with last payment falling
on the scheduled redemption date. ]

¢) The Coupon shall be increased by 25 bps for every notch downgrade in the rating by the Credit Rating Agency. In case rating is upgraded after any rating downgrade,
the Coupon shall be decreased by 25 bps for each upgrade.

d) Upon occurrence of a mandatory redemption event, the Debenture Trustee may, by issuing not less than 30 (thirty) business days’ notice to the Issuer require the
Issuer to redeem in full, all the debentures then outstanding by paying an amount equal to the total mandatory redemption amount in respect of each debenture.

In March 2024, Mindspace Business Park REIT issued 34,000 listed, rated, secured, non-cumulative, taxable, transferrable, redeemable, non-convertible debentures of
face value of INR 1,00,000 (Indian Rupees One Lakh only) per Debenture for aggregate principal amount of upto INR 3,400,000,000/- (Rupees Three Thousand Four
Hundred Million Only) with a coupon rate of 7.93% p.a. payable quarterly. Coupon on the outstanding Nominal value of each debenture shall be applicable and
computed from day to day, be prorated on an actual/ actual basis for the actual number of days in the Coupon Period and be payable in arrears on the relevant Coupon
Payment date to the Debenture Holder whose name is appearing on the Register of Beneficial Owners as on the Record Date. The first Coupon Payment Date is 31
March 2024, with last coupon payment on the scheduled redemption date i.e. 20 March 2027. The tenure of the said NCD Series 8 is 3 years.

This NCD Series 8 was listed on BSE Limited on March 22, 2024,

Security terms
NCD Series 8 are secured by each of the following security in favour of the Debenture Trustee (holding for the benefit of the NCD Holders):

a) first ranking sole and exclusive security interest, by way of an equitable mortgage on identified units in buildings 1, 4, 5 and Amenity building of Commerzone
Yerwada adding to a cumulative leasable area of approximately 0.55 msf and carpet area of ¢.0.43 msf across these 4 buildings in buildings as mentioned in the trust
deed, situated on a notionally demarcated land admeasuring approximately 27,826 square metres, being and situated at Village Yerawada, Taluka Haveli, District Pune
and within the limits of Pune Municipal Corporation, and bounded as follows:.

b) first ranking sole and exclusive security interest by way of a simple mortgage over Collection Account and Escrow Account and all amounts standing to the credit of
or accrued or accruing on, receivables, movable assets pertaining to Mortgaged Immovable Properties as further specified in transaction documents.

c¢) Corporate guarantee executed by MBPPL.

Redemption terms:

a) NCD Series 8 are redeemable by way of bullet repayment at the end of 3 year from the date of allotment i.e. 21 March 2024.

b) Interest is payable on the last day of each financial quarter in a year (starting from 31 March 2024) until the scheduled redemption date with last payment falling on
the scheduled redemption date.

¢) The Coupon shall be increased by 25 bps for every notch downgrade in the rating by the Credit Rating Agency. In case rating is upgraded after any rating downgrade,
the Coupon shall be decreased by 25 bps for each upgrade.

d) Upon occurrence of a mandatory redemption event, the Debenture Trustee may, by issuing not less than 30 (thirty) business days’ notice to the Issuer require the
Issuer to redeem in full, all the debentures then outstanding by paying an amount equal to the total mandatory redemption amount in respect of each debenture.

Refer Note 47 for Ratio disclosure
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Other non-current financial liabilities

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Security deposits 3,234 3,445
Retention money payable
- due to micro and small enterprises 37 31
- others 21 111
Capital creditors
- Due to micro and small enterprises - -
- Others 63 31
Interest accrued but not due on debentures - 535
3,355 4,153
Provisions (Non current)
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Provision for employee benefits
- gratuity 23 26
- compensated absences 11 14
Other Provision (Refer Note 40 (7)(c)) 27 27
61 67
Deferred tax liabilities (net)
Particulars As at Asat
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Deferred tax liabilities (net) 3,732 2,494
3,732 2,494
Other non-current liabilities
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Uneamed rent 431 482
431 482
Short term borrowings
Particulars As at Asat
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Secured:
Loans repayable on demand
- overdraft from banks (refer Note 21 A) 1,364 1,219
Unsecured:
- Commercial Paper (Refer note 26(i)) (31 March 2023 : Nil) 1,446 -
Current maturities of long-term debt (Secured)
10 year G-Sec linked secured, listed, senior, taxable, non-cumulative, rated, 3,749
principal protected — market linked, redeemable, non-convertible debentures
(“Market Linked Debentures / MLD Series 2”) (net of issue expenses, at
amortised cost) (refer Note 21 B(ii))
Secured, listed, senior, taxable, non-cumulative, rated, redeemable non- 750 -
convertible debentures (NCD Series 2) (net of issue expenses, at amortised
cost) (refer Note 21 B(ii))
- Secured, listed, senior, taxable, non-cumulative, rated, redeemable non- - 1,996
convertible debentures (NCD Series 1) (net of issue expenses, at amortised
cost) (Refer Note 21 B(i))
Secured, listed, senior, taxable, non-cumulative, rated, redeemable non- 4,986 -
convertible debentures (NCD Series 3) (net of issue expenses, at amortised
cost) (refer Note 21 B(v))
Senior, Listed, Rated, Secured, Non-Curnulative, 3,998 -
Taxable, Transferable, Redeemable Non-Convertible Debentures (Sundew
NCD 1) (refer Note 21 B(iv))
- Bonds - Senior, Listed, Rated, Secured, Non-Cummulative, Taxable, - 98
Transferable, Redeemable Non-Convertible Bonds (MBPPL NCB 1) (Refer
note 21 B(vi))
- from banks (refer Note 21 A) 4,475 5,357
- from other parties (refer Note 21 A) 106 13
- Flexi term loan (refer Note 21 A(vi)-Note 2)) 18 10
20,892 8,693




26(i) (a) On 20 December 2022, Mindspace Business Parks REIT issued 2,000 Commercial Papers with a face value of Rs. 5,00,000 (Rupees five lakhs only) each, at a
discount of 7.2% per annum to the face value. The discounted amount raised by the REIT through MREIT CP/1 was Rs. 982,556,000 (Rupees nine hundred eighty two
million five lakhs fifty six thousands only) and the value payable on maturity is Rs. 1000.000,000 (Rupees one thousand million only). Discount on Commercial papers
is amortized over the tenor of the underlying instrument. The commercial papers were listed on BSE and matured and repaid on 20 Mareh 2023,

(b) On 19 December 2023, Mindspace Business Parks REIT issued 3,000 Commercial Papers with a face value of Rs. 5,00,000 (Rupees five lakhs only) each, at a
discount of 8.0% per annum to the face value. The discounted amount raised by the REIT through MREIT CP/Series-2/2023-24 was Rs. 1,446,117,000 (Rupees one
thousand four hundred forty six million one hundred and seventeen thousands only) and the value payable on maturity is Rs. 1,500,000,000 (Rupees one thousand five
hundred million only). Discount on Commercial papers is amortized over the tenor of the underlying instrument. The commercial papers were listed on BSE and will
mature on 6 June 2024

27 Trade payables

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Trade Payables
total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 224 133
- total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises
and small enterprises * 864 576
1,088 709

* Refer note 46 for related party disclosure.

28 Other current financial liabilities

Particulars As at As at
L 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Emplayees dues payable 10 13
Interest accrued but not due on loans from
- banks / financial institutions 60 44
- debenture/bonds 830 3
Interest accrued and due on others 40 21
Security deposits 5,892 5,162
Retention dues payable
- due to micro and small enterprises 146 193
- others 246 250
Unpald Distributions 0 0
Capital creditors
- Due to micre and small enterprises 814 330
- Others ] 1,341 1,560
Other liabilities* 32 70
9,411 7,696

* Refer note 46 for related party disclosure.

29 _Provisions (Current)

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Provision for employee benefits

- gratuity 4 4
- compensated absences 3 3
Provision for compensation z 27
i/ 34
30 _Other current liabilities
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
TJneamned rent 334 365
Advances received from customners 17 46
Statutory dues 375 308
Other advances 14 54
Other payable® 445 354
1,185 1,127
*This includes Unspent Corporate Social Responsibility amount.
31 Current tax liabilities (net)
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Provision for income-tax, net of advance tax 35 25

35 25
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MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT
RN:IN/REIT/19-20/003

Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
Notes to Accounts

(All amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated)

40 Contingent liabilities and Capital commitments

Particulars

As at
31 March 2024

As at
31 March 2023

Contingent liabilities

Claims not acknowledged as debt in respect of

- Income-Tax matters (Refer note 1 below) excluding interest 963 966
- Service-Tax matters (Refer note 2 below) 368 368
- Customs duty matters (Refer note 3 below) 34 34
- Stamp duty 65 65
- Stamp duty and registration fees (Refer note 11 below) 221 .
Capital commitments
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account (net of advances) and not provided for (Refer 9,681 5,173
Note 4 below)
Notes:

1 (a) Gigaplex- An appeal has been filed for A.Y. 2010-11 before CIT(A) against the penalty order raising demand of Rs.3 million and the appeal is pending. Gigaplex has

paid 20% (Rs.1 million) with a request to keep the demand in abeyance. As per Income tax website , there is no demand outstanding. Subsequent to period end, Order
of CIT(A) has been received and this penalty has now been deleted.

(b) KRIT - Contingent liability of Rs. 933 million relate to AY 2012-13 to AY 2018-19 for which it has filed appeals before CIT(A) against orders under section 143(3)
/ 143(3) read with section 153A of the Act contesting the disallowance of deduction under section 80IA of the Income Tax Act 1961. KRIT is hopeful of a favourable
outcome for these Assessment Years. In case of unfavourable decisions in appeal for AY 2012-13 to AY 2018-19, the tax would be payable under normal tax and
hence, MA', ~dit currently available with KRIT will no longer be available As a result, in addition to above contingent liability, KRIT would require to pay additional
tax of Rs. 326 million w.r.t. AY 2019-20 and AY 2020-21 (These years are not under litigat:on) because during these years KRIT has utilised the MAT credit availed
during AY 2012-13 1o AY 2018-19.The disallowance of deduction under section 80IA for AYs 2012-13 to 2018-19 by the Income Tax department was based on the
order for carlier AY 2011-12 wherein similar disallowance was made. KRIT had challenged the said order of AY 2011-12 before the ITAT. The Hon’ble ITAT vide its
order dated 06.05.2021 allowed the appeal in favour of KRIT by quashing the disallowance made by the income-tax authority. The Income Tax department has further

filed an appeal before the High Court against the said order for AY 2011-12 of the Hon’ble ITAT

(c) Avacado- Contingent Liability of Rs. 30.55 million relates to AY 2015-16 and AY 2016-17. For AY 2015-16 and AY 2016-17, the Company had filed appeals
against order under section 143(3) read with 153 A of the Income Tax Act,1961 on account of disallowances ws 14A and ws 80IA which were disposed-off in favour of
the Company in earlier year. The department has filed an appeal before the Hon’ble High Court against the same.

2 SPVs As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

MBPPL 92 92
Sundew 2 2
Intime 57 57
KRIT 209 209
Avacado 8 8

368 368

MBPPL : The SPV has received show cause and demand notices for inclusion in taxable value amounts received as reimbursement of electricity and allied charges and
demand service tax there on of Rs. 92 million excluding applicable interest and penalty. SPV has filled appropriate replies to the show cause and demand notices.

Sundew : Demand for Non Payment of service tax on renting of fitouts and equipments Rs.2 Million and Demand for Interest and Penalty on account of wrong
availment of credit of service tax paid on input services Rs.0 million . SPV has filed an appeals with CESTAT and matter is pending.

Intime : (a) Intime has filed an appeal with CESTAT against demand of Rs. 21 million for Non Payment of service tax on renting of fitouts and equipment for the
period April 2010 to March 2015 and Department filed an appeal with CESTAT against the order of Commissioner (Appeals) deleting the demand of Rs 15 million for
Non Payment of service tax on renting of fitouts and equipment for the period April 2015 to June 2017 and these matters are pending adjudication Intime received
favourable order w.r.t demand of Rs. 21 million for service tax on recovery of electricity and water and irregular availment of credit of service tax paid on input services.

(b) Intime received favourable order w.r.t demand of Rs. 21 million for service tax on recovery of electricity and water and irregular availment of credit of service tax
paid on input services.

KRIT : KRIT has {ifed an appeal with CESTAT against demand of Rs. 96 million for Non Payment of service tax on renting of fitouts and equipment for the period
April 2010 to March 2015 and Department filed an appeal with CESTAT against the order of Commissioner (Appeals) deleting the demand of Rs.20 million for Non
Payment of service tax on renting of fitouts and equipment for the period April 2015 to June 2017 and these matters are pending adjudication.

KRIT received favourable order w.r.t demand of Rs. 93 million for service tax on recovery of electricity and water and irregular availment g
on input services




U

a) .

b)

Avacado : (a) The SPV has received an order dated 31 January 2018 pronounced by the Commissioner (Appeals), confirming the service tax demand of Rs. 7 million
(excluding applicable interest and penalty thereon) on renting of immovable property services provided to tenants during the period April 2008 to March 2011. It has
filed an Appeal before the Customs, Central Excise & Service Tax Appellate Tribunal. The matter is pending adjudication.

(b) For the period April 2011 to September 2011, Avacado had received a Show Cause cum Demand Notice dated 22 October 2012 alleging non-payment of service tax
of Rs. 1 million (excluding applicable interest and penalty thereon) on renting of immovable property services provided to tenants. Avacado had filed its detailed reply
on 24 December 2012. No further correspondence has been received in this case.

For both the above matters, Avacado had filed applications in Form SVLDRS-1 under the Sabka Vishwas (Legacy Dispute Resolution) Scheme, 2019. Avacado had
received SVLDRS-3 with service tax demand in respect of above matters. Avacado had not accepted the demand and therefore the matter remains under dispute.

Customs duty demand at the time of debonding of assets from the Software Technology Parks of India scheme ( STPI ) for Intime Rs. 16 million and KRIT Rs. 9
million.

‘Future Cash cutflow in respect of above, if any, is determinable only on receipt of judgement / decision pending with relevant authorities.

KRIT - Bank guarantees to Deputy Commissioner of Customs, Export Promotion Division for Rs.9 million

The SPV wise details of capital commitments are as follows:

SPVs As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

MBPPL 650 891
Gigaplex 743 770
Sundew 302 438
KRC Infra 1,970 1,513
Horizonview 113 328
KRIT 5,681 988
Avacado 68 141
Intime 154 104

9,681 3,173
Avacado

A Suit has been filed in the year 2008 by Nusli Nevilie Wadia (Plaintiff) against tvory Properties and Hotels Private Limited (Ivory) & Others which inchides Avacado
as oue of the Defendants inter alia in respect of the land and the 'Paradigm' Industrial Park building of Avacado. The Plaintiff has prayed against Avacado and the said
[vory restraining them from carrying out further construction or any other activity on the fand (on which the building Paradigm is constructed), demolition and removai
of the structures on the said land, appointment of a Court Receiver in respect of the said land and Paradigm building, declaring the MOUs / Agreements entered 10 by
Avacado with Ivory and the Plaintiff as voidable and having been avoided and rescinded by the Plaintiff and to be delivered up and cancelled, restraining trou.
alienating, encumbering or parting with possession of structures and restraining from dealing with, creating fresh leases / licenses or renewing lease / ficense in respect
of the said Paradigmn building and from receiving or recovering any rent / license fee / compensation in respect of the said leases / licenses, depositing all the rents in the

" Court, etc. The Court has not granted any ad-interim relief to the Plaintiff. Avacado has filed its reply to the said Suit denying the allegations and praying that ne interim

relief be granted to the Plaintiff. The notice of motion for interim relief and the Suit are pending for the final hearing before the High Court.

Based on an advice obtained from an independent legal counsel, the management is confident that Avacado will be able to suitably defend and the impact. if any, on the
Ind AS financial statements can be determined on disposal of the above Petition and accordingly, Ind AS Financial statements of Avacado have been prepared on a
going concern basis. Further, the Plaintiff, through his advocates & solicitors, had addressed letter dated 13 February 2020 including to Mindspace REIT, the Manager,
the Trustee. the Sponsors, Avacado, Mr. Ravi C. Raheja, Mr. Neel C. Raheja, Mr. Chandru L. Raheja, Ivory Properties and K Raheja Corp Pvt.Ltd., expressing his
objection to the proposed Offer aird any actions concerning the building Paradigm located at Mindspace Malad project. The allegations and averments made by the
Plaintiff have been responded and denied by the addressees, through their advocates & solicitors. No further correspondence has been received.

Pursuant to the levy of service tax on renting of immovable properties given for commercial use, retrospectively with effect from 1 June 2007 by the Finance Act, 2010
some of the lessees to whom Avacado has let out its premises, have based on a legal advice, challenged the said levy and, inter-alia, its retrospective application and
withheld payment of service tax to Avacado, based on certain judicial pronouncements and stay orders granted by appropriate High Courts from time to time. Further in
this regard the Hon’ble Supreme Court has passed an interim order dated 14th October, 2011 in Civil appeal nos. 8390, 8391-8393 of 2011 and in compliance of which,
such lessees have deposited with appropriate authority in 3 instalments, 50% of the amount such service tax not so paid by them upto 30 September 2011 and have
furnished surety for the balance 50% of the amount of service tax and which amount has also been deposited by them with the authorities. Further as per Hon’ble
Supreme Court’s Order dated 5th April 2018 in Civil Appeal No. (s) 4487/2010, the matter is deferred until disposal of the issues pending before the nine judges Bench
in Mineral Area Development Authority and others.

In view of the above and subject to the final orders being passed by the Hon'ble Supreme Court in the aforesaid appeals, there may be a contingent liability on Avacado
in respect of interest payable on account of the delayed payment of service tax, which amount would be recoverable from the respective lessees by Avacado.




a)

b)

KRC Infra

In respect of KRC Infra's project at Village Kharadi, Pune, a special civil suit is filed by .Ashok Phulchand Bhandari against Balasaheb Laxman Shivale and 29 others in
respect of inter alia an undivided share admeasuring 44.15 Ares out of the land bearing S. No 65 Hissa No. 3 for declaration, specific performance, injunction and other
céliefs. Neither Gera Developments Private Limited nor KRC Infrastructure and Projects Private Limited is a party to the aforementioned suit and neither of them have
been joined as parties to the civil suit or Gera Developments Private Limited nor KRC Infrastructure and Projects Private Limited have filed any intervention
application There are no orders passed in the matter affecting the suit lands or the development thereof or restraining the transfer or development of the aforesaid land
in any manner whatsoever. Next date is July 15, 2024, The matter is currently pending,

Saraswatibai Malhari Gaikwad (deceased) (“Plaintiff”) through her heir Sangita Shivaji Kate through her constituted attorney Mr. Amit Jeevan Pathare has filed special
civil suit no., 2040 of 2021 (42021 Sui”) against Yashwant Punaji Pathare & 65 others (“Defendants”) before the Civil Judge, Senior Division, Pune (“Court”) seeking
inter alia preliminary decree of partition for 1/5th undivided share of the Plaintiff in the suit lands including inter alia portion of land bearing Survey No. 65/3 on which
Gera Commerzone Kharadi is situated, cancellation of sale deeds, declaration. permanent injunction and several other reliefs. KRC Infrastructure & Projects Private
Limited is not a party to the 2021 Suit and furtkier, no summons from the Court have been received by KRC Infrastructure & Projects Private Limited till date. Gera
Developments Privaic Limited and Gera Resorts Private Limited i.e. Defendant No. 15 & 16 in the said suit have filed their written statement and an Application for
rejection of plaint on the grounds mentioned therein. The matter is currently pending. Gera Developments Private Limited {“Gera Developments”) and Gera Resorts
Private Limited (“Gera Resorts™), two of the defendants in the matter have filed an application for rejection of plaint under Order VII Rule 11 of Code of Civil
Procedure, which application was rejected by the Court by way of an order passed on May, 05, 2022. Thereafter, on June 22, 2022 Gera Developments and Gera
Resorts havé filed a written statement in the matter. On June 22, 2022 the Plainiiff has filed an application under section 151 of Code of Civil Procedure seeking

-mjunction against certain Defendants fiom creating third party rights by way of sale, not to carry out construction or development activities, On June 27, 2022, the

defendants. Gera Developments and Gera Resorts filed their reply to the temporary mjunction application. An application to recall the order dated May 5, 2022 was filed
by defendants 1 to 15. The mattér was heard on July 16, 2022, wherein the Court rejected the application filed by the defendants 1 and 15. On August 29, 2022 KRC
fntra filed an applicatior for intervention as third party for being bapleaded in the suit. The hearing was concluded on September 27, 2022 on the intervention
application and the matter has been posted to October 01, 2022 for passing of an order on the Application for intervention filed by KRC Infra. On October 1, 2022 the
matter. was furthes adjourned to October 6, 2022 and further to October 7, 2022. On October 7, 2022 additional arguments were advanced on the intervention
¢pplication and the matter has been posted for order on the intervention application By an order dated November 18, 2022, the Court allowed the intervention
application filed by KRC Infra and directed the Plaintiff to impiead the intervenex i.e. KRC Infra as Defendant No. 66 in the suit within one month of the order. On
December 3, 2022 the Plaintiff filed aprlications for amendment of the plaint and for injunction. On December 13, 2022, KRC Infra filed its say to the application for
amendment By an order dated December 13, 2022, the Court allowed the application of the Plaintiff to amend the plaint in Exhibit 5. Further, by the said Order the
Court has directed the Plaintff to serve the amended compilation upon KRC Infra and KRC Infra to file its written statement along with its say to the appiication for
teaperary injunction filed by the Plaintiff. The matter was posted to January 5, 2023 for compliance. On January 5, 2023, Defendant no.66 (i.e., KRC Infrastructure
nd Project Privaie Limited) has filed o record the written: Statement and say to Application for Temporary Injunction aleng with affidavit in support of Say, and
Appiication for prodection of documsnts along with List of documents. Thiercafter, D*efendant no. 1 to 14 filed two applications : )

() an Application seeking an adjourument to file Additional Written Statement; and, (2} an Application seeking direction from the Elon’ble Court to the Plaintiff to
provige doowments referred 1o in the amended plaint filed by the Plaintiff, to the said Defendants and the matter was posted to January 11, 2025, for arguments on
behaif of :he Plaintiff and the Defendant no.66 on the Application for Temporary Injunction filed at Exhibit 5. On January 11, 2023, the Plantiff advanced oral
argaments before the ¢ ourt on the application for temporary injunction. Thereafter, the Court adjourned the matter and the same was posted to January 24, 2023, for
arguments on behaif ¢f Defendant no.66 on the application for temporary injunction. On January 24, 2023, Defendant No. 66 filed an application for production of
doruments along with a separate list of documents and filed photographs on record and the matter was adjourned to February 07, 2023 for arguments on behalf of
Defendant 0o 66 on the application for temporary injunction. On February 07, 2023 and February 21, 2023 the Defendant No. 66 advanced arguments before the Court
on ithe Application for injunction. The matter was further posted to March 2, 2023 [or concluding the arguments on Application for injunction by the Plaintiff. The
Plaintiff concluded her arguments in reply to the arguments made by Defendant n0.66 Defendant No. 66 filed the written notes of arguments. The Plaintiff has filed
copy of the Order dated January (3, 2023, thereby granting status quo to the order dated December 05, 2022, passed in RTS Appeal No. 429 of 2022 rejecting the
Appeal on merits till the final disposal of the Appeal RTS/2/A/1554/2022 filed before the Hon'ble Additional Collector, Pune. Thereafter the captioned matter has been
adjourned to March 15, 2023, for filing of written arguments, if any, by the Plaintiff and other Defendants. On March 15, 2023 the matter was adjourned till March 23,
2023. On March 23, 2023 Defendant Nos. 62 and 63 filed an application for amendment of the WS filed by them and the Plaintiff has filed its say to the said
application. Thereafier, the Plaintiff and the Defendant Nos. 62 and 63 argued oo the aforesaid application and the Hon’ble Court was pleased to allow the aforesaid
amendment application. The Defendant Nos. 16, 17, 18, 19, 51, 52 and 53 filed their written notes of arguments and the Defendant No. 16 and 17 have filed their

. written notes of arguments. The 2021 Suit matter has been adjourned till July 10, 2023 for passing order on Application for injunction filed by the Plaintiff. On July 19,

2023, the Court partly allowed the Application for injunction, restraining Defendant 1 and 2 from alienating and creating third party rights in any manner over suit
properties 1 (a), 1 {b) and 1 (f) t1ll disposal of the suit. On September 11, 2022 the Advocate for the Plaintiff filed an application for amendment of the suit, inter alia,
seeking (a) rectification of boundaries in respect of suit property 1(e) of Defendant No. 66 i.e. KRC Infra (viz. Survey No. 65/3), (b) addition/amendment in para No. 8
and 12 stating that Defendant No. 1 to 19, 51 to 54, 63 to 67 and other defendants have refused for partition and undivided share of the Plaintiff, Thereafter, pursuant to
Defendants No, 1 to 14 filing their say and matter has been adjourned to November 3, 2023 for say of other Defendants. Further, A notice of lis pendens dated February
1, 2022 has been registered at the office of Sub Registrar, Haveli ne. 11, Pune. On November 3, 2023, the Plaintiff carried out the amendment and filed the amended
plaint, adjourned to November 22, 2023 for filing additional written statement by Defendant No. 66 and other defendants and appearance by the Defendant No. 67. On
November 22, 2023 the matter was adjourned to December 13, 2023. On December 13, 2023 the Defendant No. 66 sought time to file additional written statement and
the Plaintiff filed an Application for amendment. Some Defendants filed additional Written Statements. Plaintiff filed further amendment application. Defendant Nos.
16 . 17 and 66 (KRC [nfra) filed say to amendment application along with application for production of documents. Matter is kept for arguments on amendment
application on April 2, 2024 Beirg aggrieved by the Impugned Order, (i) the Plaintiff filed Appeal from Order No. 753 of 2023 along with IA No. 5246/2023, and (ii)
Respondent Nos. | and 2 filed an Appeal from Order No. 32 of 2024, both before the High Court. At the request of Respondent Nos. 1 and 2, the court was pleased to
tag the appeals together. The appeals are posted for hearing on May 03.2024. The matter is currently pending.




c)

a)

b)

)

Saraswati Malhari Gaikwad (deceased) through her heir (“Appellant”) filed an RTS Appeal No. 2/A/1554/2022 on June 6, 2022 before the Additional Collector, Pune
(“Additional Collector”) against Gera Resorts Private Limited through Mr. Ashish Jangda (“Respondents”) seeking to quash and set aside the order passed on December
5, 2022 by the Sub Division Officer, Haveli (“Impugned Order”) in respect of the Mutation Entry No. 27115 On January 13, 2023, pursuant to the hearing, the
Additional Collector granted a stay on the Impugned Order till the final order disposing of the Appeal.On October 16, 2023, the Appellant filed an Amendment
Application for impleading 13 new respondents (“Amendment Application”) and the same was allowed and notices were issued to the newly added Respondents on
October 16, 2023. However, the copies of the aforesaid were not served on KRC Infra and the matter was posted on December 5, 2023 for receipt of records and
proceedings of i) Complaint Case no.6 of 2020 before the Ld. Circle Inspector, Kalas; ii) RTS Appeal No. 429 of 2022 before the Ld. Sub-Divisional Officer. On
December 5, 2023 KRC Infra filed its say to the Amendment Application and the Appellant filed on record the R.P.A.D slips and Track Consignment Report of the said
notices as the notices issued to the proposed Respondents were unserved. Appellant filed an application to issue notices to the proposed Respondents through the
Talathi. KRC Infra objected to it and requested for hearing on the Amendment Application before issuing such notices. The Respondent Nos. 1 and 2 objected to the
Amendment Application, filed an application seeking directions to the Appellant to provide copies of the documents relied by the Appellant in the Amendment
Application and to file reply to it. KRC Infra was directed to conduct the arguments on the Amendment Application and the Respondent Nos.1 and 2 were directed to
file their reply to the Amendment Application. The Court noted that no notices will be issued to the proposed Respondents through the Talathi till the said Amendment
Application is decided. On February 5, 2024 Respondent No.66 (KRC Infra) filed additional note of written arguments along with list of documents. Respondent 1 and 2
filed application for vacating the Status Quo Order passed by Additional Collector. The matter has been adjourned till June 12, 2024. The matter is pending

MBPPL

Pursuant to the demerger and vesting of the Commerzone Undertaking of K Raheja Corp Pvt Ltd. (KRCPL), in MBPPL, MBPPL is the owner to the extent of 88.16 %
undivided right title and interest in the land bearing S. No 144, 145 Yerawada, Pune which is comprised in the said Undertaking. “Shrimant Chhatrapati Udayan Raje
Bhosale (“the Plaintiff”) has filed a Special Civil Suit bearing No.133 of 2009 in the Court of Civil Judge, Senior Division Pune against the erstwhile land Owner Shri
Mukund Bhavan Trust (who had entrusted development rights to MBPPL) and the State of Maharashtra, claiming to be the owner of the said land. The Hon’ble Court
was pleased to reject the Application for amendment of plaint filed by the Plaintiff and allow the Third Party Applications on 14.11.2016. The Plaintiff has filed two writ
petitions bearing Nos. 4415/2017 and 4268/2017 in the Bombay High Court challenging the aforesaid orders passed on 14.11.2016. The matter was transferred to
another Court for administrative reasons and adjourned on several occasions for compliance of the order by the Plaintiff. On 5th March 2018 the Advocate for the
Plaintiff filed a purshis on record stating that since he does not have any instructions in the matter from the Plaintiff, the Vakalatnama is being withdrawn by him and
the matter was posted on 20th March 2018. On 20th March 2018 the Hon’ble Court was pleased to adjourn the matter till 22nd June 2018 since the Advocate for the
Fiaintiff had withdrawn the Vakalatmama and the Plaintiff was not represented by any Advocate. Writ Petition Nos. 4415/2017 and 4268/2017 filed in the Hon’ble
Bombay High Court challenging the orders dated 14th November 2016 by Shrimant Chatrapati Udayanraje Bhosale against Shri. Mukund Bhavan Trust and others
came up for hearing on 28 November 2017 wherein the Advocate for the Petitioner undertook to serve the copy of the petition on the Respondent No. 2 i.e. State of
.izharashtra and the Hon’ble High Court was pleased to adjourn the same till 16.01.2018, 26.02.2018, 22.06.2018. Qn 22.06.2018 the Advocate for the Defendant No.
1 filed a purshis stating that the Defendant No. 1 (a) expired matter was further adjourned till 24.10.18, 26.11.18, 21.12.18, 01.02.2019, 25.03.2019 and 15.04.2019,
18.06.2019, 27.08.2019, 19.09.2019. On 19.09.2019 the matter has been stayed by the Hon’ble Court and further posted on 11.11.2019 for compliance of the order
dated 14.11.2016 by the Plaintiff. The matter has been stayed under Sec 10 of Code of Civil Procedure. Next date 16.09.23 for steps. Both the Writ Petitions were
posted on 21.09.18, 11.10.18, 22.10.18 and further posted on 10.06.19 for Admission. The matters came on board on 20.06.2019, 14.11.2019, 15.01.2019 and
21.02.2019. As per the CMIS Writ Petition No. 4415/2017 was last posted on 27.03.2020 and is yet not listed. As per the CMIS Writ Petition No. 4268/2017 was last
posted on 27.03.2020 and thereafter on 23.07.20 for Admission and is yet not listed. In the management’s view, as per legal advice, considering the matter and the
facts, no provision for any loss / liability is presently required to be made.

MBPPL is subject to other legal proceedings and claims, which have arisen in the ordinary course of business. MBPPL’s management does not reasonably expect that
these legal actions, when ultimately concluded and determined, will have a material and adverse effect on MBPPL’s results of operations or financial condition.

MBPPL received a communication (alleged reminder) from Pune Municipal Corporation (PMC) demanding an amount of Rs.157 million allegedly due from MBPPL
based on objections by internal audit report of Pune Municipal Corporation. MBPPL, has submitted a letter denying all allegation of PMC, as MBPPL has not been
served with any document referred to the said PMC letter. Subsequently MBPPL addressed one more communication stating that MBPPL would be in a position to
submit their reply upon receipt of the details of amount demanded as per their reply submitted which states that if any principal outstanding is due/recoverable, MBPPL
agrees to make the said payment and sought detailed clarification on the interest amount. By letter dated 20.07.2019 to MBPPL, PMC provided the copy of the audit
report to MBPPL and requested MBPPL to provide its clarifications in respect of objectionable issues and furnish the challans in lieu of payment of the recoverable
amount. By letter dated 17.08.2021 to the architect firm and another, PMC stated that it has not received any clarifications and provided the challans of amounts by
assessing interest thereon and required submission of challan/receipt towards payment of an amount of Z 183.60 million recoverable against all objectionable issues. By
its reply letter dated 06.09.2021 to PMC, MBPPL has again reiterated that the earlier PMC letter dated 04.02.2019 and the PMC letter dated 17.08.2021 are addressed to
the wrong persons and informed PMC of the non-receipt of relevant information and documents from PMC as requested by MBPPL earlier. By letter dated 11.10.2021
to PMC, MBPPL replied stating that the impugned challans, demands and notice are illegal, null and void and ultra vires; and likewise the act of issuing the letter dated
17.08.2021 is ultra vires and without the authority of law and called upon PMC to withdraw the impugned challans and letter forthwith. By the said letter MBPPL
further stated that if the challans and letter is not withdrawn and any further action is initiated in that event the letter dated 11.10.2021 may be treated as a notice under
section 487 of The Maharashira Municipal Corporations Act, 1949 and under section 159 of The Maharashtra Regional and Town Planning Act, 1966. Further, without
prejudice to the contentions raised in the reply and without admitting any liability to pay the amount as per the impugned challans, MBPPL has submitted that, in order
to resolve the controversy, MBPPL is willing to offer to pay in full and final settlement on all accounts of all demands raised in the said challans, a lumpsum one-time
amount of ¥ 26.64 million without any liability for interest thereon or for any other payments relating to the subject and to provide an opportunity of hearing and
furnishing clarifications, if required by PMC. Subsequently, by letter dated March 10, 2022, PMC informed MBPPL that it has not accepted the cheque issued by
MBPPL vide its letter dated January 25, 2022 and requested MBPPL to issue demand draft for the amount as per the Challans and make the payment to PMC at the
earliest.

On April 7, 2022 MBPPL submitted a reply/ letter to PMC enclosing a demand draft as desired by the PMC, for an amount of ¥ 26.64 million towards the payment as
set out in MBPPL's earlier communications. Vide letter dated July 11, 2022 PMC returned MBPPL’s demand draft while demanding entire demanded payment.
MBPPL vide its letter dated July 22, 2022 read with MBPPL letter dated July 21, 2022 remitted the entire demanded payment of Rs.10,13,57,239/- under protest.
MBPPL on July 28, 2022 also paid an amount of Rs.60,93,225/- being Challan Late Fees and recorded this payment under MBPPL letter dated August 8, 2022.MBPPL
(“Petitioner”) has filed writ petition on November 14, 2022 in the Bombay High Court (“Court”) against Pune Municipal Corporation and others (“Respondents™) inter
alia, seeking to impugn and set aside the Demand Notice dated January 5, 2022 enclosing challans for certain amounts allegedly due and payable by the Petitioner
(“Impugned Demand Notice”) and for refund of the amotint of %= ]Q? 45 million paid by the Petitioner under protest to the Respondents towards the Impugned Demand

Notice. The matter is currently pending for admlss;ﬂﬁr c f‘l.l__L <
D
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a)

b)

a)

b)

Intime, Sundew and KRIT

In accordance with the Scheme of arrangement which was approved by Hon’ble Andhra Pradesh High Court on 23 March 2007, the Industrial Park II and III
undertakings of K.Raheja IT Park (Hyderabad) Limited (formerly known as K.Raheja IT Park (Hyderabad) Private Limited) ("KRIT", "JV Company") have been
demerged and vested in the Company with effect from the appointed date i.e. 01 September 2006.

Intime and Sundew had acquired the land at Madhapur, Hyderabad as part of the demerger scheme from KRIT. The said land is in licu of the employment opportunities
to be generated by KRIT and others.

The liability, if any, arising due to the obligation to create the job opportunities for the entire larger land of which the above property is a part, continues to be retained by
KRIT as at 31 March 2024.

During the year ended 31 March 2016, Telangana State Industrial Infrastructure Corporation Limited ("TSIIC") has returned the original Bank Guarantees to KRIT and
also confirmed to the bank that TSIIC will not claim any amount from the bank under the Bank Guarantees and the bank is relieved of its obligation. Hence, no liability
is recognised towards the price of the plot of land.

An unconditional obligation to pay amounts due to Andhra Pradesh Industrial Infrastructure Corporation Limited ("APIIC") in respect of APIIC's claims of losses due to
any difference in values pertaining to sale transactions of the project undertaken by KRIT. Losses incurred by the Government/TSIIC in its JV Company, if any, will be
paid in full by K Raheja Corp Pvt Ltd and it has furnished to the JV Company in writing agreeing and admitting liability to make such payment to Government/TSIIC.
The shareholding pattern of the Govemnment/TSIIC in the JV Company and the Company will not change as a result of conversion from Private to Public, the
Govemnment / TSIIC equity of 11% will remain the same in the Company and all the demerged companies and further in future, Government / TSIIC will not be asked
to infuse further cash to maintain its 11% stake.

Gigaplex

Regular Civil Suit had been filed before the Hon. Civil Judge (J.D) Vashi at Central Business District by an Education Society ("the Plaintiff") who is claiming rights in
existing school structure, claiming its area as 500 square meters and its existence since more than 30 years, secking an injunction not to dispossess him. Gigaplex has
filed its reply opposing the Plaintiff’s prayers. After hearing the parties, the Hon’ble Judge at the Vashi Court had rejected the Plaintiff’s Injunction Application by
Order dated 20.08.18 (Order). Thereafter the Plaintiff has filed an appeal in Thane District Court. The Plaintiff’s Appeal filed in Thane District Court has been
transferred to Belapur Court is still pending for Arguments in Appellant's Applications for injunction and status quo before relevant court in Belapur. Both Suit and
Appeal are perding for hearing. In management view, the estimate of liability arising out of the same is remote, no provision has been taken.

Gigaplex, one of the SPV’s of Mindspace REIT, has recejved notice dated 11th December 2023 (“Demand Notice”) issued by MIDC demanding differential premium
of Rs. 528 million on account of change in shareholding pattemn i.e. participation of the Gigaplex into the Mindspace REIT. In the meantime, in view of the permission
for subleasing reyuired by the Gigaplex from MIDC in respect of proposed transactions by the Gigaplex, and pending the determination as to whether the said demand is
payable at all to MIDC and whether payable by the Gigaplex, the Gigaplex has obtained a bank guarantee in favour of MIDC for the said demand in order that the said
permission for subleasing is obtained by the Gigaplex from MIDC. Group is of the view that the said demand is not payable by the Gigaplex. The Gigaplex had sent
intimation to MIDC of the participation by the Gigaplex into Mindspace REIT (“Transaction™) on 15th July 2020 (i.e. pre-Transaction) and also on 5th October 2020
(i.e. post-Transaction) and also explained in detail the rationale why the Transaction ought to be treated as a ‘Formal Transfer’ under the circulars issued by MIDC and
only a standard transfer fee is payable which will be a nominal amount only and not such a large amount as per the Demand Notice. The Gigaplex has sent its response
to the Demand Notice on 2nd January 2024 and once again reiterated its aforesaid position and thus the demand for differential premium is erroneous and unwarranted
and has requested MIDC, inter alia, to withdraw/revoke the Demand Notice. In this regard, the Gigaplex has been legally advised that under the MIDC Circulars issued
with respect to the change in shareholding of any lessee company of MIDC, which Circulars are also referred to in the REIT Circular issued by MIDC, as long as the
natural persons belonging to the same family holding directly or indirectly in the lessee company by reckoning the shareholding within the shareholding entity does not
fall below 51% post transfer of shares of the lessee company as compared to the position prior to the transfer of shares, the transfer premium payable will be a nominal
sum being treated as a Formal Transfer under the MIDC Circulars. In pursuance of REIT acquiring entire shareholding of a Gigaplex, the position with respect to
satisfying the said 51% holding is fully satisfied and the Gigaplex has furnished substantial evidence and documents in support of the same to MIDC. Therefore, in
Group’s view there is no such premium payable as demanded by MIDC except a nominal transfer premium as a Formal Transfer for which the Gigaplex has made
provision of Rs. 6 miltion in the books of account. Considering pendency in the disposal of this matter, in management’s view, no further provision is presently
required to be made. The said Transaction is in pursuance of swap of shares of the Gigaplex by inter alias by the Sponsor Group i.e. K. Raheja Corp Pvt. Ltd. and Ivory
Property Trust (Erstwhile Shareholders) in exchange for the units of the Mindspace Business Park REIT. The Erstwhile shareholders have agreed to provide an
indemnity and also make good the differential premium or any other amount which is finally decided by MIDC in this respect and in the process of execution of a
counter guarantee in favour of the Gigaplex for such demand liability, if any, and any expenditure as may be incurred by the Gigaplex for obtaining the bank guarantee
or any security in respect of the bank guarantee and any other cost, whether direct or indirect, as may be incurred by the Gigaplex in relation thereto

KRIT

A Writ petition has been filed against the Company in the High Court of Judicature of Andhra Pradesh at Hyderabad with respect to specific use of the land
admeasuring 4,500 square yards, earmarked as plot 18. Pursuant to it, the Court has passed an Order for no construction activity on the said plot of land until further
orders of the Court. KRIT has filed its reply and also sought expeditious hearing. After hearing, the matter was listed on 18.12.23 for pronouncement of judgement.
The Court interalia held that Petitioners in the writ petition are not entitled to any reliefs and the writ petition is dismissed. Stay got vacated. Subsequently, KRIT filed a
caveat in writ appeal vide Caveat no. 8135 of 2023 on the file of the Hon’ble High Court for the State of Telangana. Based on the facts of the case, the management
does not expect any liability and is of the opinion that no provision needs to be made

Horizonview

RPIL has executed a Deed of Conveyance dated 19th August, 2023, in favour of Horizonview for transfer of 78% undivided interest in the Land, which has been
submitted for registration with the concemned SRO, Kundrathur, Chennai. Further, RPIL has also executed a Deed of Conveyance dated 2nd September, 2023 in favour
of Horizonview for transfer of its units in the building along with the corresponding 22% UDI in the Land. Both documents have been submitted for registration with the
Sub-Registrar of Assurances Kundrathur (“Registrar”). The Registrar has issued demand notices for deficit of stamp duty and registration fees aggregating to ¥ 221.28
million in respect of the conveyance deeds and most of the demand is with respect to the Registrar’s view that there is transfer of the building besides transfer of Land
under the first Conveyance. Horizonview has responded to the demand notices, objecting to the same as Horizonview has constructed the building together with plant
and machinery in the building for itself, on its own-account and therefore there is no transfer from RPIL. As the transaction, which is subject matter of deed of
conveyance, is only for transfer of the 78% l}.l/‘l‘dl{jdgd‘ﬁ hg"iiﬂ\q and interest in the land and not the building/ machinery, in view of Managem & denTiithis not
tenable. Further, regarding the 22% convegﬂ.&q‘;c?tﬁc dema ‘J_:‘?S‘,:_becn made for stamp duty and registration fees on the TDS amount deduct ? N
tenable since the stamp duty and registration _Charges have bpen' id on the entire consideration which includes the TDS amount under t

Company has the right to appeal to a higher huthority. / ){r k
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Sundew

The Office of the Land Reforms Tribunal Cum Deputy Collector & Special Grade Revenue Divisional Officer, Attapur (“Tribunal”) had, by letter dated 27 August
2009, sought information from Sundew under Section 8(2) of the Andhra Pradesh Land Reforms (Ceiling on Agriculture Holdings) Act, 1973 (“APLRAC?”) in respect
of the entire land parcel at Mindspace Madhapur. The Revenue Department of the Government of Andhra Pradesh forwarded a Memo dated 5 September 2009 for
furnishing of certain information to the Government of Andhra Pradesh, including information requested by the letter dated 27 August 2009. Sundew had filed a
detailed response on 30 September 2009 stating that (a) the land was originally granted by the Government of Andhra Pradesh to K Raheja IT Park Hyderabad Limited
(KRIT) which was a joint venture company with Andhra Pradesh Industrial Infrastructure Corporation Limited, (b) the land was vested in Sundew by way of demerger
order of the Andhra Pradesh High Court, (c) the land has been declared as an SEZ and is therefore exempt from the local laws; (d) the land was shown as a non-
agricultural land in the master plan of Hyderabad and is therefore not “land” covered under the APLRAC. The Tribunal issued a final notice to Sundew in January 2012
requesting to submit a declaration for full and correct particulars of the lands held. In September 2009, Sundew also submitted a copy of the order dated August 9, 2012,
which was passed by the Hon’ble High Court of Andhra Pradesh (“High Court”) in a similar matter (being Writ Petition No. 19300/2012 filed by Neogen Properties
Pvt. Ltd.) wherein a stay was granted by the High Court until further orders. The matter is currently pending before the Tribunal. Future cash flows in respect of above
matters are determinable only on receipt of judgements/decisions pending at various forums/authorities.

41 Management and Support fees

A Management Fees*
Property Management Fee .
Pursuant to the Investment Management Agreement dated 29 June 2020 as amended, the Manager is entitled to fees @ 3% of the total rent ( lease and fitout, car park
charges or any other compensation on account of letting out) per annum of the relevant property in respect to operations, maintenance and management of the SPVs, as
applicable to be reduced to the extent of employee cost directly incurred by the SPVs. The fees is charged based on the billing done to the tenants. The fees has been
determined to meet the ongoing costs of the Investment Manager to undertake the services provided to the SPVs.
Property Management fees for the quarter and year ended 31 March 2024 amounts to Rs. 120 million and Rs. 439 million and for the quarter and year ended 31 March
2023 amounts to Rs 107 million and Rs 418 million respectively. There are no changes during the period in the methodology for computation of fees paid to the
Manager.

Support Services Fee

Pursuant to the Investment Management Agreement dated 29 June 2020 as amended, the Manager is entitled to fees @ 0.5% of the total rent ( lease and fitout, car park
charges or any other compensation on account of letting out) per annum of the relevant property in respect to general administration and other support service of the
SPVs, as applicable. The fees has been determined to meet the ongoing costs of the Investment Manager to undertake the services provided to the SPVs. The fees is
charged based on the billing done to the tenants.

Support Management fees for the quarter and year ended 31 March 2024 amounts to Rs. 25 million and Rs. 91 million and for the quarter and year ended 31 March
2023 amounts to Rs 21 million and Rs 80 million respectively. There are no changes during the period in the methodology for computation of fees paid to the Manager.

REIT Management Fees

Pursuant to the Investment Management Agreement dated 21 November 2019, Investment Manager is entitled to fees @ 0.5% of REIT Net Distributable Cash Flows
which shall be payable either in cash or in Units or a combination of both, at the discretion of the Investment Manager. The fees has been determined for undertaking
management of the REIT and its investments. The REIT Management fees (including GST) accrued for the quarter and year ended 31 March 2024 amounts to Rs. 17
million and Rs. 68 million and for the quarter and year ended 31 March 2023 amounts to Rs 17 million and Rs 67 million respectively. There are no changes during the
period in the methodology for computation of fees paid to the Investment Manager.

*Refer Note-46 for related party disclosure

B Business Support Services :

REIT SPVs have entered into support services agreements with K. Raheja Corporate Services Private Limited (KRCSPL) (Now K Raheja Corp Real Estate Private
Limited (“|KRCREPL”) pursuant to the demerger of the services business from KRCSPL into KRCREPL effective September 1,2023) under which KRCSPL had
agreed to provide project related support activities to the REIT SPVs. The agreement was further amended during the previous year for reduction in the quarterly fees
payable with effect from 1 April, 2022.
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MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT
RN:IN/REIT/19-20/003

Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
Notes to Accounts

(AIl amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated)

43 Financial instruments

A The carrying value of financial instruments by categories are as below:

Financial assets

As at
31 March 2024

As at
31 March 2023

Fair value through Other Comprehensive Income ('FVTOCI')

Investments in equity instruments 0 0
Amortised cost

[nvestments - non-current 33 29
Trade receivables 1,092 572
Cash and cash equivalents 3,250 4,062
Other bank balances 2,850 206
Other financial assets 6,907 5,061
Total assets 14,132 9.930
Financial liabilities

Borrowings 69,728 54,535
Lease Liabilities 128 127
Security deposits 9,126 8,607
Trade payables 1,088 709
Other financial liabilities (other than Security deposits) 3,640 3.242
Total liabilities 83,710 67.220

The Management considers that the carrying amount of the above financial assets and liabilities approximates to their fair value.

B. Measurement of fair values
The section explains the judgement and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial instruments that are:
a) recognised and measured at fair value
b) measured at amortised cost and for which fair values are disclosed in the financial statements

To provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, the Group has classified its financial instruments into the three levels
prescribed under the accounting standard. An explanation of each level is mentioned below:

Fair value hierarchy
« Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the measurement date;

» Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and
= Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability

The following table presents the fair value measurement hierarchy of assets and liabilities measured at fair value on recurring basis as at 31 March 2024.

Financial instruments
Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for assets as at 31 March 2024:

Particulars Date of valuation Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Financial assets measured at fair value:

FVTOCI financial investments: 3/31/2024 0 - - 0
FVTOCI financial investments: 3/31/2023 0 - - 0

C Transfers between Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3
There were no transfers between Level 1, Level 2 or Level 3 during the period ended 31 March 2024 and year ended 31 March 2023

D Determination of fair values
Fair values of financial assets and liabilities have been determined for measurement and/or disclosure purposes based on the following methods. When applicable,
further information about the assumptions made in determining fair values is disclosed in the notes specific to that asset or liability
i) The fair value of mutual funds are based on price quotations at reporting date.
ii) The fair values of other current financial assets and financial liabilities are considered to be equivalent to their carrying values.
iii) The fair values of borrowings at fixed rates are considered to be equivalent to present value of the future contracted cashflows discounted at the current market
rate.

iv) Security deposits accepted are measured at fai
borrowing rate

ue based on the discounted cash flow method considering the discount rate determined as the average
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Segment information
Primary segment information

The primary reportable segment is business segment.

Business Segment

The Mindspace Group is organised into the two operating divisions - 'real estate’ and ‘power distribution’, which are determined based on the intemnal organisation and
management structure of the Mindspace Group and its system of internal financial reporting and the nature of its risks and its returns. The Board of Directors of the
manager has been identified as the chief operating decision maker (CODM). CODM evaluates the Mindspace Group's performance, allocates resources based on

analysis of various performance indicators of the Group as disclosed below.

Real estate

Real estate comprises development and management of projects under Special Economic Zone (SEZ), Information Technology Parks and other commercial assets .The
Group has its project/properties in Mumbai Region, Hyderabad, Pune and Chennai for development and management of commercial SEZ, IT parks and commercial

assets including incidental activities.
Power distribution

The state power regulator has taken on record the SEZ developer MBPPL, Gigaplex, Sundew and KRC Infra as Deemed Distribution Licensee for Power. The
approved SPVs being Deemed Distributor, supplies power to customers within the notified SEZ.

For the quarter ended 31 March 2024

Real estate Power Unallocable Inter segment Total
Particulars . distribution elimination
Segment revenue 5,911 271 - (82) 6,100
Segment result 3,586 2) (209) - 3,376
Less: Finance cost 97 4 1,090 - 1,191
Add: Interest income / other income 32 0 109 - 141
Profit / (Loss) before exceptional items and tax 3,521 5) (1,191) - 2,325
Less: Exceptional Items (refer note 51) (364) - - - (364)
Profit / (loss) before tax 3,157 5) (1,191) - 1,962
Less: Tax - - 691 - 691
Profit / (Loss) after tax 3,157 (5) (1,882) - 1,271
For the quarter ended 31 December 2023

Real estate Power Unallocable Inter segment Total
Particulars distribution elimination
Segment revenue 5,806 297 - (102) 6,001
Segment result 3,550 6 (152) - 3,404
Less: Finance cost 114 0 1,047 - 1,161
Add: Interest income / other income 11 0 96 - 107
Profit / (loss) before tax 3,447 6 (1,103) - 2,350
Less: Tax - - 883 - 883
Profit / (Loss) after tax 3,447 6 (1,986) - 1,467
For the quarter ended 31 March 2023

Real estate Power Unallocable Inter segment Total
Particulars distribution elimination
Segment revenue 5,533 190 - (56) 5,667
Segment result 3,235 (26) (108) - 3,101
Finance cost 95 “4) 886 - 971
Interest income / other income 19 4 33 - 56
Profit / (Loss) before exceptional items and tax 3,159 (18) (961) - 2,180
Less: Exceptional Items (refer note 49A & 49B) (1,368) - - - (1,368)
Profit / (loss) before tax 1,791 (18) (961) - 812
Tax - - 1,149 - 1,149
Profit / (Loss) after tax 1,791 (18) (2,110) - (337)




For the half year ended 31 March 2024

Real estate Power Unallocable Inter segment Total
Particulars distribution elimination
Segment revenue 11,717 568 - (184) 12,101
Segment result 7,136 4 (361) E 6,780
Less: Finance cost 211 4 2,137 - 2,352
Add: Interest incomne / other income 43 0 205 - 248
Profit / (Loss) before exceptional items and tax 6,968 1 (2,294) - 4,675
Less: Exceptional lteme (refer note 51) (364) : - - (364)
Profit / {loss) before tax 6,604 1 (2,294) - 4,312
Less: Tax - - 1,574 - 1,574
{Profit / (Loss) after tax 6,604 1 (3,868) - 2,738
For the half year ended 3!) September 2023
Particulars Real estate Power Unallocable Inter segment Total
distribution elimination
Segment revenue 11,811 589 - (209) 12,191
Segment result 7.044 14 (278) B 6,780
Finance cost 192 0 2,022 2,214
fixterest income / other income 39 1 139 - 229
Profit / (loss) before tax 6,941 15 (2,161) 4,795
Tax - - 1,920 - 1,920
Profit / (Loss) after tax 6,941 15 (4,081) - 2,875 |
For the half year ended 31 March 2023
Particulars - Real estate Power Unallocable Inter segment Total
distribution elimination
|Segment revenue o 10,948 ) 397 - (120) 11,225
!Seg_men’t result 6,584 (54) (278) - 6,252
|1ess: Finarce cost 190 @) 1.696 - 1,882
iAdd: Intersst income / other Imcoms 27 4 71 - 102
Profit / { Loss) before exceptiosal items and tax 6,42] (46) (1,903) - 4,472
Less: Excepiional Items (refer note 49A and 498B) {1,368) - - - (1,368)
Prufit/ (lost) before tax 5,053 (46) {1,903) - 3,104
i[_.ess: Tax P - 2.176 - 2.176
{Profit / (Loss) after tax 5,053 (46) 4,079) - 928
For the year ended 31 March 2024
Real estate Power Unallocable Inter segment Total
Particulars distribution elimination
Segment revenue 23,528 1,157 - (393) 24,292
Segment result 14,180 18 (639) - 13,559
Less: Finance cost 403 4 4,159 - 4,56¢
Add: Interest income / other income 132 2 343 - 477
Profit / (Loss) before exceptional items and tax 13,909 16 (4,455) - 9,470
Less: Exceptional Items (refer note 51) (364) . - - (364)
Profit / (loss) before tax 13,545 16 (4,455) - 9,106
‘fax - - 3,494 3,494
Profit / (Loss) aiter tax 13,545 16 (7,949) - 5,612
For the year ended 31 March 2023
Particulars Real estate Power Unallocable Inter segment Total
= distribution elimination
Segment revenue 22,231 841 - (231) 22,821
Segment result 12.586 (53) (570) - 11,963
Less: Finance cost 380 ) 3,055 - 3,431
Add: Interest income / other income 31 5 184 - 220
Profit / (Loss} before exceptional items and tax 12,237 (44) (3,441) - 8,752
Less: Exceptional Items (refer note 49A and 49B) (1,363) - - (1,368)
Profit / (loss) before tax 10,869 (44) (3,441) 7.384
Tax - - 4,299 4,299
{Profit / (Loss) after ¢ax . 16,869 (44) (7,740) - 3,085




For the year ended 31 March 2024

Other Information

Real estate Power Unallocable Inter segment Total
Particulars distribution elimination
Segment assets 227,344 1,853 9,249 - 238,446
Segment liabilities 12,530 1,491 75,140 89,161
Capital expenditure 10,661 10 10,671
Depreciation & amortisation 3,736 _ 91 - 3.827
For the year ended 31 March 2023
Other Information

Real estate Power Unallocable Inter segment Total
Particulars . distribution elimination
Segment assets . 219,012 1.795 6,424 227,231
Segment Habilities 11,528 i 1,685 58,238 - 71,449
Capital expenditurs 7,263 3 - - 7,268
Depregiation £ amortisation 3,460 et 94 - 3,554

Secondary segment informatien

Mindspace Group's nperasiigis are based in India and therefore the Group has only one geographical segment - India.

Segment accounting policies are in line with accounting poelicies of the Mindspace Group. In addition, the followmng specific accounting policies have been followe for

segmam teporting:

Segment revenue includes income directiy attributable to the segment.

Revenue and expenses directly attributable to segraents are reported under respective reportable segment.

Revenue and expenses which are not attributable or allocable to segments have been disclosed under 'Unallocable’.

Borrowings and finance cost of the Gr-oup which are not attributable or allocable to segments have been disclosed under "Unallocable'.
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Name of the entity

As at 31 March 2024

For the Quarter ended
31 March 2024

Net assets

Share in total comprehensive income

As a % of consolidated net Amount As a % of consolidated
assets total comprebensive Amount
income
Parent -
Mindspace Business Parks REIT 94.9% 141,689 93.3% 1,186
SPVs
{ntime Properties Limited 1.1% 1,654 1.7% 22
K. Raheja [T Park (Hyderabad) Limited 1.4% 2,048 1.0% 13
Sundew Properties Limited 2.6% 3.804 4.0% 51
Consolidated net assets/ Total cumgrchcusi\'n in 100% 149,285 100% 1.271
For the quarter ended
1 2
As at 31 December 2023 31 Decernber 2023
Name of the entity Net assets Share in total comprehensive income
As a % of consolidated net Amount As a % of consolidated
assets total comprehensive Amount
income
Parent
Mindspace Business Parks REIT 94.9% 143,353 93.9% 1,378
SPVs
Intime Prope  =s Limited 1.1% 1,665 1.4% 21
K. Raheja IT Psok (Hyderabad) Limited 1.4% 2,062 1.1% 16
Sundew Properties Limited 2.6% 3,937 3.6% 52
Consolidated net assets/ Total comprehensive in 100% 151,017 100% 1,467
— S For the Quarter ended
1
As at 31 March 2023 31 March 2023
Name of the entity _ o Net assets Share in total comprehensive income
As a % of cousolidated net Amount As a % of consolidated
assets total comprehensive Amount
income
Parent T
Mindspace Business Parks REIT 94.9% 147,827 86.4% (298)
SPVs
Intime Properties Limited 1.1% 1,688 (7.8%) 27
K. Raheja IT Park (Hydevabad) Limited 1.5% 2,271 33.6% (L16)
Sundew Properties Limited 2.6% 3.996 (12.2%) 42
Consolidated net assets/ Total comprehensive in 100% 155,782 100% (345)
As at 31 March 2024 For the hall year ended
31 March 2024
Name of the entity Net assets Share in total comprehensive income
As a % of consolidated net Amount As a % of consolidated
assets total comprehensive
income Amount
Parent '
Mindspace Business Parks REIT 94.9% 141,689 93.6% 2,563
SPVs
Intime Properties Limited 1.1% 1,654 1.6% 43
K. Raheja IT Park (Hyderabad) Limited 1.4% 2,048 L.1% 29
Sundew Properties Limited 2.6% 3,394 3.8% 103
Consolidated net assets/ Total comprehensive in 100% 149,285 100% 2,738




As at 30 September 2023

For the hall year ended
30 September 2023

Name of the entity Net assets Share in total comprehensive income
As a % of consolidated net Amount As a % of consolidated Amount
assets total comprehensive
income
Parent .
Mindspace Business Parks REIT 94.9% 144,816 91.2% 2,687
SPVs
Intime Properties Limited 1.1% 1,677 2.3% 44
K. Raheja IT Park (Hyderabad) Limited 1.4% 2,086 1.8% 35
Sundew Properties Limited 2.6% 3,983 4.7% 108
C lidated net assets/ Total comprehensive in 100% 152,562 100% 2875
As at 31 March 2023 For the half year ended
31 March 2023
Name of the entity Net assets Share in total comprehensive income
As a % of consolidated net Amount As a % of consolidated
assets total comprehensive
income Amount
Parent T T
Mindspace Business Parks REIT 94.9% 147,827 93.6% 863
SPVs
Intime Properties Limited 1.1% 1,688 5.7% 53
K. Raheja IT Park (Hyderabad) Limited 1.5% 2,271 9.7%) (89)
Sundew Properties Limited 2.6% 3,996 10.3% 95
C lidated net assets/ Total comprehensive in 100% 155,782 100% 922
) B As at 31 March 2024 For the year ended
31 March 2024
Name of the entity Share in total comprehensive income ~
As a % of consolidated net Amount As a % of consolidated
assets total comprehensive
. income Amount
Parent -
Mindspace Business Parks REIT 94.9% 141,689 93.5% 5,250
SPVs
Intime Properties Limited 1.1% 1,654 1.6% 87
K. Raheja IT Park (Hyderabad) Limited 1.4% 2,048 1.1% 64
Sundew Propertics Limited 2.6% 3.894 3.8% 211
Consolidated net assets/ Total comprehensive in 100% 149,285 100% 5,612
As at 31 March 2023 For I year cnded
31 March 2023
Name of the entity Share in total comprehensive income
As a % of consolidated net Amount As a % of consolidated
assets total comprehensive
income Amount
Parent T o
Mindspace Business Parks REIT 94.9% 147,827 91.9% 2,830
SPVs
[ntime Properties Limited 1.1% 1,688 33% 103
K. Raheja IT Park (Hyderabad) Limited 1.5% 2,271 (1.6%) 49)
Sundew Properties Limited 2.5% 3,996 6.4% 196
Consolidated net assets/ Total comprehensive in 100% 155,782 100% 3,079
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46 Related party disclosures

A Parties to Mindspace REIT as at 31 March 2024 (Refer Note 1)

SI. No.|Particulars

Name of Entities

Promoters/Partners*

Directors

1 Trustee

Axis Trustee Services Limited

Axis Bank Limited**

Ms. Deepa Rath

Mr. Rajesh Kumar Dahiya til
January 15, 2024

Mr. Ganesh Sankaran till
January 15, 2024

Mr. Sumit Bali w.e.f. January
16, 2024

Mr. Prashant Joshi w.e.f.
January 16, 2024

2 Manager

K Raheja Corp Investment Managers Private Limited (formerly
known as K Raheja Corp Investment Managers LLP)¥**

Mr. Ravi C. Raheja
Mr. Neel C. Raheja

Mr. Ravi C. Raheja w.e.f. July
7,2023

Mr. Neel C. Raheja w.e.f. July
7, 2023

Mr. Deepak Ghaisas w.e.f.
July 11, 2023

Mr. Bobby Parikh w.e.f. July
11, 2023

Ms. Manisha Girotra w.e.f.
July 11, 2023

Mr. Manish Kejriwal w.e.f.
July 11, 2023

Mr. Vinod Rohira

w.e.f. September 1, 2023

Sponsors

Anbee Constructions LLP

Mr. Ravi C. Raheja
Mr. Neel C. Raheja
Mr. Chandru L. Raheja
Mrs. Jyoti C. Raheja
Ms. Sumati Raheja

Cape Trading LLP

Mr. Ravi C. Raheja
Mr. Neel C. Raheja
Mr. Chandru L. Raheja
Mrs. Jyoti C. Raheja

wn

||

1 Sponsors Group

12

13

Mr. Chandru L. Raheja

Mr. Ravi C. Raheja

Mr. Neel C. Raheja

Mrs. Jyoti C. Raheia

Ms. Sumati Raheja

Capstan Trading LLP

Mr. Ravi C. Raheja
Mr. Neel C. Raheja
Mr. Chandru L. Raheja
Mrs. Jyoti C. Raheja

Casa Maria Properties LLP

Mr. Ravi C. Raheja
Mr. Neel C. Raheja
Mr. Chandru L. Raheja
Mss. Jyoti C. Raheja

Raghukool Estate Developement LLP

Mr. Ravi C. Raheja
Mr. Neel C. Raheja
Mr. Chandru L. Raheja
Mrs. Jyoti C. Raheja

Palm Shelter Estate Development LLP

Mr. Ravi C. Raheja
Mr. Neel C. Raheja
Mr. Chandru L. Raheja
Mrs. Jyoti C. Raheja




Mr. Chandru L. Raheja Jointly with
Mrs. Jyoti C. Raheja

Mrs. Jyoti C. Raheja Jointly with
Mr. Chandru L. Raheja

Mr, Ravi C. Raheja Jointly with
Mr. Chandru L, Raheja Jointly with
Mrs. Jyoti C. Raheja

Mr. Neel C. Raheja Jointly with

Ravi C. Raheja
Neel C. Raheja
Ramesh Valecha

14 Sponsors Group K. Raheja Corp Private Limited Mr. Chandru L. Raheja Jointly with
Mrs. Jyoti C. Raheja Ramesh Ranganthan
Sunil Hingorani
Anbee Constructions LLP
Cape Trading LLP
Capstan Trading LLP
Casa Maria Properties LLP
Raghukool Estate Developement LLP
Palm Shelter Estate Development LLP
Mr. Neel C. Raheja Jointly with
Mr. Ramesh M. Valecha
Chandru L. Raheja
Jyoti C. Raheja
Ivory Properties & Hotels Pvt Ltd
15 Ivory Property Trust Ravi C. Raheja
Neel C. Raheja
(all are trustees) .
Mr. Ravi C. Raheja Jointly with Ravi C. Raheja
Mr. Chandru L, Raheja Jointly with Neel C. Raheja
Sponsors Group Mrs. Jyoti C. Raheja Ramesh Valecha
Ramesh Ranganthan
Mr. Neel C. Raheja Jointly with
16 Genext Hardware & Parks Pvt. Lid. Mr. Chandru L. Raheja Jointly with
Mrs. Jyoti C. Raheja
Chandru L. Raheja jointly with Jyoti C. Raheja,
for and on behalf of beneficiaries of Ivory
Property Trust.
1. Avacado Properties and Trading (India)
Private Limited
2. Gigaplex Estate Private Limited
3, Horizonview Properties Private Limited
17 Names of SPVs/subsidiaries i Iéil:m(;telgﬁ'ash'ucmre EndIBOIcC RN
5. Intime Properties Limited
6. Sundew Properties Limited
7. K. Raheja IT Park (Hyderabad) Limited
8. Mindspace Business Parks Private Limited.
Board of directors/ Governing Board
Mr. Deepak Ghaisas (Independent Member)
Ms. Manisha Girotra (Independent Member)
Mr, Bobby Parikh (Independent Member)
Mr. Manish Kejriwal (Independent Member)
Board of Directors/Governing Mr. Ravi C. Rahe_]:a (Non Executive Non Independent Member)
. °|Mr. Neel C. Raheja (Non Executive Non Independent Member)
Board and Key Managerial y . )
Mr. Vinod Rohira w.e.f. September 1, 2023 (Non Executive Non
18 |Personnel of the Manager (K Independent Member)
Raheja Corp Investment Managers
+ H Wk ke
Private Limited) Key Managerial Personnel
Mr. Ramesh Nair (Chief Executive Officer) w.e.f. September 1,
2023
Mr. Vinod Rohira (Chief Executive Officer) till August 31, 2023
Ms. Preeti Chheda (Chief Financial Officer)
Brookfields Agro & Development Private Limited
Grange Hotels And Properties Private Limited
Immense Properties Private Limited
Entities controlled/jointly Novel Properties Private Limited
controlled by Board of Pact Real Estate Private Limited
19 | Directors/Members of Governing

Board/Key Managerial Personnel
of the manager

Paradigm Logistics & Distribution Private Limited

Aqualine Real Estate Private Limited
K Raheja Corp Real Estate Private Limited (Formerly known as
"Feat Properties Private Limited") (till 8th August 2023)

Carin Properties Private Limited

Asterope Properties Private Limited

Content Properties Private Limited

Gencoval Strategic Services Private Limited

Stemade Biotech Private Limited

Hariom Infrafacilities Services Private Limited

K. Raheja Corp Advisory Services (Cyprus) Private Limited
Convex Properties Private Limited

M/s Bobby Parikh & Associates




Close Member (Relatives) of
20 |Directors and Key Managerial Meera Rohira (Wife of Mr. Vinod Rohira)

Per 1 of the M

* only when acting collectively

*#* Axis Bank Limited, being a promoter of Axis Trustee Services Limited (“Trustee™), trustee to Mindspace Business Parks REIT, also a Debenture Trustee regulated by SEBY, is considered as a
related party of Mindspace REIT in line with the SEBI REIT Regulations based on recent directions from SEBI dated 12 June 2023.

#x* K Raheja Corp Investment Managers LLP (Manager) is converted into a private company as per Rule 5 of Companies (Authorised to Register) Rules 2014. Since the Manager has received
approval for the conversion effective July 07, 2023, The Manager, therefore, stands converted into a private company i.e., K Raheja Corp Investment Managers Private Limited effective July 07,
2023.
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MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT
RN:IN/REIT/19-20/003

Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
Notes to Accounts

(All amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated)

46
C.

Related party disclosures

Balances as at the year end

Particulars

As on
31 March 2024

Ason
31 March 2023

Other Receivable/ Advance to vendors
K Raheja Corp Investment Managers Private Limited (formerly known as
K Raheja Corp Investment Managers LLP)

Trade Payables

Meera Rohira

M/s Bobby Parikh and Associates
Axis Bank Limited

Sitting Fees Payable

Neel C.Raheja

Ravi C.Raheja

Preeti Chheda

Ramesh Nair

Vinod N Rohira

Other Financial Liabilities
K Raheja Corp Investment Managers Private Limited (formerly known as
K Raheja Corp Investment Managers LLP)

Genext Hardware & Parks Pvt. Ltd.

Security Deposit
Axis Bank Limited

Co-Sponsor Initial Corpus
Anbee Constructions LLP
Cape Trading LLP

Bank Balance (Including Escrow and Dividend Account)**
Axis Bank Limited

Overdraft Balance
Axis Bank Limited

Fixed Deposit Balance
Axis Bank Limited

Interest Receivable on Fixed Deposit
Axis Bank Limited

Term Loan
Axis Bank Limited*

Trade Receivable

Axis Bank Limited

K Raheja Corp Investment Managers Private Limited (formerly known as
K Raheja Corp Investment Managers LLP)

Non-Fund Based Facilities
Axis Bank Limited

* [ncludes ind as adjustments
** Includes Book overdraft balances

10

]

[— BT — I — I

17

77

3,368

534

160

2,597

22

23

701

18

74

3,276

425

218

6,285

53

392
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RN:IN/REIT/19-20/003

Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
Notes to Accounts

(All amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated)

48

49A

49B

50

51

52

a) The figures for the quarter and half year ended 31 March 2024 are the derived figures between the audited figures in respect of the year
ended 31 March 2024 and the published year-to-date figures upto period ended 31 December 2023 and 30 September 2023, respectively
which were subjected to limited review.

b) The figures for the quarter and half year ended 31 March 2023 are the derived figures between the audited figures in respect of the year
ended 31 March 2023 and the published year-to-date figures upto period ended 31 December 2022 and 30 September 2022, respectively
which were subjected to limited review.

¢) The figures for the quarter ended 31 December 2023 are the derived figures between the figures in respect of the nine months
ended 3] December 2023 and the figures for the half year ended 30 September 2023, respectively which are subjected to limited review.

During the previous year, KRIT had proposed to redevelop Buildings 7 and 8 at Mindspace, Madhapur, Hyderabad (forming part of
Group’s “Real estate” segment) as these were expected to be vacated by the tenant by March 2023. Vacation of these buildings provides the
Company an opportunity to evaluate the possibility of redevelopment which would potentially increase the area of the building, help
incorporating new upgraded facilities, enhance the marketability of the buildings and also offer future consolidation opportunities to
existing tenants in the Park with continuity and growth. Basis the assessment by the SPV of the opportunity and concurrence from the
Telangana State Industrial Infrastructure Corporation Ltd. (TSIIC) vide its letter dated March 13, 2023, the £PV proposed to redevelop the
said buildings subject to the receipt of statutory approvals & clearances as may be required for the proposed redevelopment. Accordingly,
the Group has charged the written down value of the said buildings, infrastructure plant and machinery as at March 31, 2023 amounting to
Rs. 1,297 million to the Condensed < onsolidated Statement of Profit and Loss and considered the same as a:: Exceptional Ttem for the year
ended March 31, 2023.

During the previous year, An impairment loss of Rs. 72 million related to GIS substation asset at Gigaplex Airoli forming part of Group’s
“Real estate” segment. The impairment charge arose due to technological obsolescence of asset and therefore, impairment loss has been
considered for the carrying value of the asset and considered the same as an Exceptional Item for the year ended March 31 , 2023.

Intime has received show cause notice during the previous year from the Jurisdictional GST Authority for the periods beginning July 2017
to March 2020 for not considering charging of GST, on the recovery of utilities being electricity, water and DG back-up power provided to
tenants, amounting to Rs. 100 million. The Management, after due consultation with the Consultant, is of the view that the charges towards
electricity and DG back-up power are incurred in the capacity of a “pure agent’ as covered under Rule 33 of CGST Rules, 2017 and also
such supplies are exempt as per the Exemption Notification and hence to be excluded from the value of taxable supply. The Management
had filed its detailed response to the show cause notice. Based on the facts of the case and the provisions of the GST law, no provision has
been made w.r.t. recovery of electricity and DG back-up power.

Considering the weak micro market dynamics and no immediate demand visibility and also this being a non-core asset, the Board of
Directors of the Manager, at its meeting held on January 29, 2024 approved initiation of the process of sale of Mindspace Pocharam,
comprising all piece and parcel of land admeasuring approximately 26 acres along with the structures thereon located at Mindspace
Pocharam, Telangana. This investment property is part of “Real Estate” segment of the Group. An active program for sale will be in place.
On conclusion of the process, a detailed proposal shall be placed before the Board for its consideration and approval. The asset, which is
expected to be sold within 12 months, has been classified as a held for sale and presented separately in the balance sheet. The Group has
estimated the fair value less costs of disposal of this asset based on the external fair valuation, which is less than the carrying value as on
March 31, 2024. Accordingly, the asset has been recognised at the lower of carrying value and fair value less cost of disposal resulting into
impairment loss of Rs 364 million, which has been recognised in the statement of profit and loss and considered the same as an Exceptional
Item for the year ended March 31, 2024

Assets classified as held for sale are as follows

Asset class Amount
Investment property 1,372
Property, plant and equipment 4
Investment property under construction 445
Deposits 8

- Less - Impairment (364)

Total 1,465

"0" represents value less than Rs. 0.5 million.
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